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JOINT-STOCK COMPANY BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

In accordance with Article 53 of the Capital Market Act (Official Gazette of RS No. 31/2011,
112/2015 and 108/2016) and in accordance with the Regulations on the content, form and
manner of publication of annual, semi-annual and quarterly reports of public companies
("Official Gazette of RS No.14/2012, 5/2015 and 24/2017), Joint Stock Company Belgrade
Nikola Tesla Airport announces:

REPORT FOR THE THIRD QUARTER OF 2018 CONTAINING
ALSO DATA

FOR THE PERIOD I-1X 2018
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1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 SEPTEMBER 2018
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REPORT ON OTHER RESULTS for the period 1-1X 2018;
STATEMENT ON CHANGES IN CAPITAL for the period I-1X 2018;
CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the period I-1X 2018; and
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2. Report on company operations for the third quarter of 2018 and for the period |-1X
2018,

3. Statement
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

INCOME SHEET
in the period from January 1 toc September 30, 2018

far the period from 01/04/2018 until 30/09/2618

-in thousand RSD -

.E REVENUES FROM SALE OF GOODS {1003 +
:3004 + 1005 + 1006 + 1007+ 1008}
1. Revenues from sale of goods to parent H
600 ‘companies and subsidiaries in domestic {1003
imarket N
2. Revenues fmm sale of goods to parent
601 companies and subsidiaries in foreign [ 1004
markets ;
i3, Revenues ‘from sale of goods 'm uther
_‘related parties in domesticmarket
‘4. Revenues from sale of goods to other’
irelated parties in foreign markets
5. Revenues from sale of goods in domestic
market B
6. Revenues from sale ufgouds in fomgn 1008
:H REVENUES FROM SAHE OF PRODUCTS AN
61 SERVICES
1010 + 3611 + 1 12 +3013 + 1014 + 1015]
i1 Revenues from sate of products and
610 ‘senvices to parent com.and subsidiakies in | 1010
‘domestic market :
2. Revenues from sate of products and :
iservices to parent com.and subsidiaries in ¢ 1011
reign markets
‘3. Revenues fram sate of pmducts and
612 ‘services to other related parties in domesticf 1012
‘4. Revenues from sate of products and
613 ‘servites to other related parties in foreign | 1013
Limarkets E
5. Bevenues from sate of prmiurts and ! ;
614 ‘senvices to other refated parties in domestici 1014 [ : 1,319,476 3,024,428 1,082,148 2,723,211
_?market ) ‘ !
6, Revenues from saie oF pruducts and
iservices in foreign markets
:‘IIE REVENUES FROM PREMIUMS SUBSH)IES

& |GRANTS, DONATIONS ETC. il o o o 0

S IVOTHEROPERATINGREVENUSS | 10U 9 | 1% s7le s 76340

602 1005

603 1006

604 wr 5 4,283; 466 10,887

605

678 2945849 7,206,959: 2,548,489 6,421,039

611

615 wis 7 1,626,373: 4,182,541 1,466,341 3,697,828




JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to September 30, 2018

for the pericd from 01/01/2018 until 30/08/2018
-inthousanad RSD -

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 :! NJRCHASE VALUE OF 501D GC}ODS e w 4,073; 4,671, . 14,636
: £ : ; :

6 E!I revenues from activation of use of own © som : 0. o
“products and goods | T ] o ) )
‘i1, INCREASE OF STOCK VALUE OF UNFIN!S?IED

630 |AND FINISHED PRODUCTS AND UNFINISHED 1021
SERVICES

{\V. DECREASE OF STOCK VALUE OF
831 'UNFINISHED AND FINISHED PRODUCTS ARD 1022
o SUNFINISHED SERVICES . . : e R . S
:i:m’“ 'V, COSTS OF MATERIALS Do 0 ou 49,139 168,559 44,824 140,605
513 Evn cosrs os FUELAND ENERGY 1w 12 70074 710482 62207 202,682

VIL. COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY ' j ‘_ 1 i
52 [COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL  © 1025 = 13 885,668 2,674,119 740,770 2,246,005

. EXPENSES T S SO SR AU S )

53 VIl1. COSTS OF PRODUCTION ssnwcss . 1028 1 127,420 334,230 78,716 282,459
540 1X. AMORTISATION COSTS S 13 0 3gan 860,564 11904 578,302
SAlto 549 X, COSTS OF LONG-TERM aessavsne o 158 5000 5000, 3,000 8370

55

EXI INTANGEBLE COSTS 125,76()E 316,017 3#83 tl28

66 fD FINANCIA!. R£VENUES (1033 + IOSB + 1039) 102,170 37,725; 116,713}

66 except 1. FINANCIAL REVENUES FROM RELATED

662, 663 & [ PARTIES AND QTHER FINANCIAL REVENUES 1033 - g o O: l4;
664 (1034 + 2035 + 1036 + 1037} N : 5 L :

560 i1 Finanua! revenuas from parent company 03

861 ;2 Fmannai revenues from other related 1038

.. .. ..paries L

:3, Revenues fram participation in profit of :
565 . L. s . 1036
iassociated tegat entities and joint ventures

69 4Oherfinancialrevenves 0%

662 ;Fi.ENTEREST REVENUE {FROM THIRD PARTIES) 3038 17 15,207 53,175, 21,654; 65,118

o e e i | e et o e

663 and 664 . POS.EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD . 1039 18 ] 24,967 48,995 15,031; 47,601
i THERD PARTIES) : : . :




JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

INCOME SHEET {continued)
in the period from January 1 to September 30, 2018

for the periad fram 01/01/2018 untl 30092018
-in thousand RSD -

g + H .
56 : 3 o:;?lANCIAi. EXPENDITURES {1043 + 1046 1040 : 10,370 53,075, 73121 237,324'

S6except | FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES FROM RELATED : : .
562,563 & :PARTIES RELATION AND OTHER 041 H 0 13 L 0
564 FINLEXPENDITURES {1042 + 1043 + 1044 + 1045} : ! : |

Financial expenditures from relation with

55? iparentcompanies and subsidiaries ) 1042
561 ;2. Financial expenditures from relation with C 043
. -other related parties . - :
:3. Expenditures from participation in the
565 gioss of associated legal entities and joint | 1044
o .. ¥EDtUrES . e
566 and 563 4. Other financial expenditures . 1045
562 (El INTEREST EXPENDITURES (TOWARD THIRD 1046 19 3,1185 19,229 8,0015 27.002
PERSONS) IR R AR ] -
1l FOREEGN EXCHANGE LOSSES AND : : : :
563 and 564 NEG.EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE [TOWARD 1047 20| ; 7,252; 33,846 65,120: 210,332
L THIRD PARTIES} . L S | I S i I
E.PROFIT FROM FINANCING{1032-1040) 1048 = = 29808 43005 0 0
:¥. LOSS FROM FINANCING{1040 — 1032) 1049 ; 35,396 120,505
{Z. REVENUIES FROM VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS ; ¢ : :
683 and 685 . OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE ws0 1 ou . 7,488 8,396 1,950, 2,513

THROUGH INCOME SHEET

k. EXPENDITURES FROM VALUATION ‘ :
583 and 585 ADJUSTMENTS OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT = 1051 . 22 11,452 39,211 18,701} 44,739
o eoe. .. FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME SHEET " { : ;
67 R 68, : ; : : :
except 683 1. OTHER REVENUES w052 0 23 7,937; 19,363 5,246 14,325
&68s :
57 & 58, : :
except 583 K. OTHER EXPENDITURES . 1053 2 166,782 186,945 15,443 34,173
& 585 ! : -

L OPERATING PROFIY BEFORE TAX




JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to September 30, 2018

for the period fFrom 01/01/2018 untit 30/09/2018
-inthousand RSD -

L. OPERATING LOSS BEFORE TAX
/(1031 - 1030 + 1049 - 1048 + 1051 - 1050 + 1055
;1033 - 1052) o
M. NET INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS, THE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN - ‘

£9-59 "ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CORRECTIONS 1058 : o ° '583 333
‘FROM PREVIOUS PERIOD

'N. NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS, EXPENSES CHANGE IN

5969 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CORRECTIONS s . B 16,548, 28,659 ° 9
‘FROM PREVIQUS PERIOD . . e . RO
;"; '5:;“)“7 BEFORETAX (1054~ 2055+13056~ - 1oes 26 1,5?9,3732 3,274,219 1,556,883 3,197,134
{0,105 BEFORE TAX {1055 — 1054 + 1057 — 1059 o N
1056)
P PROFITTAX . RS SRR ST .
721 LINCOMETAXEXPENDITURE 1060 . 26 238263 488196 230598 446245
part722  H.DEFERRED TAXEXPENDITURE 1061 27 1,538, 10,010 20,895 58,268
par722 IN.DEFERRED INCOMETAX ‘ o '
723 /R, EARNINGS PAID BY EMPLOVER

T, NET LOSS
1065

+{1059 ~ 1058 + 1060 + 1061 — 1062)

A NETINCOME OF MINCRETY SHAREHOLDERS &~ 1068

EHF PROFIT PER SHARE f 28

2 Basic earniag per share 1068

2. Reduced (dikted) eaming pershare 1069
.6 j"rc;n.u ;t.ﬁ\;fENUES - o : . 3,352.5?5 o 8,15.‘.;,44.5? ) 2,9.1.0,22.5: 1,331,162
5 | ;‘;’(ilTA!, E.X;’£NOITU§.!ES | o | 1,773,203 - 4,87?,227 B 1,.35.3;34“2. | .4,13;1..028I




JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018
BALANCE SHEET on September 30, 2018

On 30/09/2018
- in thousand RSO} -

o A NON-PAID UP SUBSCRIBED CAPETAL 3

E E FNTANGIBLE ASSETS (0004+0005+0{)06+0008+0089) ) . 3 N - : “”23?,3.20- . 173,389 - 0
Olo&partn‘m 1 lnvestmentm devetopment o ) 4 ; : :

11, 012 1, : ;

oot :it::::,egs;::m patents, licences, trade marks, software and 5 29 133,5215 105,963;

Gls&pa;tﬂlg 3. Goodwill [

0108 pate19 4 Otherintangibleassets 1 o
015&part019 5. intangibleassetsinprogress 8 L a3 seea

016 & part 019 6. Advancés fp_r_in_ta_ng'ible'assets g . ' 2,986, - 7ass.

H. REAL ESTATES, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT
2 : w0 29 : 26,565,415 25,128,977, [1]
(0011 + 0012 + 0013 + 0014 + 0015 + 0016 + 0017 + 001B) : :

020, 021 & part

029 1. tand 9,943,377; 9,437,11?:‘
OZZ&par:OZQ 2. Buildings ' _ o 19,917,238 ;0,1%7,49_{:_ ‘
023&part029 3 Plant and eqmpment ) 5,536_@5_5_)- ] 5,1;9,7?_9;
0248 par 09 Investmentproperty w56 1518
025 &panoze 5. Other propesty, | ts an& equipment L 3,6.';9; ) 3,619;
026 & part 023 6. Property, plants, equipmentin progress 2351059; ) . ) 349493

027 & part 029 7. Investments in some. elses property, plantand equipment : :
: a 11,599

028 & partul':? 8, Advances for property, plants 3nd equnpment
3 ) 1L, BIOLOGICAL RESOLIRCES (0020 + 0021 + 0022 + 9023) 123 123 )]
030, 031 & part 1. Forests and perennial plants 20
039
Dsz&part039 2. Lvestock unit T 13 123
037 & part 039 3. Bmlog:cai resources m progress ) oo :
038& Part03g 4. Advances for b:otogacal resources 23 !
IV LONG- TERM FINANCIAL ENVESMENTS (0025 + 0926 + 0027 + ! :

. 24 : 129,054 136,261
O xcePtiT 002002940030 + 0031+ 0032 40033 | s W °
040 & part049 1. Shares in subsidiaries
041 & part 049 .2. Shares in assoclated companies and joint ventures
042 & part 045 3. Shares in other legal entities and other securities C a7 0 : 1 i

(avaitable for saie C e ; : :
part 043, part 4. Llong-term investments to parent companies and 28
044 & part 045 subsidiaries
g:;t;‘:i':;:g 5. kong-term investments to other related parties 29
g::x;& . 6. Long-term investmez?ts i.n. .t.he.ct.}.unt.ry . . ; 30
paitDas & 7. Long-term investments abroad 31
part 049 e -
046 &partﬂ49 8. Securities hold to matur:ty 12
048 &part 049 9 Gtheriong -term fmancnal mvestments ) F- & S 1 129,053 136,260,



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

BALANCE SHEET on Se ntember 30 2018 contmued

On 30/09,/ZDI8
-in thousand RSD -

V. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 74 + + H
5 L LONG- {0035+0035+m3 0638 + 0039 o w7791 1263 0

000+ 00s) . ,
05_9_&_9;!_’_(_05_9_ _1 Recewabies from parentcompanv and SubStdlaﬂES 3s

051 & part 659 2. Receivables from other refated parties _ .36

05_2&part959 3. Receivables from sale on :rade crecht ) ) 3_7_

053&p_art059 4, Recewables from sale per contracts on ﬁnanclal Ieasmg L 38 o S

05;1; &par{ﬂsg 5. Recewables bas_ed on guarantees o N _39 :

055 &partﬂSQE Disputed.and'd:o!.i_g)t_fqi rece_ivabies ] ) : 40 ) ) o
056&part0se 7. Otherfongtermreceivables 4 ;o wm a2

288 V. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS. _ L w

dass 1 | STOCKS woasmmsmcanamhemmoosm o S L maver 133226 0

10 1. Material, spare parts, tools and smal| mventory B a8 32 . 158384 93771

11 ‘ . . 2 Unﬁnishéfi prodﬁcﬁon and unfinished services ioab : ; :

12 .. e | it ; e ; o .. | | |

13 B __‘4 Goods ‘ - " ' ' a8 i3 4,848 4,8535

4 i5. Nan- currentassetsmtended f’orsa!e - I 49 ; : . .

15 Sadwncespaidiorstockendsenices 50 M e s

” ;1| RECEIVABLES FROM SALE - 1512000 1,11;,6&4 ' W
B {0052 + 0053 + 0D54 + 0055 + 0056 + D057 + 0058) [ : :

zm&pan_zeg L. uyers in the country - parent compames and subsud:anes _' 52 o

qué‘.ﬂa“mg.?z- Buyers abroad - parent companies and subsidiades :. B

202'8};33{{ 209 3. Buyers in the country - otherrefated parties : 54 -

203 &“par.t 209‘54. Bu.yers”a!:rqad - other related parties ) o 5 . ) N o

204 &pa:t 209 5. B.uyers in !he country ) ) - 56 35 ) _460,{32; _426,265:7

205 &_9_31?_299_ ‘6._ Buyers abmaé o ) o h . : 57 - .36 ) L 1,651,558; ) 692,419

2__(l]§__&part_2_(_}9__7. Otherrecewabies from sale I 58 _' .‘ ; . '

2 UIGECHVABMSSFROMSPECFICOPERATIONS %5

2. f’V OTHERRECEIVABLES - 60 @ s .%Ii».s”-:“.

236 :V FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME SHEET (3

. exc;pt 26 VI SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 6 : 1725850, 2,760,377; o

& 237 {0063 + 0064 + DOES + 0066 + 0067) : : : :

230&’}3“239 :usb:?;::::: loans and invest.- parentéompames and 63.

231 & part 239 ‘2. Short-tesm loans and invest.- ather related partres o4

232 & part 239 3. Short teem credlts andioans in the cnuntw o _‘ 65 ¢ B ._ G7,393 ) BG,BSE

233 & pant 239 4. short-term credits and loans abroad ) - :

;:‘t ;:: 38 % 5. Othershort-term financial investments &7 39 1,678,497 2,679,991

24 o ._ VIE{'ASHAND C.A.'SH ‘EQUIVIALE_B_ITS_ ._ ) . ) &8 ___ _. 41 : 4,416,_80_4. . 2,386,010

21 VINVAWEADDEDTAX S .0

18 except Z88 X PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED iNCOME .78 : 42 52,844 86,728

a8 D. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS 72 0 & 750,104 668,437



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

BALANCE SHEET on September 30, 2018 {continued)

On 30/08/2018
- inthousand RSD -

'A. CAPiTAL (0452 +0411 - 0412 +0413 + {3414 + 0415 9416 + 0417

+ 0420 - 0421} 2 0= (0071 ~ 0424 ~ 0441 ~ 0442) 40__1 ;o4 s0make 2970420
30 (f CORE CAPITAL D a0 i 21,264,203 20,573,610
. {0403+ 0404 +0405 + D406 + 0407 + 0408+ QA0S + 08I0 e e
300 1. Share capital 403 a4 21015678 20573610
301ﬂ . 2 Shares ofllmlted lsabiiitvcompames - . Cas i O
W mSwkes s
03 Aswteapital e
304 5 Social caphtal e B b
305 6 Cooperattve capstai ] ] ) : 4{)8 ) : o
_305. ) . o 7 Share issue premium 7 248,625
309 B Oﬁnercnre capital 1]
31 11 NON-PAID UP SUSCRIBED CAPITAL o
047 and 237 |1H REPURCHASED OWN SHARES 285417 .
2 VReseRves (E356456. | 5254126
130 V. REVALUATION RESERVES BASED ON THE REVALUATION OF 580,945: 596,114:

INTANGIBLE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUEPMENT
Vi, NON-REALISED ENCOMES FROM SECURITEES AND OTHER : : .
33 except 330 (COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPRIHENSIVE RESULTS {credit i41s 45 i 17,482, 17,482
-batance of group account 33 except 330) o : ;
VI NON-REALISED LOSSES FROM SECURITIES AND OTHER :
13 except 330 'COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPRIHENSIVE RESULTS {debit 416
__t_:aEa nce of group account _33_emcept___339] ) H
VHE BON-DISTRIBUTED PROFIT

34 ' D417 0 a6 2,780,898 3,267,110 0
e 00182 0429) RS S _
340 - ‘1 Non- dsstnbuted prof“t of prewous years 418 ) 4E§ ) 4,885,
W1 2endisvibotedpofitof thecorentyear a9 | a5 277600 s
... PSHAEWITHOUTRIGHTOFCONTROL  am
s xwsseromy e 0 o 0
B dlessofpreviousyeas o |
B. !.ONG —TERM RESERVES AND LIAEH.ITIES (04254-0432) j_ 424 "3 L 798,560 802,600 o
40 [ LONG -TERM RESERVES L 42 | 4748 : 224,090 zz::,sssg 0
o o _510426 + 0427 + 0428 +0429 + 9430-1-0431} ) ) ; . : :
400 - ) :1 Resewes forcustwnthm guarantee penod o ) : _42§__ o
401 E2 Reserves for restora tion of natural resources . A7
483 3 Reserves forrestructunng costs c 41, ] ]
494 o .4 Prmn s:ons far retsrement and other employee benefits ; 429 : 47,4849 125014 131,.379'
405 5 Reserves forlitigations 430 ATABAD | 99,076 96,576
02300 905 6. Otherlong term reserves | e .
a _Ei LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 232 : 574,470 574,735 o
{0433 + 0434 + 0435 + 0436 + 0437 + 0438 + 0433 + 0440} L - ;
410 .1 Laab:!mes that may be converted mto capltal : 43_3 .
41 ._2 Lsabsimes toward parentcompames and subs1dlanes 43
a1z 3. Liabilities toward otherrelated parties 435 [



JSC BELGRADE NiKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

BALANCE SHEET on September 30, 2018 {continued)

On 30/09/2018
- in thousand RSD -

413 ‘4. Liabilities from securities for a period fonger than one year . 436 D
414 5 long-term eredits and loans in the country ¢ 437 ) 0:
415 ‘6. Long-term credits and loans abroad - oL 438 0 501 574 470 574,735
416 ‘7. Labilities based on financial leasing ) o433 O‘ ;
41% 8. Other long-term liabilities [aa0 o o ] 0. 0
438 V. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES © 841 7 466,263 456,253
.G. SHORT-TERM LIABHITIES
42 to 49 42 . : 3,025,155 1,079,150 0

{except 498) (0443 + 0450 + DASE + 0459 + 0460 + 0461 + 0462)
‘| SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS : : : : j

a2 : PYERS 37,476 98,752 0
(0454 + 0435 + 0846 + 0447 + 0448 + 0449) : : *

Sy

420 1 Short-term Juans fmm parentcompanyand substdlanes i 444

421 :2, Short-term loans from other related parties {445
422 3. Short-term credits aad loans in the country ;448
523 4. Short- term credats and loans abroad P oa47

&7 ‘5. Liabilities on fixed assets and assets from dtscontmued e
‘_uperatmns intended forsale :

4 : : : ‘
424, 425, 428 & 6. Other short-term financial obllgatmns L 52 37476 98,752

439

430 o 'II.RECEWED_ PREPAYMEI’\ETS, DEPOSITS AND BI_\E_E.S o _‘: 450 53 ) 223.617 . .1.2‘.’,9031.

43 except 430 .‘l'-l;:;J;FNESS LIABELETIES (0452 + 0453 + 0454 + 0455 + 0456 + 0457 451 | ; 221,750? 522,252: o
4 %Suppliecs - parentcomp. and subsidiaries Inthe country | 452

42 2.Suppliers -parentcomp. and subsidiaries abroad 1 453 |

233 supplies otherrelated in the country s

438 Suppliens othecretated sbroad SS
a5 Ssweleminthecoustwy 4 s 1w 40

a3 6. Suppliers abroad SO O SN U T . I

43“9 . i7. Dtherhabllmes fromoperation e 458 N _56_ o ._ . 27194‘ 114,5555

44,45& 46 :IEV OTHER SHORT-TERM LiABlLiTESS B o o 459 ______ i _57 o ) 2 130 912'_ . 152,802?

47 VUABILITIES FROM VALUE ADDEO TaX 0 s magme 139

48__ 'Vl LIABH.IT!ES FDR DTHER TAXES, CDNTRiBUTIONS AI‘QD FEES ] :_ 461 B 59, 60 . o 1_32,??5 o ] 15,_490;

48 except 438 'VH ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME A62 61 . ] 159,686. 163,637

D, LOSS OVER CAPITAL {0412 + 0416 + 0421 ~ 0420 - 0417 ~ 0415~

a4 5 i 3
{0414 ~ 0413 — 0411 — D4D2) = 0 = (0841 + 0424 + 0442 ~ DOV1} 2 0 8 ; o ¢

89 E. OFF-BALANCE SHEET {3ABELITIES 465 62 750,104 568417




JSC BELGRADE NiKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

REPORT ON OTHER RESULTS in the period from January 1 to September 36, 2018

o from 014172018 untit 20/09/2018

in thousand R5D -

A, NET RESULTS £ROM OPERATIONS R T T :
I. NET PROFIT (ADP 1064) L m o m 13572 TGN LMSIN. | 265671
11, NET LOSS (ADP 1065) ) o 2002 : : -

B. OTHER CDMPREHENSIVE PROFITS AND LOSS o

2] ttems thatwill notbe reclassified in income sheetn future periuds .

1, Changes in revaluation ofmtanglhle assets, property, plant and equlpment

o .
3 alincreasem reva!uatmn resemes . 2003 B R . . o o
b) decrease In revaluation reserves o Lo T . S
2. Actsarial gains and |gsses on deﬂned bencm pl:ns B :

EEM 2} gains . [ e
‘h}1osses o R ‘ . L e
3 Gains and losses on inwestment in equit\; :aplbal mstruments o L _.

332 a) gains 2007
h) losses 2008

dq. Gains af Iosses on shares in othercampr:henslw profitor lossas of
associated companies
313

a) gains 2009
b} lasses 2018
‘@) 1tems that can subsequ'enlw be réciastitidd in iitoime shestin tutire :
1. Gains or Iosses based en l'el:alnulaténn of !lnanciai statements of foreign
operations
a4 a) gains P 2011
b] lasses Doz
2 Gains orlesses on hedging inslrumenls af nclinms:menlin a fcfeign
‘oparation . .
338 _a) gains L2013
L
3 Gams or losses on rlsk hedgmgmstmments uf cash f;cw
336 a) gatns 2a15
h] tosses - . i 2018
4, Gains or losses on securiues a\raalable for sale .
337 a) gains 2017
b} tosses 018
{. OTHER GRDSS COM'PREHENSIVE PROFIT P | :
{2003 + 2005 + 2007 + 2009 + 2011 + 2013 + 2615 + 2017) - [2004 + 2005 + 2008 + 2010 | 2019 : L3 : 0]
4201242014+ 2036+ 201812 0 ;
1. CTHER GROSS COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ! H
2010 a 1] 4] i |
-{2004 + 2006 + 2008 + 2010 + 2012 + 2014 + 2016 + 2018) ~ (2003 + 2605 + 2897 + 20089 i
L2011+ 3033 4 2015+ 2047V 2 0
11, TAX G¥ OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT OF LOSS FOR THE FERIOD 071
1V. NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT | :
2022 a o
(2019 2020 - 2021) %0 . :
V. NET OTHER CDMPREHENSIVE 1.055 2023 0 0 o ol

{2020 - 2019 + 202142 0

[..TOTAi NET COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT
{2001 - 2002 + 2022~ 2023} 20 _
L TOYAL NET COMPREHENMSIVE LOSS

2024 ; 1,338,572 1,776,013 1,305,330 2,692,623

2015 D a o 0j

(2002 - 2001 + 2023 — 2022} 2 0

1 Aftributable to majonty owners ofcapnal pierr)

2 Alributable to ownars who do Aot have conrcl 2028




0l

FHLDE L1r S # o LU T tmE o8 23y u-.!.ﬁ... oy .«qqn.a»m o “._..-.o.n..u.._ L n.".w.am..u, Lomor 4 ik YERLY D oesoe CeoFOF RECYIL . Euir (TG« €7 = S MO 0 Sty bpda {4
v SO iry @ oy @ s B C iy o Wit o . THE L¥ir BESC =iy MY O oy 0 DTy D o S ROn a0 Lt o] Bl o ek imp [ B
. . U2 2EBAUBUNG D4 F0 LD B3 I FAURI
- RLLES L BT O ) ey o 0 Wik O BIF O oAy ¢ iy o W BEITRLT  FHF O =y o oior OEYDET T O e LT gt LR SBEL K8 SN HEHAL NG T Fabniaa
3 L3Er STqiGr Ity @ Li74 B+ 0o 0 i O iy o &ir o e PHNT W 0N Wy YR w0 oy 0 O A ey T FLRCIE DY) 0 OpHE IO Lo Aol (e @
BIGT 0S a0 1 u) st !
wRime m
i TYRRALEL o oy O o ¢ e ¢ W©Uir O sy W ety bI1ReS Led i a4 Wy O O D, 0F 9T %S0 o o Y OINRLSTT Ay 9 G5] HEE o BT PPAD PIPIXD I
R L1 o
£ XIS ey B 5y O wy 0 wir o sk o i o @iy 4 . wr o L c -] ke ] o o o © my o T e » moppenan e
“BIGE TH/TO Ko kg Mo ada paiaaio)
g 2 ] LA ] Cxr 0o Wwir f wiF O o5k O WXy T o o msy B woe 0 Sor 0 ne 0 o o 10 4 L0 P IR0 gL " ¥
2 ariv o ez O o] ok o 6k o HI¥ O s 0 [ia{ sy o mr o i ﬂ . Ty B w0 &or o TIOr VRO DL 30 DPIS IR 241 S0 SIRUDMTD (€ 9
. P o SRRHCE RN o SRy
P SR WSS AT o uond el
Ry RULST a iy o o o ey o o o Ll I FITER Iy MVERE 0y 8 e 0 Vi STI¥RS Ty O PN TRYEISNE IO 02 [y + by ) buheooe [ 00 Spars i
o wrE O sIr @ iy @ iy o wr 8 e o oy o boal ) fitr O o o W D By 0 Ky o v 0 W O XEgl~ ki + 1T B o dontERg wjap (e 5
LIOTITFTE WO IRSR AR (O PUD 34010 AXURIPG
i3 a Wy o 0% D iy oEr o Str  UE My o HIF OTIHMTE Eor 8 o o o R Wy O e o ™ BEK0C DT IO s Tate o o Siosend [
il gigr o Hor o0 my 4 6Ty O oEy O =tr 8 ;| ERS SRy SETELT o g [ oy o Wy B W o % SRR L D FPIE BGOP 2 ) B0 R {£ ¥
: 10T snothad gy b sEBUeys
e azEa +
o FIE bR o e wr 0 wy 9 HEF O [t Elr AW Al SESUT Ty D L oy GZVIT oo o WDy MITSHE  9GGr e e [T
. . ™ "
i3 taly o fige o Zor o | o Ny 9 UHEx © iy @ ey o ha3: ) oF 1 > o e 0 e g e O oo Y 4 €] HEAIIE J0 00CIG PP PRRAL [k £
LT0Z{0/10 o REEG Mouade pRRpIn
a T wiy o [+ W 0 oAy O oy 3 or o [1): 2] oy i ¥ O e 0 EL L ] oo 0 POOF  JUTMIOR DU O HPIF LD ) 50 ROMIPNm (Y
0 v %I N gy 0 wr o =216 ] hc L] iy o iy o [11: 0] W v W O M a o B e o fEQr  JETIONIE N} )0 DPE HA|IP Mg 0 seaganag fo i
. i . : : o ! sopod Ruunssty jo ssfumys
f 608922 o glzy O CoERE G- @ o T e g0 0561 RI¥ QRS oI SENLT @y G w0 Cooohe SEOIVY R O
UG O aeiG Buag

8102/60/0€ 03 L0/1L0 twolj pouad ay; U] TYiIdVD NI SIONVHO NO LNIFWILVLS

2102 ‘0¢ Joquaydog SINIWILVLS TVIONVYNI

JHOdHV ¥1S3L VIOMIN 30V 9738 08



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period from 01/01 until 30/09/2018

in the period from 01/01/2018 until 30/09/2018
-in thousand RSD -

A, CASH FLOW FROM BUSINESS ACTIVITY _
! Cashinflow from business activities (1t03) o 300.1§ SR . 8,772,953 8,068,103
1. Sale and received advance paymenis 3002: 7,845,477 7,134,512
2. Interest received from business activity - 3.0£.!3: - 2388'. 22,455
3. Otherinflows from regutaroperatmns 3004 - R 925 088. o 9i6,736
it Cash outflow from business actwitles (1 to 5) o ’ 3005; . 5,008,043 o .4.1,152,858
1 Payments for supphers aod gwen advance payments . SGGE; 1,353,193 1,187,777
2. Saianes salary compensations and nther personal eJ;penses :. 3007 o . . .2,653,55'9:.. 2,220,456
3. ?a:d mterest - 3008 - - 18 0082 . 21,488
4 !nmme o o RO 3705525. U 248005
5. Payment froro other publ:c revenues 606,711‘”. - 475,141
I|| Net cash mflow frorn husiness actlvities {I«ll) 3,764,910 . - ”3,915,235
IV Net cash outflowfrom busmess actwmes .(El-i} o : 3012; S
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT Aﬂl\fn‘\' o . i

L Cash inflow from investment activities (1103) e Coams . 1aeoms 14552
1.3ale of shares and pomons (net mﬂows] 3014, a o
o s
3 Otherhnancnai tnvestments (netmflows) R _ : 3016‘ B _ 1049780 . 1379932
3, Enterest recewed from mvestment actwttv 3017; §7,941, 73,903
: ;},wdend recawea . . 3013% . _. | 0 - 0
il Cash outflow from knvestment actwmes (1 to 3) 3019; 2,614,8975 2,450,652
1 Purchase ofshares and pomnns (net outflows) R 3020 735,456; - ”D
i;:?;;?::;eao;e:l:::g‘bte rnvestments properties, ptants equlpmentand 3021j : 1,879,441% 2,450,052
3 Other fmancsa! invootmonu (net outflows) j 30225 ! . G - [}
HI Cash netlnf!ow Erummvestmen‘:actwmes (k- Il) - 30232 . S S
tv. {ash net outflow from investment activities (E-i) . 3024 1,474,1§i; o 49;1,7931.
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (cont'd)
for the period from 01/01 untii 30/09/2018

in the period from 01/01/2018 until 30/09/2018
- in thousand RSD ~

V. CASH FLOW FROM FINANGING ACTIVITY

1 Cash inflow from financing activities (1 to 5 : 3025°
1. Core cap:tal am:rease - . I 3025
2 Lung-term |oan5 (thﬂows) .. O ”3(.].27'
3. Shortjterm lt_:an_s {net lnflpws) . 3028

4. Otherlnng-term tiabi!ities : 3029

0o o o o o.a
oo o oo

5 {Jthershon term lnab:htnes 3030
II Cash outflow from fmancmg actlwties (1 to 6) : 3031 261,102: 1,820,269

1. Redempticon of own shares and portions : 3032 0 D
: 61,102 63,094

HE =

. Long-term loans {outflows)

3. Shont-term loans {outflows) 0‘ [¢]

4. Qthertiabitities {outflows} o ]
5. Financial leasing : 3036, f 0 o
6 ?ald-up d;wdends ; 3037 : 200,000; 1,757,175

tll Cash netmfiowfromftnancmg actwmes (I il) 0: o

IV, Cash net cutflow from financing activities (IH) 3039 ; 261 102. 1,820,259
G. OVERALL CASH INFLOW {3003 + 3013 + 3025) : 3040‘ 9 913, 659_ 9 523 362

D O‘VIERALL CASH OI.IJTF LOW {3005 + 3019 +3031) ‘ 3041 7,834,042; 8 423 189
9 GVERALL CASH INFLOW (3040 304” e e . 3042: R PR é'bz.g.’ﬁng R 1‘100'1?3
5 DVERA“_CASH OUTFLOW (3041 3040) . aoas R e
f CASH AT THE BEG!NNENG OF ACCOUNTING PERFO?) . 4 3044 - - i,386,0ibf - 7.1;0,.10;

2 ?OSETIVE iXCHANGE RATE BIFFERENCES FROM CASH CONVERISON . 3045 : 14,042; 4,535

. NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES FROM CASH CONVERISON : 3046 : 12,865, 32,842
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 September 2018
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS September 30, 2018
1. FOUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY
1.1. General data of the Company:

The Joint Stock Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade (hereinafter: the Company) has been
established for provision of airport services (aircraft landing, take-off, taxing and parking and aircraft,
passenger and cargo handling). Apart from the basic activity of rendering airport services, the
Company, as side activities, provides other services at airport complex, satisfylng the neads of service
users, domestic and foreign air carriers.

Operation of the Airport dates back to March 25, 1928, at the location BeZanijska kosa, and operation
on the current location (Surcin) started in 1962.

By a Decision of the Government of the Republic of Serbia of 1992, the Airport was re-registered as
Javno preduzece {public company) Aerodrom ,Beograd" and in 2006, also by a decision of the
Government it got the name JP Aerodrom Nikola Tesla Beograd.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 17/06/2010 made the Decision No. 023-4432/2010 on
change of legal form of JP Aerodrom "Nikola Tesla" Beograd from a public company into closed joint
stock company. The change of legal form is registered with the Business Registers Agency on
22/06/2010 by the Rescript No.BD 68460/2010.

After the change of legal form the company continued its business under the full name Joint Stock
Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade.

By the Rescript of the Registers Agency No: BD 7651/2011 dated on 24/01/2011, the Joint Stock
Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade was registered in Business Registers Agency as an open joint
stock company.

T T8 Belgrade 55 Serbsa
CRegisternumber:. . 07036540 B
Tax identification number 100000539

Activity code andname -~ . 5223 - Air-raffic services

According to the classification criteria from the Law on accounting and audit JSC Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade is classified as a large legal person.

1.2.Number of employees and engaged persons

On Balance Sheet date on 30 September, 2018 the Company had 2. 506 engaged workers of which
1,677 employees of the Company including 1,181 permanent employees, 436 employees on a definite
period of time, 504 workers engaged through youth organizations and 325 engaged in temporary and
occasional jobs (on 31 December 2017 there were 2,382 engaged workers: 1,715 employees, of which
1,206 permanent employees, 509 employees for a definite period of time, 374 workers engaged through
youth organizations and 293 engaged in temporary and occasional jobs).

In I-1X 2018, the average number of employees engaged by the Company at the end of each month was
2,410 of which average number of employees of the Company is 1,702 (1,194 permanent employees,
508 employees for a definite period of time), 415 workers engaged through youth organizations,
averagely 293 engaged in temporary and occasional jobs {during 2017 there were on average 2,067
employees. 1,408 employees, of which 1,042 permanent employees, 366 employees for a definite period
of time, 393 workers engaged through youth organizations and 266 engaged in temporary and
occasional jobs).
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

1.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

2.

2.1,

FOUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Management structure

The Company has established two-tier corporate system. The Bodies of the Company are the Assembly,
the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board.

The Assembly comprises of the Company Shareholders entitled to participate in Assembly's work. The
Sharehoider in possession of 1% of ordinary shares (35,026 shares) is entitled to participate in Assembly
work.

The Supervisory Board has 7 members assigned by the Assembly of the Company. The Supervisory
Board may form different experts committees with at least three members, whereof one has to be an
independent member of the Supervisory Beard.

The Executive Board has 5 executive directors including the General Director. The Supervisory Board of

the Company assigns the Executive directors.

Ownership structure
After change of legal form into a closed joint stock company, the Central depositary and clearing house
registered on 07.07.2010, 34,289,350 shares; 100% in ownership of the Republic of Serbia.

On 09/12/2010 the Government of the Republic Serbia made the Deacision No. 023-9103/2010-1, by
which citizens of the Republic of Serbia, the employees and former employeas of the Company have
acquired the right to 16.85% of ownership of the Company. After transfer of the right to free of charge
shares to citizens, employees and former employees, the Republic of Serbia owns 28,511,888 ordinary
shares, which represents 83.15% of the total share capital of the Company.

By the Decision on admission of shares to Prime Listing 04/4 No. 478/11 dated on 28/01/2011, the
shares of the Company are accepted on ‘A’ Listing of the Belgrade Exchange Market. Stock trade on the
Belgrade Exchange Markef commenced on 07/02/2011.

Selection of concessionaire

On 05/01/2018 the Decision on the best Bid in the procedure for the granting of a concession for the
financing, development through the construction and reconstruction, maintenance and management of
the infrastructure of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade and the performance of the activity of airport
operator which was registered with the Ministry of Construction, ¥raffic and infrastructure under the
number: 023-00-1/2018-12 dated 05/01/2018 and with ANT under the number. GD 111/2018 dated
05/01/2018. The best bidder selected is VINCI AIRPORTS, France.

The Concession Agreement for the financing, development through the construction and reconstruction,
maintenance and management of the infrastructure of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade and the
performance of the activity of airport operator at Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade between the Government
as a representative of the Republic of Serbia, the Joint Stock Company Aerodrom Nikola Tesla
Belgrade,"VINCI AIRPORTS Serbia" and "Vinci Airports SAS, France was signed on March 22, 2018.

BASIS FOR COMPOSITION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING METHOD

Basis for composition and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements for the period 1-1X 2018 are prepared in a manner and in accordance with the
legislation, also applied for preparation of annual financial statements for 2017 and which is completely
stated in the Note 2 to the Financial statement for the year of 2017.

The financial statement for the period 1-1X 2018 are approved on the meeting of the Supervisory Board of
the Company on 24/10/2018.

PREVIEW CF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Incomes and outcomes

Sales revenue is recognized when the risks and benefits associated with the right of ownership is
transferred to the customer, and that includes the date of delivery to the customer.

Revenue from services is recognized when the service is rendered, or proportionately during the
performance of services if it lasts for more than one accounting petiod.
Revenue from lease based on operational leasing are recognized evenly over the leasing period.

15



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

3.

31,

3.2,

3.3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conf'd)
Incomes and outcomes (cont'd)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the funds received or receivable, in net amount after deduction
of discounts and value added tax.

Revenue from interest and dividends are recognized in accordance with the principle of the formation in
favour of the accounting period to which they relate, using the effective interest method.

With the date on which revenues are recognized there are also recognized corresponding expenditures
(principte of causality of revenue and expenditure}.

Operating expenditures are recognized in the income statement according to utilization of acguired
services or as they are incurred.

Expenditures are accounted for on an acerual basis of revenue and expenditure.

Maintenance and repair of fixed assets are recorded in the income statement in the accounting period
when they arise.

Costs of borrowings

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are included in the purchase value of the asset and until that period when all the activities are
essentially completed, necessary to prepare the asset for the intended use or sale. Assets being qualified
refate to the assets which required a significant period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Income from investments realized on the basis of the temporary investment of borrowed funds is
deducted from the borrowing costs incurred intended to finance assets that qualify.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement in the period to which they relate.

Conversion of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies

Transactions incurred in foreign currencies are converted into dinars at the middle exchange rates
established on the Interbank Exchange Market, valid at the transaction date.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies on the date of the balance shest are converted into
dinars at the middle exchange rates established on the Interbank Exchange Market, valid at that date.

Gains and losses arising from transactions in foreign currencies and from the recalculation of monetary
items in the balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies are credited or charged to the income
statement as gains or losses from exchange rate differences.

Non-monetary items in the balance sheet are not recalculated at the balance sheet date but are carried
at historical cost, calculated at the exchange rate on the date of transaction, except for non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value, in which case they are recalculated at the exchange rate on the
date of determination of fair value. Revenues and Expenditures based on exchange rate differences and
currency clause effects are recorded in the income statement of the recorded period.

16



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

3.

3.3.

3.4,

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Conversion of foreign exchange amount (cont’d.)

Middie foreign exchange rates, determined at the interbank foreign exchange market, used in the
conversion of foreign currency balance sheet positions into dinars, for the major currencies were as

follows:

Descripion . 30/09/2018 311212017

Middle exchangerateofNBS: ~ ValueinRSD o
e 1 TP iers
S S e
g s L e S
G 35 40

Liabilities based on long-term loans from the EIB are converted into RSD counter value at an agreed
selling rate of the bank.

Selling rate of the bank on the date of financial statements preparation is presented in the following table:

Description 30092018

Contracted exchangerate:  VaueinRS
EUR-forElBloan e 18T,

Intangible investment

Intangible investment relate fo purchased software and licenses and are carried at purchase cost less
accumulated amortization and are written-off by straight-line method over a period of two to ten years.

3.5. Property, plants, equipment, biological resources

Property, plant and equipment that meet the requirements for recognition of assets are carried at their
purchase price or cost. Purchase price represents the invoiced amount plus all expenses incurred to its
intended use.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment (except tools and inventory for which purchase
price model is implemented) are presented at revalued amount that reflects their fair value at the date of
revaluation, less the total amount of the value correction based on amortization and total amount of value
correction for impairment loss.

The fair value of real estate makes their market value, which is determined by the assessment
Revaluation is carried out only when the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying
amount. Gains from revaluation are recognized in other gains and losses in favour of the revaluation
reserve in equity. Up to the amounts of previously recognized losses from the revaluation or impairment
recognized in the income statement, gains from revaluation are recognized in the income statement, and
the rest of gains are recognized in other gains and losses. Losses on revaluation are recognized after
valuation or testing for impairment, and are recognized in other gains and losses up to the amount of
previously recognized revaluation reserve in equity and the remainder of losses are recognized in the
income statement. At expenditure or disposal of asseis related revaluation reserve is {ransferred directly
to undistributed profit.

The last assessment of the value of property, plant and equipment was made on 31/12/2016.
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

3.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7,

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Property, plants, equiprnent, bioiogical resources (cont'd)

Tools and supplies, whose useful life is longer than one year are from 01/01/2016 recognized as fixed
assets notwithstanding their individual purchase cost. These asseis are amortized according o the
estimated useful life.

Gains or losses arising from write-off or alienation are recognized as revenue or expenditure in the
income statement.

Amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated
useful life. The depreciation rates that were used in the relevant period i-1X 2018, as weil as the rate of
amortization calculated based on the useful life of the assets applied in 2017 are given in the following
table:

|DESCRIPTION 2018 2017
_ 227-714 227-714

gRoads airports and parkinglots “ 222-3333  222-3333
(ar puiting filins R R P T R T
Flats e U A - A ™

~ 6,67-50,00 6,67 - 50,00
; o 5- 50 00 o
Equipmentfor PTTand TV~~~ 714-50,00 744-5000

Equnpment for alr—traffc _ 4 50 00 : 4 - 50 00 .
Measurmg and contro! dewces and spec:1fc devices 4 00 33,33 4, OO 33 33 o
Labor.equipment, teaching aids and med.devices ~ ~ 20,00-25 = 20,00-25
'Electronic, calculating machines and computers ¢ 10-5000 ©  10-50,00
Furmture and equtpment for generai purpose 4 ”56 OO 4~ 50 00

_Equipment for road traffic under financial leasing 8,33-3333 '8,33-33,33

Equipmentandplants " '10,00-2500  10,00-2500
ool A ety e B0 50 - 160,06
intanglble investments ) & o m : % : %Yo ‘
Softwareandlicences . 1000-5000  10,00-50,00

Investment property

Investment properties are properties that the Company, as the owner, holds to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both of them, and not for use in the provision of services or for administrative purpose
or sale in the ordinary course of business. Initial measurement of investment property during the
acquisition is carried at purchase value or cost price. After initial recognition, valuation of investment
property is carried at fair value at the end of each business year. Positive and negative effects from
changes in fair value of investment property are recognized through the income statement.

The Company has engaged a certified appraiser, to assess the value of investment property as on
31/12/2017. In the report on assessment, the fair value of the investment property is determined by the
weight of probability of estimated value using the replacement cost method and the yield method.

18



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

3.

3.8.

3.9,

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment

At each balance sheet date the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that there has been a loss due to the impairment of such
assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated so that the extent of
the impairment loss could be determined. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit, to which
the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is net selling price or value in use, whichever is higher. For the purposes of
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using the
discount rate before tax that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

if the estimated recoverable amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is less than is carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Losses from impairment are recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is land or
buildings that are not used as investment properly carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a reduction in the value of revaluation.

With the subsequent reversal of the impairment, the carrying amount of the asset {cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimated recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined in previous years if there were no
losses recognized in this asset (cash generating unit) due to impairment. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immaediately in income, unless the relevant asset is carried at appraised value, in which
case the reversal of the impairment ioss is treated as an increase due o revaluation.

On September 30, 2018, based on the Company's management estimates there are no indications that
the value of the assets is impaired.

Stocks
Stocks are disclosed per purchase value, i.e. cost value or net sale value, whichever is lower.

Met sale value is price for sale of stocks inh nominal operation conditions after price decrease by sale
costs. Cost includes the invoiced value, transport and acquisition costs.

Calculation of stock output is determined by the method of average weighed purchase price.

Inventories are recorded at the sales price. At the end of the accounting period, their value is adjusted to
cost by allocation of price differences, calculated on an average basis between the purchase cost of
realized goods and supplies in stock at the end of the year.

Charging to other expenses inventory value correction is done in cases where it is determined that it is
necessary to resume the value to their net estimated realizable value (including inventories with slow
turnover, excess and obsolete inventories). Damaged inventory and inventory that does not meet the
standards are written off,
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.10. Taxes and contributions

income tax

Income tax expense in the income statement represents the sum of current income tax expense and
deferred income tax expense not recognized within other gains and losses or directly in equity.

Receivables and liabilities in respect of current income tax or deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and if it intends
to settle on a net basis or simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability.

Current income fax

Assets and liabilities arising from current income taxes represent liabilities or receivables from the fiscal
authorities in connection with the current or prior periods that are not implemented on the date of these
financial statements.

Current income tax represents an amount calculated by applying the statutory income fax rate of 15% on
the tax base determined in the tax balance, which represents the amount of profit before tax after
deduction of the effects of adjusting income and expenses, in accordance with the tax regulations of the
Republic of Serbia, with the decrease in the statutory tax credits.

The Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Serbia does not envisage that any tax losses of the
current period may be used o recover taxes paid in previous years. However, losses which are included
in the tax balance until 2008, can be used to reduce the tax base in future periods over the next ten years
from the vesting date, and the losses realized and recognized in the tax statement for 2010 and beyond,
can be used to reduce the tax base in future periods, but not longer than five years.

The Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Serbia in the part relating to tax credit provides that
taxpayers who have uniil December 31, 2013 acquired the right fo a tax incentive under Art. 48. of the
previous law and expressed information in Tax baiance and Tax return for 2013 may exercise that right
up to the deadline and in the manner provided by that previous law. According to Art. 48 Paragraph 5 of
the previous law, "unused iax credits can be offset against income tax in future periods up to the
prescribed limit of 33% (for large and medium-sized enterprises), but not longer than ten (10) years that
you apply as of the tax balance sheet for the year 2003". In determining the income tax for 2018, the
earliest previous tax period from which they can use unused tax credit is the tax account or PK form in
2008, The company has completely utilised tax credit until and inciuding its utilisation in 2017.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax effects arise as a consequence of difference between basis for amortization calculation
according to accounting and tax regulations. Also, this difference accrues on basis of existence of
equipment with purchase value in the moment of purchase lower than average gross salary in RS, on
basis of non-used tax loan and in other cases when there is time difference between tax liability arising
and tax payment due date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for ali chargeable temporary
differences, while deferred tax resources are recognized in extent in which it is possible for chargeable
profits to be available for usage of deducting temporary differences. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets is examined on the financial statement date and adjusted if necessary to comply with the current
assessment of the taxable profits of future periods.

Deferred tax resources and liabilities are calculated at the tax rate of 15% whose use is expected in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability settled.
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3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
3.10. Taxes and contributions (cont'd}

Deferred income tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax is accounted in balance sheet, except when it refers fo the positions accounted directly in
the equity, in which case deferred tax is allocated within equity.

Taxes and contributions independent of resulfs

Taxes and contributions independent of results include real estate and other taxes and contributions in
line with republic, tax and general regulations. These taxes and contributions are disclosed within other
business expenditures.

Tax risks

The tax laws of the Republic of Serbia are often differently interpreted and are subject to frequent
changes. The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and
activities of the Company may differ from the management interpretations. As a result of the foregoing,
transactions may be challenged by fax authorities and the Company could be assessed additional taxes,
penalties and interest. Period of obsolescence of tax liability is five years. This practically means that tax
authorities could determine payment of outstanding liabilities within five years from the origination of the
liability.

3.11. Benefits for employees
Taxes and confributions to funds for social security of employees

In line with regulations applicative in the Republic of Serbia, the Company pays contributions fo state
funds which provide social security of employees. Such obligations include contributions for employees at
cost of employer in amounis calculated at rates proscribed by relevant regulations. The company is, also
obliged o suspend confributions from gross salaries of employees and pay that, in name of employees,
to those funds, Confributions at cost of employer and contributions at cost of employees are booked as
expenditures of related period.

Reserving for terminal wages and jubilee bonuses
Based on the Collective Bargaining Agreement adopted on 12.02.2015 the Company is obliged to pay to

the employees.

« Terminal wage for retirement in amount of 4 average month salaries without tax and contributions paid
at the employer's in the very month before payment of terminal wage

e Jubilee awards for fotal time spent in employment with the employer in the amount of the average
monthly salary without tax and contributions paid by the employer for the month preceding the month in
which the employee is entitled to jubilee awards as follows:

» 10 years — one average month salary

» 20 years — two average month salaries

> 30 years - three average month salaries

» 35 years for women and men - four average month salaries.

Because of the obligations regulated by the Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Company at the end of
each business year assesses reserving for terminal wages and jubilee bonuses in accordance with the
requirements of standard 1AS 19- Employee Benefits,

The Company has engaged an authorized actuary to assess provisions for retirement benefits and
jubilee awards on 31 December 2017. The assumptions used for the actuarial calculation and changes in
provisions in the current period are disclosed in Note 49.
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3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

3.12. Leasing

Leasing is classified as financial leasing whenever all the risks and benefils arising from ownership of
assels are transferred to the fullest extent to the lessee by lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases,

The Company as lessor

Revenues based on operating leases (income from rents) are recognized using the straight-line method
over the lease period. Indirect costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee

Assets held by financial leasing contracts are initially recognized as assets of the Company at the present
value of the minimum lease payments determined at the beginning of the lease period. The
carresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a liability from financial leasing.

Payment of lease instalments is allocated between financial expenses and reduction of the lease liability
in order to achieve a constant rate of participation in the outstanding amount of the obligation. Financial
expenses are recognized immediately in the income statement, except if directly attributable to assets
being quaslified for use, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the general policy of the
Company's borrowing costs.

instaiments of operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis during the lease
term, uniess there is another systematic basis that better reflects the time pattern of consumption
ecanomic benefits from the leased asset.

In the event that lease incentives are granted, those are included in the operational leasing and are
recognized as a liability. The tofal benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction in expenses for rent
on a straight-fine basis, unless there is another systematic basis that better reflects the time structure of
consumption of economic benefits from the leased asset.

3.13. Information on business segments

The Company performs business activity as. single business segment, provision of airport services.
Accordingly, information relating to sales income per products and services, geographical information on
income from sales, represent disclosure at company level,

3.14. Financial instruments

Any contractual right from which arises a financial asset and a financial liability or equity instrument is
recognized as a financial instrument on the settlement date.

Upon initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at cost, being the fair value
of compensation given (in the case of assets) or received (in the case of liabilities).

De-recognition of financial assets is when the contractual rights to the cash flows arising from the financial
asset expire or when substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. De-recognition of financial
liabilities is when the obligation is extinguished, settled, cancelled or expired.

Long term investments
Long-term investments after initial recognition are measured by:
- Fair values, if held for trading,

- Amortized cost, if you have a fixed maturity date,
- Cost, if they do not have a fixed maturity date.
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3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.14. Financial instruments (cont'd)

Long-term investments held for trading and for which, due to the lack of an active market, it is not possible
to determine a market value, are carried at purchase cost.

Long-term loans granted to employees are measured at fair value discounted by applying market interest
rates.

Short-term receivables and investments

Short-term receivables and investments include receivables from sales and other receivables, as well as
short-term loans to employees.

Receivables from sales of goods and services are measured by the cost of the original invoice. Invoiced
interest related to the sale of goods and services are recognized as other receivables and are recorded
in income in the period in which they arise.

Cther receivables and investments originated by the company are measured at amortized cost.

Any difference between the carrying amount and subsequent measurement is recognized as a gain or
loss in the period in which incurred.

Devaluation of funds

At each balance date, objective evidences of the value of assets are evaluated, by analysis of expected
net cash inflows.

For all receivables for which there is reasonable doubt that they will not be collected in a nominal
amount, corrections shall be made. Direct write-off shall be made only after the end of the litigation or by
decision of the management body.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on current accounts at banks and in hand and highly liquid
investments with maturity up to three months after the acquisition, which can be quickly converted to
known amounts of cash, and which is not subject to significant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include long-term liabilities (long-term loans and other long-term liabitities), short-term
financial liabitities (short-term loans and other short-term liabilities), short-term operating liabilities and
other liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the proceeds received. After initial recognition, financial
liabilities are measured at the amount of initially recognized liabilities, reduced by repayments of principal,.
increased by the amount of capitalized interest and reduced by any write-off approved by the creditor.
Interest payable on financial liabilities is charged to financial expenses in the related period, and
presented within other short-term fiabilities and accruals and deferred income.
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3.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
The capital, reserves and payment of profits (dividends)
The core capital consists of the nominal value of the issued shares and issue premium.

Other components of the capital include:

» Repurchased own shares

» Revaluation reserves based on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment,
» Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

+ Other reserves,

All retained gains and accumulated losses in this and prior periods are recognized in undistributed profit
and loss.

Distributed profits {dividends) are recognized under liabilities when the Assembly of the Company adopts
a decision on profit distribution.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provision for legal disputes, harmful contracts or other requirements towards the Company is recognized
when for the Company's performance arise a legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of past events,
when there is a certain outflow of economic benefits from the Company and when amounts of these
outflows can be reliably estimated. Time or the exact amount of the oufflow may still be uncertain.

Restructuring costs are recognized only when there is a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and the
management has announced the main features of the plan to everyone a plan has influence to or the
execution of the plan has already begun. Provisions are not recognized for future operating iosses.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to setiie the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available on the date of adopiion of the repor, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. For a number of similar obligations, the likelihood of
outflow for settling is determined at the level of obligations class. Provisions are discounted o present
value, in the event that the amount of discounting is materially significant,

Any remuneration in connection with the obligations for which it is certain that the Company will realize
from third parties are recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset cannot be a larger amount
than the related provision.

No obligation, that is, no provision is recognized if there is not a certain outflow of economic benefits
arising from present obligations. Such situations are disclosed as a contingent liability, except in cases
where the possibility of outflow is smaill.

Preview of important accounting estimates

Presentation of financial statements requires the Company management to use the best possible
estimates and reasonable assumptions that have effect to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent receivables and liabilities at the financial statements date, as well as
reventes and expenditures during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions are based on
information available at the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimated.

Shown below are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, which represent a significant risk for material adjustments to the
balance sheet items in the following financial year.
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3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)
3.17. Preview of important accounting estimates (cont'd)

3.17.1. Amortisation and amortisation rate

Calculation of amortization and amortization rates are based on projected economic useful life of
property, plant and equipment. Once a year, the Company assesses the economic useful life based on
current forecasts.

In addition, due to the significance of fixed assets in the total assets of the Company, any change in the
aforementioned assumptions may lead to material effects on the financial position of the Company as well
as the financial result. As an example, if the Company shorten the average useful life by 10%, this would
result in additional amortization charges for the relevant period ended on September 30, 2018 in the
amount of about RSD 86.056 thousand (and for the period ended on 30 September 2017: RSD 57.830
thousand).

3.17.2. Correction of vaiues of uncollectable receivables

Value correction for receivables older than 60 days, is calculated based on the estimated losses due fo
customer inability to fulfil the obligations. Estimation is based on the ageing analysis of receivables,
historical write-offs, credit worthiness of our customers and changes in the conditions of sale, in
determining the adequacy of the value correction of doubtful and disputed receivables. This also includes
assumptions about future customer behaviour and the resulting future collections. The management
believes that no additional value correction of receivables is necessary, with the exception of value
correction already reported in the financial statements.

3.17.3. Litigations

Overall, provisions have largely been subject to estimates. The Company assesses the likelihood of
adverse cases may occur as a resuli of past events and assesses the amount required io setfle the
obligation. Assessment of potential liabilities arising from legal disputes is carried out by internal expert
services or external advisers.

Although the Company respects the precautionary principle when evaluating, considering that there is a
large dose of uncertainty, in some cases actual results may differ from these estimates.

3.17.4. Fair value

The fair value for the purposes of disclosure under the requirements of IFRS 13 is defined as the price
that would be received for the sale of assets, or paid to transfer cbligations in a regular transaction
hetween market participants on the measurement date,

Business policy of the Company is fo disclose information about the fair (fair) value of assets and
liabitities for which official market information exist and when fair value is materially different from the
carrying value, In the Republic of Serbia there is no sufficient market experience, stability and liguidity for
the purchase and sale of receivables and other financial assets or liabilities, given that published market
information is not readily available. Hence, fair value can not be reliably determined in the absence of an
active market. The Company's management assesses risk and when it estimates that the value of assets
stated in its books may not be realized, it makes value corrections. In the opinion of the company
management, the amounts in these financial statements reflect the value that is, in the circumstances,
the most valid and useful for reporting purposes.

The Company measures the fair value of assets and liabilities using assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest. The fair value is the price that would be charged or paid for the transfer of responsibilities in a
regular transaction at the primary or most favourable market on the date of measurement, the current
market conditions, and regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other
valuation techniques.
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3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

3.47. Preview of importiant accounting estimates (cont'd)

3.17.4. Fair value (cont'd)
Valuation techniques that are applied for measuring fair value, should make maximum use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and refated disclosures the fair
value hierarchy shall be determined, which classifies info three levels inputs for valuation technigues that
are used in determining the fair value according to the structure below:;

Inputs Level 1 - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities to which
the entity has access at the date of weighing. Assumptions of level 1 inputs relate to the existence of the
primary market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of the primary market, the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability; and whether the entity can realize the fransaction for the asset or liability
based on market price at the date of measurement.

Inputs Level 2 - inputs that are not quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs include the following: quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inpuis that are not quoted prices, if they are visible for assets or liabilities and inputs supported by
market.

Inpuis Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that entity develops using the best
information available in the circumstances. So, all reasonably available information about the market
participants assumptions are considered. Unobservable inputs are considered market participant
assumptions and meet the objective of fair value measurement.

SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES

Article 4 of the Rule book on the provision of ground handling services at airports - Official Gazette of RS
No. 61/2015, stiputates that the airport operator and provider of ground handiing services separate
accounts {accounts) for the provision of ground handling services from the accounts for other activities, in
accordance with applicable accounting standards. In the annual financial statements of the airport
operator shalt be visible absence of any related financial flows between provision of ground handling
services and its activities as airport operator.

From 01/07/2016 started separate billing of ground handling services from other services of the airport
operator, then determining attributable direct expenditures on the accounting documents of the airport
operator and ground handling activities, as well as allocation of indirect expenditures on airport operators
and ground handling activities on the basis of the adopted keys for allocation of indirect expenditures.
Based on the above, the separation of business resulis of ground handling activities from airport
operator's activities will in the future be made on the basis of recorded exact data on revenues and
expenditures.

Separation of business cperations, i.e. realized revenues and expenditures of the Airport for the period -
IX 2018, to business activities of the airport operator and the business activities of ground handling
services was carried out on the basis of the adopted Amended Business Plan for 2016 by the
Supervisory Board {(Decision No.33 -179/1 dated 24/06/2016), that is on the basis of by plan adopted
parameters for separation of ground handling services from the airport operator's activities and defined
planned participation of related expenditures, and according to the Rule book on the provision of ground
handling services at airports. Based on the above and on the realised business results is compiled
Income Sheet for the period 1- IX 2018 in which financial results of the airport operator's activities and
activities of ground handling services are shown separately, as follows:
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4. SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES (cont'd)

for the period from G1/01/2018 until 30/08/2018
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4. SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES (cont'd)

for the perod from 01/01/2018 until 300972018
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R BRI AL GE GO ™ v e i e
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REVENUES FROM THE SALE OF SERVICES of the Airport in domestic and foreign markets in the period |- IX

2018 were separated on revenues from services provided by the airport operator's activities and revenues

made by the activity of ground handling services on the basis of real income and by the plan adopted

parameters for the separation of ground handling services from the airport operator's activities, as shown
~in the following table:
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Revenue from services realized by foreign companies that were registered in the Republic of Serbia as a
"branch”, are recorded in the books in line with legislation as income from domestic customers. Since the
physical scope of services of specified branches is recorded in the Company as a physical volume of
services of foreign companies, said revenue are shown in Note 6 and 7 in the way they are recorded in
accounting, and also in a separate column as revenues from sales of goods and services from registered
branches, for insight in the amount and participation of these revenues, which are recorded as revenues
generated in the domestic market, but the essence is that the origin of these revenues is the foreign
market.

29



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

7. REVENUES FROM SALE OF SERVICES IN FOREIGN MARKET

CliXzods B i X 2017
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8. Revenues from sale of services per geograph region 1-X 2018 -1X 2017,
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X 2018 X 2017§
Tin000RSD T Tin 060 RSD'

A&rSerf)ia-Sefbfa S o - 2 514 992 e
Sauicha Uiianea s Germany SR S BT I — T

Tarom Romaman Air Transport Romanra o ' &

Aegean airlines - Greece
‘Afias Global - Turkey
Qatar Airways Q.C.S. - Qatar_ g e 1IOD
[Etihad Airways PJSC + branch Etihad Aiways PJSC -Abu Dhabi 169560

Parking senvce -Serbla T T
‘Alma Quatro Serbia
Dufrydoo Belgrade - Serbla

reignbuyers
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

9. OTHER BUSINESS REVENUES

Revenues from lease fo domestic legal persons

:_Revenues from iease to foreign legal persons

JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

1-iX 2018

* in 000 RSD

795217
s

803,716

LIX 2017

~in 000 RSD:
757,407
St
763420

‘Purchase
Purchase value of sold crude o:!

fPufchase value ofso]d fuel o - S e V

ue ¢ooid retallgoods e S .. Rt
ue of sold kerosene re-export

bXaots

I-X 2017

in 000 RSD
854

14636

11. COSTSOFMATERALS

éCosts of productlon material (basu: materials, tools and

?Overhead cosis of matenai (ofﬁce matenat)

?Costs of. spare pads

18 565
‘:Costs oftools and |nventory

_In000RSD i
104,219

HX 2017
in 000 RSD'
103,303 |

15639
21,625
kst
140,605

Costs ofgasoline and dieselfuel -~~~ 8

Costs of oil fuel for heating

Costs electncenergy )

130808

132,108 |

202 682

13.COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS AND

?V"'osts& of reimburs. for member of SB, SA,' rev.commitee

e
S

s
aEsees T a73908

X2018 0

X 2017

227,975,

Transport of employees B
‘Cots of business trip
rminal v wages and jubniee bonuses i

:reductlon of public sector wages

%Premiums for voiuntary pension insurance

93,144

15,045

Biferan o paym e budget o RS T T

138,628

fCompensanon on Contracts for professional development

'S dantyal!owance (newboms treatme

w Year presents for children of employees - not subject to taxa T

3,399

natural disastersete) 1484 14,

Other personal expenditures

11,412

2,246,005
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14. COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES

1T senices on passenger and baggage check-m

Costs of phone and other PTT semces

Costs Qfmamtenance semces e o o B L i e

‘Lease costs

Advertising costs T

;'Costs of catermg semces of tenants (re 1nvoaced to airtmes)
[Costs of utilities

Costs ofproduction services 7382

15 AMORTISATIONCOSTS

%Amortisation cosis forintangible investments
:fmnqmsahon costs for property

X 2018

"inQ00ORSD

30,387
19847
145,225

13,067

X 2017
" in 600 RSD
30,668
16,132
116662
29806
edes0
1363
29,093
4,055
282,459

X 2018

in 000 RSD_
34,043

247 831,
296628
578,302

..JnDOORSD
45,864

282,464

860,564

11X 2017

- 532 236_:”7 et

1 5a COSTSOF LONG—T e RES BRVING s

Costs offesening for terminal wages

n00ORSD  in

;Costs of reser\nng for Iltlgatlons

se
5,000

8370
8,370

51 6. iNTANGIBLE COSTS

Property taxand other relmbursements
?Olher intangible costs

14X 2017
in 000 RSD.

343,428,

JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

:17. INTEREST INCOME 1-IX 2018 11X 2017
| Rk e . . i G00RSD mOOORSD
Interestinterm deposits nRSD - : 19262 23,781

f'fnterestfarRSD depos;ts m currentaccounts e TR :
ntoreatin form deposns - forelgn currency e e e et e T i
nforst | forforelgn currency deposits n currentaccounts e s EOA TAD e insenee

Interest on ‘housing loans

ioeiats wron St dadalong T —"
ginterest on arrears for untimely payment of buyers . LA

18. POSITIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES AND POSITIVE LIX 2018 LK 20175
o - 1n 000 RSD

‘Revenues from realized exchange rate differences - 30481 18 510;
{Revenues from non- reahzed exchange rate dafferences ‘ S 13 409 29053
Revenues from effects of contracted currency clause (reallzed) 119 38
ERevenues from effects of contracted currency clause (non- reahzed) 8 .
5 48,995 47,601

i ere_sts for long-term EIB loan
‘Default interestin the couniry

Etnterest for unttmely paid publ:c r

v 19229 7 7 97,662

20. NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES AND NEG’?IVE EFFECTS X 2018 LiX 20171
\OF CURRENCY CLAUSE . : ;

~in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

\Negative exchange rate differences-realized .~ |
jNegaﬂve exchaﬁ&él rate ¢ dsﬁerences non-realized 2 60 420"3
‘Expenditures from effects of contr. currency clause -realised T 368 155
E‘Expendltures rom eﬁects of contr curtoncy diauss - non rea!:sed T 6 4432

21. INCOME FROM VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF OTHE_B ASSETS [IX 2018 X 20 1?;

_in000RSD " in'000 RSD

\Value adjustmentof receivables: e

- from buyers fof |nterests _ B ;
. fom natural persons for housmg loans (canceiiatlon- oflmpalrment on 8309 2913
:collection basis and change of paymenttermy ) ' ’ §

8390 2913
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30,2018
22, EXPENDITURES FROM VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF OTHER ASSETS

in00ORSD

Impairment of receivables from housing loans 5444
Value adjustment of receivables from buyers 30/09!2018
Value adjustment of receivables from empioyees S 9
Cosls from val.corr. of receiv. for servand interest '

Other expendltures fmm impairment

1iX 2018

Asar

I-EX 2017
m OOO RSD

3,549
37850

3,340,

44,739

23.OTHERREVENUES

Rewenues from sale ofequipmentand materials

Revenues ofcoiiected corrected receivables fram buyers T 13
Revenues from cancel.of reserv for Eitzgatlons and emp! beneﬁts S
Revenues from mdemmty from legai and naturai persons -
Revenues from rged court costs

"5567"

er ﬂOR men’aoned TE!\EFIUES

6550
Posifive effects of contracted revaluaon 3 .

11X 2017,

17038

3
528
"
STl
14,326

mOOORSD o

24, OTHEREXPENDITURES
Loss from transfer of land free of charge to other lsgal entities
:according to the re-division project; carrying out the changes in

: 157,423
fcadaster plan and change ofthe area during creation of DCP

Loss from sale and wnte@ﬁofequrpment
‘Costs from carried defic tory 31/08/2018)
Expendltures from direct write-off )
es of materials per inventory

 HX2017)
in 000 RSD

L:tlgatlon costs e .
Costs for humanﬂaﬂan health and SC'e“ﬁﬁC PUTP"WS T Lt
Oiher non-mentioned expendltures

25 NE:T PROFIT LOSS FROM CORRECTION OF MISTAKES FROM

'PREVIOUS PERIODS HX 2018

Subsequenﬁy estabisshed rewe

Expendxtures-canceliataon of hagher estlmated st:m ufatlons for buyers
31/1 2/2017 in companson to approved stimulations

s from pfevs us e

5,657

from previous years

expendttures from pre\nous years

_ in00ORSD in000 RSD

X 2017

Expend:tures»ﬁom lower estimated stimulations for buyers 3111212017
m com panson to apprcwed stsm mahons

periods (28,659}

E)@endntures-canceiiatlonhof commenced :nvestments (extraor mventory :

Total establlshed expenditures from prévmus years o 34,393 1305

'NET PROFIT - LOSS from correction of mistakes from prewous

553
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

26. PROFIT TAX

26. PROAT TAX

fa) Components of profit tax

Period tax expenditure e
Corredron of period tax expendrture

Period tax expendfture after correctfon_‘

X 2018

__in000RSD
488196

I-EX 2017
in 000 RSD
446,245

10010

Deferred period texexpenditure . 10010

Deferred income fax

Goracianat et mmetm
| _ 498,206

;b) Reconciliation of profit tax and product of resuit from
-operation before fax and prescribed tax rate

I-IX 2018

) m ooo RSDT‘"‘ o

Profit before tax

F’ﬂ)ﬁt i ca!culated o rate Df 15% R A P A A

3 274,219

Tax effect of expend:tures not acknowledged in tax balance i

ba!ance

Correct;on of usmg tax credlts from prewous years

Periodtaxexpenditure - ,

v) A chreved unused and unrecogmsed tax credrt (T C)

15.78%

I-X 2017

in 000 RSD.

T LRy

Correctron in tax effect of amortisation expendrtures not acknowiedged ntax.

B N

Tax credrtfor mvestment in ﬁxed assets of prevreus years

(17.938)
(22,736)

488198 ©

446,245

Amount of

expity tran?grred TC

Year of Correction of

Yeafgfrecognmonoftaxcredn R R 2017

Used TC

Outstanding
TC for transfer:

30/00/2018 |

012 222 -0 - -

3 ... %@

Bslanceofxcredt oo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2013

27, DEFERRED PERIOD TAX REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Changes on account of deferred tax liabilittes and deferred tax assets as of 31/12/2017 and as of
30/09/2018 are shown in the following table:

in 000 RSD

'Recognised
in other Recogmsed

;)0 ;}:ferred tax assets {deferred tax liabilities) 01012017 gains & in income 811212017

sheet I-XI
losses X 2017

207

Lcng-term amets B

?intanglbfe assets, property pEant equapment and

' 426,918 . |
E,m,estmem property {426,918) (65,387) (492,305);

"9..‘* rm liabilities e B
rovisions for retirement and other empioyee 19,547 R 160

‘benefits

Brovsions for i'“:gations e
Shortterm Habilites
Liabilities for taxes, contributions and fees 198 . 42
fCa!cuIated Bt ot paad empioyee eammgs WHE .. ]
paragraph 2 of the Law . - 2,079 .
?Unused fa cred;ts : .. 22 736'
: IR (370 283)

e -
(85,970)  (456,253).

: . . | . “Recogrised
| S inother . eeognised SR
%gégeferred t_ax.assets (deferredtaxhab:ht:es) | 0110112018 gains & in income 30/09/2018_;

- sheet HIX
losses X o018

01

‘Long-term assets :
Intangible assets, property pEant eqmpment and
%:nvestment property

§Long-term fabilifiae T |
?PFO\ASIOHS for retlrement s o employee et 19707 m(955) 1 8752
‘benefits

Prowsions forigations T aag T s 1dwes
Shortterm liabilites.

Liabilities for taxes, contributions andfees 240 . ;
Galouitod, but not paid employes earnmgs ST e 2

(492,305) - (10,408) (502,71 1)

(456,253) - (10,010) (466,263)
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESL.A AIRPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

DEFERRED PERIOD TAX REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (cont'd)

Balance of recognized deferred tax assets as of 30/09/2018 amounts RSD 36.448 thousand and all
refers to deferred tax assets on 30/09/2018 cailculated with the applicable corporate income tax rate of
15% on the balance of the provisions for refirement provisions for jubilee benefits, provisions for
litigation and on the balance of unpaid public revenues, as well as for the amount of unpaid and
recognized expenditures for employees' salaries from article 9, paragraph 2 of the Law on corporate
income tax, as the same relate fo temporary differences that will be recognized in tax period in which
the same are paid.

The balance of recognized deferred tax liabilities as of 30/09/2018 amounts to RSD 502.711 thousand.

After application of the requirements of IAS 12 that is offsetting of deferred {ax assets and deferred tax
lizbilities on the balancing date, the balance of deferred tax liabilities as of 30/09/2018 amounts to
RS 466.263 thousand (on 31/12/2017 RSD 456.253 thousand).

Effects from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to the initial balance, in the
amount of RSD 10,010 thousand, are recorded at the accotint of the deferred period tax expenditures.

2,776,013 2 692,621 3

2776013 2692621

e r e 35,026,129
Basnc earmngs per share in RSD i o R o e 79.26
29.a. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

in 000 RSD

DESCRPTON | ‘300922018 311212017

260,952
147,869

| Advances for intangible investment
Alienation, removai from inventoryand sale ~
Other 9824

Finalbalance 421432 26

Value correction T T T m

Inital balance S

Amortisation in current year e AOBOA 48252

Alienation, removal fom inwentoryandsale | - (518)
A1 T esods

Total investment into intangible assets in the relevant period of 2018 amounts RSD 147 668 thousand. In
the period I-1X 2018 the intangible investment was activated in the amount of RSD 73,422 thousand. The
batance of intangible investment under preparation on 30/08/2018 amounted RSD 144,013 thousand (on
31112/2017 it amounted RSD 59.941 thousand).
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

56, SHARES IN CAPITAL OF GTHER L EGAL ENTITIES AND OFHER ~ 7w s s
/09/2018

'SECURITIES 30/03 J1M2/2017

inO0ORSD  in 00O RSD:

Briwaing barke o Bokrag T e 202 393
Minus: value comec.of partic. in capital of banks in bankruptcy (392) (392)

Parhc:pat:onmcapital of banks inliquidation - -;
Umon bankaad Belgrade in iiqmdat;on - 87 éé?j
Beogradska bankaad Belgrade milqwdahon e g 18988
Beobanka a d Belgrade t'n I|qmdat|on 38 R
Minus: value correc.of partic. in capital ofbanks inliquidation (19, 693> __ as 693>

Voncie Boden Ty R e e
Societe International de Telecomunic. Aeronautiques Swisse (SITA) R
Minus: value corr.of particip. in capital of Mondial Bodrum - Turkey (358,598) (358,598).
' I '

515, OTHER LONGTERM FNANGAL IVESTMENTS __Somsiors__ 120ty
in 000 RSD _in 000 RSD

Membersh;p in Societe International de Teiecomumcat;ons o . i
Aeronaunques Swisse (SITA) i R 5397 . - - 5281
fo empioyees o - 230,232 254,174{‘?
‘ e LE9 ]
Recahebice pumhase ofsof;dantyhousmg e
Totatgmss T = ST
: " : IC )
_(2889) ,
(105,532) (113, 532)
128,083 136,260

Receivables from employees for long-term loans for purchase and tenant purchaser of apariments
as of 30/09/2018 amount to RSD 232.531 thousand ((including current maturities in the amount of
RED 2,689 thousand). Effects of adjustment to fair value amount to total of RSD 105.618 thousand
(RSD 105.532 thousand for the part of long-term receivables from employees and RSD 86 thousand
for the part referring to current maturities of long-term receivables). The aforementioned relates to
loans to employees for meeting the housing needs granted for a period of 20-40 years. The estimate
of the fair value of housing loans as of 31/12/2017 is performed by a certified assessor by projection
of future cash flows from collection of receivables for housing loans using discount rates; from 5,0%
to 18%, depending on whether and in what intervais housing loans are revalued or contracted with
currency clause, whether they have contracted interest rate or are contracted without interest rate.

31 b. OTHER LONG- TERM RECEVABLES o © 30/09/2018 311212017
. In00ORSD T in 000 RSD
greement on debtrescheduling a7l 41263
37,791 41,263

Receivables flom buyers based ot
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30,2018
32, MATERIAL, SPARE PARTS, TOOLS AND SUPPLIES 30/09/2018 3111212017

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Basiomaioral e ersee
943
Toolsandsupplies . 63057 538

‘Value correction ofmaterlal and spare parls stock (110} (1 ,008}):
158,354 93,771

3 ARG e SUOOROTR | S1H202017
_in00ORSD | in 000 RSD.

Goodsm rarehot

34ADVANCES PAIDFORSTOCKANDSERVICES ~ 30/09/2018 31/12/2017
| ! : e e e e SRR 2000 RSD
Advances f0r sennces m the COUﬂtTy S 75 614 . 33086
Advances for foreignservices 2685 1506

Advance value correcton (17,739) d
' ’ ' ‘ 60,560 34592

35.BUYERSINTHECOUNTRY " 3000/2018 311202017
= S —— 000 RSD] 000 FSD
éTotai balance of recewabies from buyers in the cou ry-gross 714885, 658,159

co'rrectson of the premous Pperiod (231 434) (231,744)§
e correctmn of the current period ; (22,81 9)
Total balance of value correcion L (254,253) (231,894)
' 460,432 426,265

Receivables from the buyers in the country on 30/08/2018 amount RSD 714.685 thousand, of which
to undue receivables refer RSD 413.749 thousand, due receivables up to 60 days RSD 19.334
thousand and due receivables over 60 days RSD 281.602 thousand.

Total value correction of receivables from buyers in the country in the amount of RSD 254253
thousand mainly relates to value correction of receivables from sued domestic buyers in the amount
of RSD 212.191 thousand and other domestic buyers RSD 42.062 thousand.
36. BUYERS ABROAD o - 30/09/2018 3111212017
E T 006 RS TO00RED
T T — el
(10,938} - (10,290)
e f e (592)'_:
§T?.t?,'m‘??".ﬁ'f’"?ﬁ.?f“{ﬁ“.‘!" correction e (10’933)2? (1 0,882)
IR o o 1,051,568 | 692,419

Receivables from foreign buyers on  30/09/2018 amount RSD 1.062.506 thousand (undue
receivables RSD 627.489 thousand, due receivables up to 60 days RSD 236.436 thousand and due
receivables over 60 days RSD 188.571 thousand). Total value correction of receivables from foreign
buyers in the amount of RSD 10.938 thousand relates to value correction of receivables from sued
domestic buyers in the amount of RSD 6.153 thousand and other foreign buyers RSD 4.785
thousand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018 S
37 OTHER RECEIVABLES 30/09/2018

311212017

in OOD RSD:

Receivables flom buyers in the countryfor defaultinterest . 8066

‘Receivables for interest on term deposit and deposn on calt ‘ 14 071,

Receivables fom employees 2123

Other receivables e o e o e < e 61350 |
Receivables for overpaid incometax

in 000 RSD.

4,909
31,281,
1,837
146,733

Total recewabies gross

84,760 :

- Value corr. from buyers for default |nterest of | pre\nous years o :
Value corr from buyers for defaultinterestof the curentyear =~ (@
s'—Vah"Je correctlon ofthe earlier penocf Ty
s correcﬁon ftha corront penod e e et e

—@76),
)
(570)

(2,359)?

~Value corrofother receivables T T T (a3s0)
: : (4.187)

(3,223)

81,443

81,537

~ 30/09/2018

. SHORT-TERM CREDITS AND LOANS IN THECOUNTRY |

311212017

_1n 000 RSDy

ort-term loans to employees (wint stores, heating means -6 mon

_Wm 000 RSD

80, 386

3111212017

in 000 RSD

ort-term time deposits

Currentmatuntaes ofiong-term housmg loans to employees

2, 667 692

- 5335

Currentmatunhes oflong—term mvestmenim SITA S -' SRR

1,678,583

2,680, 335

Ad;usﬂnent of fasr value of current matur:taes of housmg loans tc:j ' (86):'%3 :

(344)

- ' 1,678,497

2,679,991

Short-term time deposits with balance on 30/09/2018 are disclosed in the amount of RSD 1,675,240

thousand, and relate to foreign currency and dinar deposits, for the period of six months.
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

‘41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30/09/2018 3111212017
Caneniaseeunt-InRED T ey aaos
Currentaccoum in foretgn currency - T 4045219 2238 882}
Treasury e s
Other funds ™~ L U T &

Total cash-balance 4,416,804 2,386,010,

42. PREPAYMENTS ANDACCRUED INCOME =~ 30/09/2018 3171212017
e R A A e 000 RED
27, 22133

‘Prepatd insurance costs for the future per:od '
Prepaid other costs for the future p' i
;Prepald other costs for the future period - _
| venues for the currentperiod |

[ 31!12'129?1'7'

43.CAPITAL o -36)69:2018 =

i

: WO00RSD| T O0ORSD — n 000 RSD1
‘Share capit‘éi (1stissue shares) - = o000 e -'20 573, sm e _.:20 573 sm
;Share capital (2nd issue shares) ' e S 213 72,313
‘Share capital (3rd issue shares) Lo e T g i282,643 iiosama3 o n T

‘Share capital (ath issue shares) T er212 87,212
Share capztal(TotaHsttodthis uasf:ares) i L 21,015,678 442,068

%Issue premium (2nd issue shares) 108,580/ 109 580i -

Issue premium (3rd isstie shares)

flssue premium (4th issue shares)

'Revaluation reserves -

Actuariat gains

Undlstributed proﬁtfrom operauon for 2017)

Undistr, proﬁt 2018 (Transfver of rev.reser.in proﬁt, for alienation of
ﬁxassets)
Undlstr:buted proﬁt from operahon for lhe current2018

(3.265,674)

" 2776013'“" 2.776.01

S -'_3'36,%34',5635 4026226 29,708,442

On 29/08/2018, JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport repurchased 442,361 own shares from
dissenting shareholders, at price of RSD 1,862.57 per share (totally RSD 735,456 thousand).
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

44. SHARE CAPITAL

On the basis of the Law on amendments and supplements to the Law on right to free shares and
financial compensation realized by the citizens in the privatization process, the Company was
obliged to carry out a change of legal form until 30 September 2010 and disclose its capital in
shares of a certain nominal value of the based on the adjusted carrying value of equity. in 2010, on
the basis of Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Serbia No.023-448/2010-1,
recommendations were made to the Company, fo make a selection of the best consultant who will
assess the market value of equity and provide assistance in preparing and carrying out the legal
changes of the form from a public company into a stock company.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 17 June 2010 adopted the Decision No.023-
4432/2010 on the legal form of the Company from a public company into a closed joint stock
company.

The change is registered at the Business Registers Agency by Decision No. BD 68460/2010 dated
22 June 2010, subscribing capital in tofal amount of EUR 214,556,965, which on the date of entry
was RSD 20,573,610 thousand.

In the Central Securities Depository, on 7 July 2010, was registered 34,289,350 shares with a
nominal vafue of RSD 600 per share, which were an 31.12.2010 in the property of the Republic of
Serbia.

In accordance with the Law on right to free shares and financial compensation realized by the
citizens in the privatization procedure ("Official Gazetie" no. 123/07 and 30/10) on 09 December
2010 based on the Decision of the Government of the Republic of Serbia No. 023- 9103/2010-1,
right to transfer 16.85% of the Company ownership acquired citizens of the Republic of Serbia,
employees and ex-employees of the Company.

On 21 January 2011, the Company's Assembly adopted the Decision No. 21-2/1 on the conversion
of the Company from closed into open joint stock company. The change was registered at the
Business Registers Agency by Decision No. BD 765/2011 dated 24 January 2011.

The capital structure after the transfer of ownership of the data from the Central Securities
Depository and Clearing House on 25 January 2011 was as follows:

| Share capital 25/01/2011 (transition fo open joint Vailue in thousand % of

ock company) RSD Number of shares particip.

licofSerbia -~ T Tt 47 4071930 0 28,511,988 83.15%,
574,004 958,67 5

(+}
2892413 0 4.820,689.0 - 14.06%
20,573,610 34,289,350  100.00%

in the period X 2018, the Republic of Serbia (RoS) increased the capital through in-kind
contribution of market value in the amount of RSD 1,160.732 thousand (iand in the amount of RSD
423,555 thousand and real estate - garage and car park in the amount of RSD 737,177 thousand).

Based on the afore-mentioned increase of the capital RoS registered the second, third and fourth
issue of shares and thus increased share capital of the Company by 736,779 ordinary shares of
single nominal value of RSD 800.00 and total value of RSD 442 068 thousand.

The share capital structure and amount on 30/09/2018 and 31/12/2017 was as following:

46



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

44. SHARE CAPITAL {cont'd)

. ... . S0m92018 . 3Az2017
Shareholder . Valuein Numberof = %of Valuein Numberof | % of

thousand o\ res  particip. . Tousand - ores | particip.
RSD paricip. | Rsp |  pasiep.,

ep“bhc °f Sefb‘a 17548391 29247317 8350%  17,108323 28510538 83.15%

Domeshc and fore:gn ' : 3
: 1 1 315,172 9.46%: L 962%.
natwaipersons - eoet9d BRI B4R qormes  szesorr U

;Domes*‘c and foreign 653232 1088720 3.11% 3.85%
legalpersons ioooT92418 1,320,604

824952 1374920 393% 6965025 1160041 338%
21,015,678 35,026,129 100.00% 20,573,610 34,289,350 100.00%

Custodyentiies -

Revaluation reserves | .~ -
- basedonthe - Actsaral

450THERCGMP°NENTSOFTHECAP AL ot evaluation of property, |~ gains - |

.Baiance °n 01 ’01,2017 e e et 4’120’259 et bt A S e ot
.Legal reserves e : R B R

1,133,867

Statutory reserves i
Revaiuat;on resenes forland' eI R
Revaiuation reserves for butldings
Revaiuaixon reserves for eqmpment A

Decrease of revaluation reserves based on estimation - - -
gcrease of revaation resenves. based on alienation: e e st

5,254,126 596,114

iiﬁgﬁ_l res erves =
|Statutory reserves
‘Revalualion reserves for land -
Re_va!yatmn h{e;;gﬁnres for bunldmgs
Revaiuéhon reserves for eqmpment .'

Decrease ofrevaluation reserves b sed on estimation
Decrease of. revaluatxon Tesene :
’ofsupphes -

- (15,168)

§."t,ctuarlal gams on resenves for retzrement benefits - - _
Recogmhon of DTL (deferred tax iablhtles) charged to__ n SRRy IR RN ,
revaiuatlon reserves. : : _ i

‘Balance on 30/09/2018 ' . 6356456 580,946 17482

Reserves are created in accordance with the Company Articies of Association.
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46. NON-DISTRIBUTED PROFIT ' 30/09/2018  31/2/2017

.. in0OORSD _ in00ORSD
Initilbalance 0101 3267110 177523
.Correction of initial balance - -
Corrected initiaibalance 0101 3267410 177§ 235

D.stnbut:on S undictibaied pmm for deend T (1 964 780) (503 368)?

“Transfer to statutory res efves

Pammpano ofemp!oyees in proﬁtdlstributlon ”(2 000) o

Nethi’bﬁt of the current penod ' _ A 2,?76,013 . 3,265&?4
Net proﬁtcorrection e
?otal nei prof‘t of the current period L _ Tl a778013 3,265,674
Decmon on dlstnbutaon of mterim dmdend ‘ 0 0l
Undlsigil;ﬁt;d prof‘ t cf the current perlod IR 2,77‘;"013 S 3,265,674
Proﬁt of the previous years, resulting from ransferof revaluatlon S '
reserves into proﬁt at semng fixed assets |n the current year 4885 1 436

Correci;on ofundlstr:buted proﬁtofeamerpenod _' o T L 0 - g

Totai und|str|buted proflt of earher years 4,885 1 4365

Uﬂdistributed _prof‘ it

2780898 3,267,110

Total balance of undistributed profit on 30/09/2018 in the amount of RSD 2,780.898 thousand is a
result of the realized net profit from the current period, i.e. I-1X 2018 in the amount of RSD 2.776.013
thousand, increased for RSD 4,885 thousand on the bases of transfer of revaluation reserves into
ravenue for alienated fixed assets within the relevant peried. Undistributed profit from the previous
year, 2017 in the amount of RSD 3,267,110 thousand, was completely distributed by the Decision of
the Shareholders Assembly of the Company from 28/06/2018 (RSD 1,964,780 thousand for the
dividend of the RoS and other shareholders; RSD 1,102,330 thousand for statutory reserves and
RSD 200,000 thousand for the partticipation of employees in the profit).

© 30/08/2018 31112!2917*
inO0ORSD  in 000 RSD|

Resemes for“i'érmma[ wages 548175 48021
'Reserves for jubstee awards o 79,839 83 358'
mesnons for iltlgatmns S e 99, 076, . 96 578§

224000 227,956

48



JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018
48. CHANGES ON LONG-TERM RESERVES

Changes in long-term provisions for retirement benefits, jubilee awards and litigations in the period
I-1X of 2018, compared to 31/12/2017 are shown in the {ollowing table:

CHANGES ON LONG TERM RESERVES T:;";L“:' b‘i‘::j‘::s Tl etions
Ba'ance on 01012017 42946 82890 125836 80496
Reserves d”F'"Q theyear o C 7644 12289 19933 20010
Canceliatxon durmg theyear o L e R il
Pay~off during the year _ {1,677) (11,821} {13,498) (3,930)§
Balanceon31/2/2017 48,021  © 83,358 131,379 96,576
‘Balance on 01/01/2018 48021 83358 131379 96576
Reserves duringtheyear . 0 - 0 S0 5000,
eActuanai gains - - - . 7 N

L (25500)

Cancel[at;on dunng the_year

F uring the > year
Balance on 30109]2618 .

125014 99,076

Casars

49. THE ASSUMPTIONS USED WHEN MAKING CALCULATION OF RESERVES FOR
RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND JUBILEE BONUSES AND CALCULATION OF RESERVES

: a) The assumg ons’ useo' wben makmg ca fCUIatmn AT
ret:rement beneftts and ;ub:lee bonuses .;f.; B

450% . 450% |
1.00% 100% |
o 1,50% 4 B50%

Dzscouat rate

. Retirement -
: bonuses

in ooo S5
42,948 Ligs
1,933
5 JU g

31 12!2016

2 interest expense
3.Costofcurrentwork = - a0
past work

ey )
(1677  (11.821)

ncelfation of pro
Com pany

ons during 2017 in the business books of the

7 Total net change in the am nt reserved in 201 7 (1 +2+3+4+5+6)

8075

“8 Balance of n 31!1 2I 2017 (1 +7}
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50. LONG-TERM LOANS 30/09/2018  31/12/2017
e e e e R
...511,948 673487

L 87476) | (98.752)
574,470 574,735

T Remainng
© .Dateof -~ amount = 30/08/2018 311212017
maturity ~ 30/09/2018  inO0ORSD  in 000 RSD

SRR - Annual
51. LONG-TERM LOANS ' interest

Long-term credits abroad

European Investment Bank _ 2025 515221779 611946 _ 673487

Total long-term credits (a+b) - U UBA5221779 611,946 673487

o3 37476 . 08752

ofjong o
483669360 574470 574,735

Long-term loans abroad reported on 30/09/2018 in the amount of RSD 611.946 thousand (EUR
5.152.217,79, of which in 2018 it is due for paymeni EUR 315.524,19 or RSD 37.476 thousand),
relate to the remaining obligations under the Agreement on financing the project of urgent
rehabilitation of transport concluded on 13.12.2001 between the EIB and the Republic of Serbia.
Under the said contract, the Company was granted a loan in the amount of EUR 13.000.000 for
investment and rehabilitation of the Airport infrastructure. The loan was granted with a repayment
period up to 2025, with an interest rate of 5.16% for the first tranche of 3,000,000.00 EUR, 4.85%
for the second tranche of EUR 3,000,000.00 and 4.07% for the third tranche of 7,000,000.00 EUR.
Repayment of the first tranche of the loan shall be made in 31 equal semi-annual instalments
starting from 05/12/2007; the second tranche is repayable in 30 equal semi-annual instalments
starting from 20/02/2009, while the third franche began to be repaid from 20/06/2010 in 32
instaiments.

Principle . Non-booked interest
130/09/2018  31/12/2017 . 30/08/2018 - 3112/2017 |
in00ORSD in000RSD  inGOORSD  in 000 RSD.

UL RS 6506
24,189
719,737
15,285

10,833 10,838
.62 11967
611,946 673,487 92,602 110,698
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52 O}‘HER SHORT TERM FINANCIAL LIABILETIES 30/09/2018 322017
| ... ... [nOOORSD in 000 RSD.
Current malurifies oflong-term loan EIN 37,476 98,752
s g et e, I o g e U g8782

R o T B
mOOO RSD, __ in000RSD:

. 9566 . 12878
148,216 38,179
SRt 24 908

30/09/2018 31/12/2017.

inQ00RSD 000 RSD

‘Suppilers in the country- for investments in progress
Suppilers in the oountry»fcr equment -

187,883 401,299

PPLIERS ABROAD . . = TTUTTTUS0/09/2018 - 34H212017)
' in 000 RSO,

Supp 305 _maci-forsemces .
QSupphers abroad—forequnpment .
8,673 6,398

0 30/00/2018 . 31M21201T

OTHER LIABILITIES FROMOPERATION
in ooo RSD in 000 RSD@

Charged purchase on benaifofoer companies
! om operaion 2.202 i
TOﬂ’[_e'r-_}_i'éb'i'ﬁﬁés_'ﬁéfﬁz.bpémﬁoﬂ.‘fadﬂﬁ;é T T T T T _ AT 99,284

in 000 RSDm 000 RSD
o 110 141 ;

57 OTHERSHORT-TERM LIABLITES

331 1126 S
41448 0 a2p

?L:abaimes from gross dl\ndend of other sharehe!ders for 2017
2,130,912 152,802

'Other short-term liabilities - -

30/09/2018 . 31112/2017
in000RSD __in 000 RSD_
e

58, Liabilities for VAT~
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59, LIABILITIES FOR OTHER TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND FEES 30/09/2018 31122017,

in 0600 RSD in 000 RSD
Llablllhes rineemetax R e S 2 7285
Correctlon ofiiab!ilheéf T 'é"féknfrb'i’ﬁ _p'fé\iyééi‘é e 0
Llabilmes for axes, cu's o sand Otherte\nes e e e 717
: 'buttons and other!ewes e T I 12045

132,775 15,490

66, LIABILITIES FORINCOME TAX -structiresosrots  31m2i2017
| “in000RSD ___in 000 RSD.

Balance on 01/01 ofthe curt
Correc‘uon oflncome tax

'Specuﬁed mcome taxhab:lltles forthe current year 488,166 529,090§

Correc’uon ofsncometaxhabefmes R : S '” AR '
;Specn‘ied income taxilabtlmes for the current year—total 488,196 529,000§
IR e e (2,728) - (287,360)

B T (238,912))
‘Advance p‘g‘ypento_mcom_e_ L yee7ges). o
iLiabiIities for income tax 120,371 2,7235

3Pald income taxirahilttles
%Pre-payment ofincome ta

3111212017

~ aomsi018
in 600 RSD

in D00 RSD —

Taxes contnbu‘ao

 dseges 163837

30/09/2018 - 311212017

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD:

103 g
629,035
L 1 5946

Gsven guargn;ges ‘RSD :
Given guarantees - foretgn currency

Soiadantyfunds from employee salanes _ SR s G BRR i i
Total off-balance assets and liabilities 750,104 668,417

Received guarantees in Dinars in the amount of RSD 629.035 thousand mainly relate to guarantees
received from suppliers for good performance or guarantee for fault repair within the warranty period.
Received foreign currency guarantees in the amount of RSD 115.846 thousand mainly relate to
guaraniees received from foreign suppliers for good performance, for fault repair within the warranty
period or for recovery of advance payments.
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018
53. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS

;Accounting value . Fair value in ;Accounting value  Fair value in Hierarchy of
ASSETS | inOQOBRSD © Q00RSD | inOOORSD ° OOORSD © fair value Valuation technigues and inputs
L 30/08/20M8  : 30/00F2018 ¢ 322017 3122007 - lewels

N AR SR S SR Sl AR S GRS B SN SR

IAssessment was canied out by
icertified assessor with balance on :
i31112/2016 (the Institute for economic |
‘research-Belgrade). During
;assessment of the property the
‘following methodology were used: for
; .apartments - methodology of direct
-price comparison; for properties of
'specific purpose, functionally
connected and used for business
actiity - cost method, t.e. substitution |
‘method, for the objects built in recent |
?years-construcmn costs; for older
ibuildings-experience method dependmg
on construction type and level of
equipment. Equipment is assessed by
market method and by a method of
substitution of amortised value. For the |
:equioment of with reliably indicated H
‘market value by direct comparison with |
‘achieved sale prices in the market, H
Sasssessmer;t is made by market
imethod, i.e. by a methed of direct pnce
CQmpaI'ISOﬂ.

Fixedassets | 26,300,890 26300890  24737,950 | 24737,969  Lewel3

: Assessment ofa cemﬁed assessor

:Estimation the management is that
tewel 2 ithey are not refundable-banks in
‘bankruptey

in capital of
‘other legal
persons

: 0,5%, _5 0% for housmg :

loans wrth cun'ency ciause and interest
“irate G,5%: 6,28% for housmg foans; 'wnthﬂ
: \«alue adjusteci semr—armualiy and 8, 5%

Other long-

, : , |Estimation of collectibility by
ferm 37,791 imanagement according to IAS 39

receivables

o . Estimation of collectibility by -
management acconiin (o] IAS 39
iEstimation of col|ect;brixty by
management accord:ng to 1AS 39 o

81,443

§rece§vabies

The above table includes only financial resources, because the Company has no financial liabilities that are
disclosed after initial recognition at fair value.
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS September 30, 2018

64. FINANCGIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financiai risk management objectives

Financial risks include market risk (foreign exchange, interest rate and price change risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Financial risks are reviewed on a timely basis and are preferably avoided by
reducing the Company's exposure fo these risks. The Company does not use any financial
instruments to avoid the impact of financial risk to the business operations because such
instruments are not widely used, and there is no organized market for such instruments in the the
Republic of Serbia.

- MARKET RISK

in its operations, the Company is exposed to financial risks from changes in foreign exchange rates
and changes in interest rates. Market risk exposures are examined through sensitivity analysis.
There were no significant changes in the Company's exposure to market risk, or in the manner in
which the Company operates or measure this risk.

a) Currency risk {foreign exchange risk)

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through cash and cash equivalents,
shor-term financial investments, accounts receivable from buyers, liabilities from long-term loans
and liabilities to foreign suppliers.

The Company does not use special financial instruments to protect against risk, considering that in
Serbia such instruments are not in common use.

The stability of the economic environment in which the Company operates, largely depends on the
measures of government in the economy, inciuding the establishment of appropriate legal and
regulatory framework.

Accounting values of financial resources and liabilities in RSD thousand, disclosed in foreign

currency on date of reporting in the Company are the following:
in 000 RSD

Currency description RoisROTE 1 aiH2i017 R

' 30/09/2018 . 311212017

gross et
4553475 4425444

| 404860 494,860 477,141

ER 6,505,475, 6,384,75:

usD 477,141 |

CHF . | 329

eBP : 93, 630

Total dinar counter-val.of g
.assets and liab. stated in . 7,000,757

| 678,847
éfor.c_ur_rer_l_c'y' BRI -

4,903,535

H

Vaiue ofassets andliab. 4 eopans' 1020047 2231174 1,620,507 . 516902
statedindinars 1 et

Total | 8,656,641 . 7,262,740

78029811 T " | 6524132 833696, 1,195749

By analysis of the currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as of 30/09/2018, along with
the balance as of 31/12/2017, it can be concluded that
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
a} Currency risk {foreign exchange risk) {cont'd)

currency clause are higher than the contracted financial liabilities in foreign currencies Financial
liabilities contracted in foreign currency are generally of long-term nature.

The Company is sensitive mainly to changes in the exchange rate of the Euro (EUR) and U.S.
Dollar {USD).

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of the Company to increase and decrease in RSD
rate of 10%, in comparison to the foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only
cutstanding receivables and liabilities in foreign currency and shows their change of 10% at the end
of the reporting period in exchange rates. A positive number in the table indicates an increase of the
result in the current period when RSD strengthens against the currency

in question. in the case of weakening of RSD by 10% compared to the foreign currency, the effect
on the current period would be negative.

in 000 RSD
EUR influence : USDinfluence CHF influence GBP influence

Changes 1000% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00% . 10.00% -10.00% |

ety T aAE T
‘Gainfloss 576813 -49486 83 : 9

in 000 RSD
sweror

GBP influence

'EURinflence ~ USDinfluence | CHFinfluence

‘Changes "10.00% "-10.00% 10.00% "-10.00% 10.00% ' -10.00% ' 10.00% ' -10.00%

e ammen g g
Gainfloss L -374,780 47701 82 44

b) Risk of interest rate change
The Company is exposed fo interest rate risk on assets and liabilities with floating interest rate.

The Company has placed cash and cash equivalents in the group of interest-bearing financial assets
with variable interest rates, because it contracted with banks "a vista" interest of variable character,
depending on the amount in current accounts and the reference interest rate.

The risk of changes in interest rates on the Company does not represent a significant risk, because
the categories of financial instruments that have contractual interest are generally defined with fixed

interest rate.

Financial instruments classified by categories of interest and non-interest resources are disclosed in
the following summary:
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {conf’d)

b} Risk of interest rate change (cont'd)

30/09/2018

3111212017

_In 000 RSD

Financial assets-net

§Share in capital of

othlegentites e

Other Iong—term

{Receivables for interests

Total

val.correction netamount:

Totat

val.correction netamount.

378,684

37,791

1,777,191

85,610

(378,683)

(265,191)

37,791,
receivables T

1,512,000

(4,167)

‘Shortterm fin.invest.
Non-interest-tota!

Fixed .nte rESt rate A PR 5 1 1

fm :nves{ments - 234585

Long term -

Short tferm
ﬁn anvestments

- 47,393

2,326,669

(648,041)

1,678,628

378,684

1,361,460

84,760

(378,683)

41,263

(242,776)

80,3868

(324 682)

. (105532)

129,053]

1,678,583

(86)

{

249,842

1,678,497: 2,680,335

(1 13 532)

{344)

(3 223)

41,263 |

1113534f

81,537 .

80,386

1 321 371§

i 135260§

2,679,991

Fixed-tota I

1,913,168

(105,618)

2,930,177

(113,926) -

Floating mterest rate

Cashandwshequ

Floating-total

4416804

4,416,804

1 ,ao7,550§;

4,416,804,

4,416,804

2,386,010

2,386,010 '

2,816,251

© 2386010,

0

2,386,010,

‘8,656,641

- (753,659)

. 7,802,982

7.262,740

(738,608)

6,524,132

Financial liabilities

SR

Nondinterest .

L22ase

Non-interest-total

t !lab

221,750

221,750

37476

37.476

98,752

s22s2 -
522262 ..

s74470  STATSS

522262
522,262

98,752,

Fixed-totai

. 611,846

;Float;ng interest rate

Hoating-total

0

611,94

| 573,487

0 0

0

. 873487

v

0

0

H

7

833,696

833,696

1,195,749

0

1,186,749
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {cont’d)

v}  Risk of price change
The Company estimates that there is no risk of price change, because financial instruments of the
Company are not subject to price change on the market.
The Company does not operate with securities that are subject to price change in securities market.
Furthermore, the Company has no turnover of goods subject to price change. The greatest item in
turnover of goods is kerosene which has a transit goods treatment.

Il - CREDIT RISK
The Company estimates that the greatest of the risks affecting financial instruments is credit risk,
representing the risk that debtors will not be in position fo settle their debts in full and in due time,
which would result in the financial loss for the Company. The Company's exposure fo this risk is
Ilmrted to the amount of receivables from buyers at the balance sheet date.

S!ructure of receivables from buyers Mm m participat
.. [nOOORSD | fon . inOOORSD . ion
JirSeibia i 739333 1347%, 204823 1504%

JatTehnlka

Internat;onai e
3 Serbta—Catenng !td e S
EAwogenex Hd.

strian-branch : -
‘Othér domesticbuyers TR U SO Y SR
‘T tal domestic huyers
Montenegro Adines

305%
270%:
3.73%,

F'Y D“ba‘ BT
Pegasus

:Cther f forelgn buyers
Total ferelgn buyers

Total gross rece;vables from domestlc and foreign buy 77,

TOtal va‘ue mrre(:tlon e e g e 0 A e AR A <t el A e
Total net recelvab!es

Gross receivables from domestic and foreign buyers on 30/09/2018 amount RSD 1.777.191
thousand (RSD 1.361.460 thousand on 31/12/2017)}, so the credit risk remains constant. To reduce
this risk, the Company regularly manitors the realisation of the collection, analyses the vaiue of the
collection achieved within the contracted period, collection with exceeded contracted period, the
balance and age struciure of outstanding receivables as per buyers.

The greater the percentage share of individual buyers in total receivables the higher credit risk,

especially if the buyers with great share in the balance of receivables also have unstable liquidity and
on that basis, exceeded contracted payment deadline.
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

1 - CREDIT RISK {cont'd)

Receivables from _domestic buyers for goods and services on 30/09/2018 in the amount of RSD
714.685 thousand, accounted for 40,21% of folal receivables from buyers for goods and services.
Total balance of value adjustment of receivables from domestic buyers was RSD 254.253 thousand
(RSD 231.434 thousand charged to results of previous years and RSD 22.818 thousand charged to
results of the current period), so the net value of receivables from domestic buyers amounts to RSD
460.432 thousand.

Receivables from foreign buyers for goods and services amounted to RSD 1.062.506 thousand,
which makes 59,79% of total receivables for goods and services. Total balance of value adjustment
of receivables from foreign buyers was RSD 10.938 thousand (all charged to results of previous
years), so the net value of receivables from foreign buyers amounts to RSD 1.051.568 thousand.

The Company performs the reconciliation of assets and liabilities annually, with balance as of 30.11.
of the current year, or more times during the year for specific clients, if the need arises. The
Company made reconciliation of its assets and liabilities on 30/06/2018.

The Company has reconciled receivables with buyers on 30/06/2018 for 57,10% of receivables. Out
of 42,90% of non-reconciled receivables of domestic clients on 30/06/2018, 2,58% refers to
undisputed receivables and 40,32% to OIS without response (of which 13,91% refers to sued clients
with no answer to OIS).

As for foreign client receivables, the Company reconciled 38,92% of foreign receivables as of
30/06/2018. Unreconciled receivables mainly refer o receivables with sent and not responded OIS.
On 31/08/2018, receivables with Air Serbia and Montenegro Airlines were reconciled.

30/09/2018 oo 314202017

e S e TTwosoRsD et gooRsD @E“L‘af["' ==
Undus receivables from buyers-uncorrected - 1041248 . 5859%  B12675  59.69%
Undue receivables from buyers—ccrrected 0 N g00% o 000%
Total undue receivables -~ . 1,081,248°  5B89% 812,676  59.69%
Dus receivables up to 60 days-uncorscted 265770 1439% 185573 1143%
Due receivables up fo 69 days-corrected o : o 7 DOO% 0 OOOA

Totldue receables upto60days 25770’ asws  1ssaTs 114%%
D“e fece"’ab'es over 60 days ““C"""-‘-‘*Ed TR __.’2 10%.. o 1504 435 ” 05%
:Due receivables over 60 days-corrected 265,191 14.92% 242,776 17, 83%-
;?otal due receivables over 60 days Cneen T ABOATE 27 02% - 393212 28 88%
Total recewables-gross - 1,777,194 100 00% 1,361,460 1 00. DO%
Totalvalue correcnon ' 265,491 L B '-2'4_2,776 ' /
Total recewa bles net (gross*orrecbon) 1,512,000 1,11 8,684;

Undue receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 30/08/2018,
amounted to RSD 1.041.248 thousand {and on 31/12/2017 they amounted to RSD 812675
thousand).

Due receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 30/08/2018 not older
than 60 days, amounted to RSD 255.770 thousand (and on 31/12/2017 they amounied to RSD
155.573 thousand).

Due receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, that on 30/09/2018 were
older than 60 days, amounted to RSD 480.173 thousand {and on 31/12/2017 they amounted to RSD
393.212 thousand).
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64, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
Il - CREDIT RISK (cont'd)

Due corrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services older than 60
days as on 30/09/2018 amounted to RSD 265.191 thousand, of which RSD 242.372 thousand is at
the cost of value correction of receivables from previous years and RSD 22.819 thousand is at the
cost of value correction of the current period (due corrected receivables from domestic and foreign
buyers for goods and services older than 60 days on 31/12/2017 amounted to RSD 242,776
thousand).

Due uncorrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services older than 60
days, on 30/09/2018, amounted to RSD 214.982 thousand {and on 31/12/2017 they amounted to
RSD 150.436 thousand). These receivables are not corrected due {o the assessment of certainty of
collection of those receivables.

Hi - LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK

Liguidity is the ability of the Company to settle its liabilities on the terms of their maturity.

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management is on the management of the company,
which has established appropriate management system for short-term, medium-term and long-term
financing of the Company as well as liquidity management. By continuous monitoring of planned and
actual cash flows, the Company maintains adequate cash reserves, and also maintains adequate
maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables present details of outstanding contractual maturities of financial resources. The
amounts shown are based on the undiscounted cash flows arising on the basis of financial resources
based on the earliest date on which the Company will be able to collect receivables.

Toatoriy o rameidisssets T T T T i T Sizhe
in 000 RSD in000RSD |
‘Less than30days .~ . - _ 5999320 | 3552969
B Ry = araed
S mene T 242,254

H
i

121,060 7 126367
7,902,982 6,524,132

The average time to collect receivables from customers in the period I-1X 2018 amounted {o 50 days
{2017 48 days}.

Maturity of receivables forinterests . 3000922018 311202017
* _In00ORSD _Im00ORSD -
22187 - - 8888

Lessthan0days
1-3months

‘\ 22,137 36,190

The stated maturity of interest receivables are contained within disclosure of maturity of financial
assets.

The following tables present details of outstanding contractual maturities of the Company. The

amounts shown are based on the undiscounted cash flows arising on the basis of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company will be required to settle such obligations.
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {cont’d}

- LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK {cont'd)

S'Ma't'ur'it'yof'financialziabmties L L i
e T L
lessthan30days 221750 522262
s nand o , | B —— T
Biomente e IR RS
™ T S~
.~ T
T e e

in the total liabilities of the Company the fargest share have liabilities based on long-term loans in the
amount of RSD 611.946 thousand, of which in 2018 becomes due RSD 37.476 thousand.

Liabilities towards suppliers on 30 IX 2018 are expressed in the amount of RSD 221.750 {on
December 31, 2017: RSD 522,262 thousand). Suppliers do not charge interest on arrears to due
liabilities, whereby the Company, in accordance with the policy of financial risk management, settles
due liabilities to suppliers within the agreed period. Average time of settlement of liabilities towards
suppliers in the period 11X 2018 is 47 days (in 2017 it was 40 days).

-’i\"né't' ety of il féfl e ey T o ST
_inQOORSD  in000RSOD

} Smonths i

‘ 1 5 years
OWfﬁ"eYea"{

92,602 110,699

Capital risk management

The aim of capital risk management is provision of such a structure of capital that will secure safety
in operating, liquidity and solvency, at the same time maximizing profit increase of the owner,
through the optimization of debt and equity. In addition to its own capital, which consists of core
capital, reserves and undistributed profit, the Company uses the borrowed funds in the form of long-
term loans. Free cash flow from current accounts, the Company invests in the form of short-term
deposits.

Indicators of indebtedness of the Company as at the end of the reporting current period of 2018 and
the end of 2017 were as follows:

30/09/2018 311212017
iN000RSD  in 000 RSD'

1 indebtedness (ADP432+ADPA43) 6196 673487

2 Cashand casﬁmeduwa!ents (ADP 068) ' '4 416,804 2 386 010
I GROSS INDEBTEDNESS ({1-2) {3,804,858) {1,712,523)

btednesslcapital (ifs ) -0.1238 -0.0576

financial investment (ADP osz) " - 1,725,890 2,760,377
i NETINDEBTEDNESS (1-4) ' (5,530,748) (4,472,900)
5 Capital (ADP 401) 30,734,668 29,708,442,

| 6 Ratioindebtednessfcapital (W5) 01800 -0.1506
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65. MANAGEMENT EARNINGS

The Company paid remuneration (salaries and contributions) to key management, including
members of the Supervisory Board, members of the Audit Commission and the General Assembly of
Sharehoiders and Executive directors and Department directors (on 30/02/2018: 23 members; on
30/09/2017: 25 member). in the period -iX 2018 RSD 40.447 thousand was paid in the gross
amount (in the period |-IX 2017: RSD 36,979 thousand).

;Ma nagement earnings 30/09/2018 I-X 2018 §%3010912017 X 2017 .

| Amountin Amountin 000 |
EManagement Number 000 RSD Number RSO :

Participation in profitdistibuton 142, 1846
‘Total management 14 33,322 16 30,390

%C‘.”T'P?*',‘S?ﬁ?“.s,,@‘,F‘..‘,?""D‘P.‘%FS....?W? Supeisc 7 8sTLL 7T 5135

Compensations to members of he Commiss 1 7 548,

‘Compensations 1o member: Share

| Total for rs of the Sup ry Boa :5 :
‘the Commission for Revision and the 9 71 25 ) 6,589
‘Shareholders Assembly.
TOTAL: o 23 . 40447, 25 36,979

66. TAX RISKS

The tax laws of the Republic of Serbia are often differently interpreted and are subject to frequent
changes. The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and
activities of the Company may differ from the management interpretations. The management
believes that tax liabilities are adequately caiculated and recorded.

67. LITIGATIONS

On September 30, 2018, against the Company there are litigations in the amount of RSD 123.378
thousand (excluding the effects of default interest). Amounts of final losses on litigations can be
increased based on default interest up to the completion of the settlement, or until the date of final
payment by disputes. On September 30 2018 the Company has made provisions for potentiai losses
on these litigations in the amount of RSD 99.076 thousand {on 31/12/2017 it was RSD 96,576
thousand) (Notes 47 and 48). According to the assessment of the Company's management on this
basis, they do not expect additional sighificant losses in the future period.

68. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In accordance with IAS 10 "Events after the reporting period”, we found no evidence of other events
that may influence or affect the truthfulness and objectivity of the financial statements for the period
that ended on September 30 2017, or wouid require adjustment of the financial statements,

In Belgrade, 22 October 2018

r, Sasa Vlaisavljevip
ANM
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GENERAL DATA OF THE COMPANY

4i Aéﬁvifyf{:bdéénd de'éc'rip'ﬁ'_d_r;)' T B '.:5'2'2'32;0\'&-' traffic services

'RSD 21.264.302.580 -

1 Number of ordmary S _ares 35 026 129
IS (on 30/09/2018) - :
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. MANAGEMENT DAT

Management members on 30/08/2018:

Master.of Ec'bzhom:c Scuenceé Director of Legal 'Affénrs _
and real estate management of Publnc Enterpnse
.Posta Srhije" :

Bachelor of Economics, Assistant Director Genera‘i' of
the F’rocurement Dlrectorate at the Nat:onal Bank of

fi pro;ects in the Sector of Investments = PE Eiektromreza

- ‘Master of Electﬂca! Engmeermg and :
Tetecommumcatlons Head of telecommumcatlon o

: ocume’ntatron Engmeer“’feiekom Srhija

Master of Economy, Independent Associate for control -
~and analysis of capacity usage, Institute for
Manufacture of Banknotes and Coins of the Natfonal _

Bank of Serbl_a s

Professmnat manager Offacer for. customar care in_

B Eiektro distribucija Ni$, office in Doljevac

" Saga Viaisavijevié, Belgrade

-Bacheior of Sc:enéé'Engmeeﬁng Chief Executive, General
Dtrector of JSC A;rport Nikola Tesla Be!grade o

Raa Ristivojevi¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Econcmy, Executave Dlrector JSC Beigrade Nnkola

Tesla An'port
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2.4, 'REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RULES 0 7 i e

JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, as a member of the Chamber of Commerce of Serbia
adopted the Code of Corporate Governance that was published in the Official Gazette of the
Republic of Serbia, No. 99/2012, as well as on the Company's website www.beg.aero.

The rules of this Code are supplement to the current legislation, so that no provision of the
Code abolishes the legal rule that governs the same question differently. Also, the Code does
not in any way change the meaning, or proper interpretation of the legal provisions. The Code
is within the limits of the law, because it covers matters that are not regulated by law (the so-
called Legal vacuum), or is regulated by dispositive legal norms.

The Code contains two types of rules:

1) Recommendations - rules that a for-profit corporation has to accept and act upon
them, and which can be recognized in the Code by the use of the word "should”;

2) Proposals - rules that are considered desirable practice in corporate governance,
which in the Code can be identified by use of the words "may," "should,"” and so on.

The recommendations contained in this Code outline minimum standards which public joint
stock companies (members of the Serbian Chamber of Commerce) should accept and act on
them, and if they do not do so or do not do so in the manner prescribed by this Code, it is
necessary that they provide an explanation for discrepancy done within the statement on
implementation of the code of corporate governance in accordance with the Law.on
companies. '
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3. AIR TRAFFIC TURNOVER

In the period |-IX 2018 it was achieved total air traffic turnover, as follows:

- 46,528 air movements;
- 4,401,027 passengers and
- 18,817 tons of cargo and mail.

In the period VII-IX 2018 it was achieved fotal air traffic turnover, as follows:
- 18,673 air movements;
- 1,937,275 passengers and
- 6,958 tons of cargo and mail.

34, AIRMOVEMENT TURNOVER /0 i e o

Achieved number of air movements per traffic types in the period I-1X 2018 is shown in the
following table:

Pomestic air-traffic 15 43

international airdraffic-
domestic carriers 25,049 24,863
International air-traffic-

foreign carriers

The data;
2018, which is higher.by:
prescribed in the Reb@iancmg?p

Within carrier pattern - of thé
international air traffic h
international air traffig
0.04% share

In.eomparison to the Iast year there was fall
air'traffic by 3.38% and growth m share of fore
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In international air traffic of domestic carriers total turnover of 24,172 air movements is
achieved which is by 4% lower compared to the same period of the previous year and by 3%
lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan IV for the period |-1X 2018,

The domestic carriers in international air traffic are the following: Air Serbia, Avio SluZba,
Princ Aviation and Air Pink,

NUMBER OF AIR MOVEMENTS I-1X
2018/2017

45,000
40,000
© 35,000
- 30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
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6(4/3)

Montenegro Airlines 2,315 103 11.47 10.72
Lufthansa 2,088 103 10.25 9.47
Wizz Air 2,551 110 12.64 12.92
Austrian Airlines 1,343 103 6.65 6.17
Turkish Airlines 1,163 103 5.76 5.30
Swiss International 975 104 4,83 4.64
Aeroflot 1,089 100 5.40 4.90
Alitalia 540 97 2.68 2.44
Easyjet 226 125 1.12 1.24
Easyjet UK 0 1] 0.00 0.14
Etihad Airways 547 122 2.71 2.99
Polskie Linie LOT 579 134 2.87 3.09
Tarom 574 103 2.84 2.83
Aegean Airlines 384 91 1.80 1.57
Qatar Airways 364 103 1.80 2.45
|Pegasus Airlines 312 104 1.55 1.46
Flydubai 304 98 1.51 2.44
Tunis Air 150 112 0.74 0.74
Germanwings 14 G 0.07 0.00
Norwegian Air 264 103 1.31 1.30
Belavia 168 130 0.83 0.97
Aircairo Company 178 144 (.88 1.1,
Croatia Airlines 120 a7 : .51
Vueling Airlines 78 .
Adria Airways 4 0.60
Gazprom 10 0.03
Swiftair Aviation 746 3.26
Swiftair Hellas 376

Air Horizont Lid. 1

Arkiz 181

Freebird Airlihr':es

lsrair Airlines:

iran Air

Sun Express

Transavia Airlines

Al Masria Universal

Red Wings Airways

CsA

Darwin Airlinés__,s :

Hainan Airling

QeshnAir" -

Bora Jet

Corendon Airlines

Elinair

Eurcpean Air

(&) =
LRl slnial Slvivelold

X
3 EN]
&S
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In the period I-1X of 2018 we present the most significant foreign air carriers (39 foreign air
carriers)

In international air traffic of foreign carriers in the period I-1X 2018 total turnover of
22,338 air movements is achieved which is by 11% higher compared to the same period of the
previous year and by 6% higher in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan [V for the period -IX

2018.

in the pattern of foreign carriers in the period I-{X 2018 the most significant roles based on
number of airr-movements are of Wizz Air with 12.92% of share, then Montenegro Airlines with
10.72% and Lufthansa with 9.47% of share. These three air carriers achieve 33.11% in
international air traffic of foreign carriers.

With the share ranging from 6.17% to 3.26% in this type of air traffic there are: Austrian
Airlines (8.17%), Turkish Airlines (5.30%), Aeroflot (4.90%), Swiss International (4.64%), Swift
Air (3.26%), with total share of 24.27%.

Scheduled Cargo transport of express mail in the period I-IX 2018 was carried out by 4
{four) foreign carriers: Turkish Airlines, Swiftair Aviation, European Air Trransporter Leipzig
GmbH and Swiftair Hellas.

The most important Low cost carriers in the period I-IX 2018 are: Easyjet, Flydubai,
Norwegian Air Shuttle, Wizz Air, Vueling, Transavia, Pegasus Air, Red Wings and Eurowings.

Nl quarter =

The achieved number of air movements per air traffic type in the third quarter of. 2018 i
disclosed in the table. ‘

Domestic air-traffic

International air-traffic-
domaestic carriers
International air-traffic-

15719 | 54.35

mber of air :moveme : the third quarter
than in the same period of 2017:and. by 2%
s Plan |V in the secqnd quarter of 2018

Data from the table show that total achie
of 2018 amount 18,673 and.that'itis higher by
higher in comparison to the Rebalancing Busine

cin.the third quarter 2018 the largest.share. is. of
fiic with 54.35%, followed by foreign carriers in

Within..carrier. pattern of the total i\
domestic carriers in international
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international air traffic with 45.62% and at the end domestic carriers in domestic air traffic with
0.03% share,

In international air traffic of domestic carriers in the third quarter of 2018 turnover of
10,149 air movements is achieved which is by 1% lower compared to achievement of the same
period of the previous year and by 2% lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan IV for the
third quarter of 2018,

In international air traffic of foreign carriers in the third quarter of 2018 total turnover of
8,518 air movements is achieved, which is by 11% higher compared to the same period of the
previous year and by 8% lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan |V for the third quarter

of 2018.

Foreign carriers that started operating in the second quarter of 2018 are the following: Al
Masria Universal, Easyjet UK, Ellinair, Qeshm Airlines and Red Wings Airlines.

3.2. PASSENGER TURNOVER =~/ /70

In the period I-1X 2018 a total passenger turnover of 4,401,027 passengers was achieved,
which represent an increase of 6% in comparison to the same period in 2017 and it is 1% lower
than in the Rebalancing Plan IV for the period |-1X 2018.

T 5(473) |61
Domesgtic airtraffic 78 78 S 0.00
International air-traffic- _
domestic carriers 2,148,449 1,965,639 1.76 46.42
lntarnataonal alr-traﬂ"c-
forelgn ‘carriers - .2,002,067}. 2,501,559 43 24 53.58

is of foreign carrsers in mtern
intematlona! alr traffi c W|th 46.42!

18% hzgher compared to the same penod
Rebalancing Plan IV forl X 2018.
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PASSENGER TURNOVER I-IX ?i
2018/2017

4,401,027

4,150,594

1,000,000

2017
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Hlquarter e e e

Planned and realized passenger fraffic in the third quarter of 2018, as well as comparative data
on realized turnover in the same period of 2017 are shown in the table review.

7 7 3 T 542 163 7 5
Domestic air-traffic 14 14 19| 136 | 136 | 0.00 0.00
International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 999,744 936,244 968,596| 97 | 103 | 54.37 | 49.89
International air-traffic-
foreign carriers 838,943 1,070,443 970,660 116 50.10
TOTAE. e e ST

Based on the data presented, it can be concluded that the passenger traffic in the third
quarter of 2018 is 5% higher than in the same period of 2017 and is 1,937,275 passengers,
which is by 3% less compared to the Rebalansing Plan iV for 2018.

The greatest participation in passenger turnover per air traffic types for the third quarter of
2018 is of foreign carrers in international air traffic with 50.10%, then domestic carriers in
international air traffic with 49.89%.

The number of the passengers transported by domestic carriers in inte

13
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In the period [-1X 2018 total cargo and mail turnover of 18,817 tons is achieved which is by
8% higher compared to the same period of the previous year and by 14% lower in comparison
to the Rebalancing Plan IV for the peried I-1X 2018.

in international air traffic of domestic carriers, cargo and mail turnover in the period I-IX
2018 was 3% higher than the turnover for the same period of 2017 and by 2% lower than in the
Rebalancing Plan IV for the period I-1X 2018, while in international air traffic of foreign carriers,
achievement in the period I-1X 2018 was 11% higher than in the same period of the previous
year and by 18% lower than in the Rebalancing Plan [V for the period |-1X 2018,

ip:|:‘Particip:
7 7 3 7 5(472) 16(4/3) 8
Domestic airtraffic 0 0 ol o 0 0.00 0.00

International airtraffic-
domestic carriers 4,932 5,221 5,103{ 103 98 28.59 27.12

International airtraffic-

foreign carriers
TOTAL:.

CARGO AND MAIL TURNOVER I-IX
g 2018/2017

;I{;}z--zlmo . A 18,817

E“ 17,250

3:1&090

221L000

6,000

1,000

2017

14
Business report for the period [-IX 2018



it quarter -

In the third quarter of 2018 total cargo and mail turnover of 6,958 tons is achieved which is
by 2% higher compared to the subject period of the previous year and is at by 32% lower in
comparison to the Rebalancing Plan IV for the third quarter of 2018.

‘FAchieveme

stic air-traffic 0.00
International airdr
domestic carriers 25.27 26.89

International air-traffic:

foreigwral carriers

lower than in the Rebalancang Plan IV fort ird quarter of 2018,
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1 7 7 T 50y
Participation  [Paticipation  |Participation

Domestic air-{raffic
Air movements 3 0 43 0 18 0 51| 42

Passengers 78 0 B0 2
Cargo and mail air+truck ) 0 0 0 90 0 G O O

T
Cad
L2 ]
CrD
<3

International air-raffic - domestic carriers

Air movements 25,049 | 55| 24863 B4 2414721 52 %6 &
Passengers 21484401 5211965639  44{2042757) 46 95 104
Cargo and mal airttruck (t) 493 29 522 24f 5100 27 103 %

International air-traffic - foreign carriers

Air movements 20185 45| 21085 46| 2233 48} 1
Passengers 2000067 4812501559  56{23h8243f ol 118] W
Cargo and mal airtruck (1) 12318 71 16,641 76[ 1304 731

Total

Cargo and mall aretuck )

B 06U W] 6 0] 1
il s i;:mjo [ KR

w2 Togn DRIECEC

H 3
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'REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

The Company performs business activity as single business segment. Accordingly,
revenues and expenditures are disclosed at company level.

4-1REVENU ES e R

In the period |-1X 2018 JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport achieved the total revenue in
the amount of RSD 8,151,445,283. Thus achieved total revenue is 11% higher in comparison
to the achieved revenues in the same period of the previous year and 1% lower in relation to
the Rebalancing Plan IV for the period I-1X 2018.

The pattern of the achieved revenues for 1-1X 2018 is shown in the table Revenue pattern
by service types.

In the pattern of achieved revenues for the period I-IX 2018 business revenues have the
greatest participation amounting to RSD 8,015,787,318 which is 88% of the total revenues.
Thus achieved business revenues are 11% higher than the same in the same period of the
previous year and 1% lower in relation to Rebalancing Plan 1V for the period I-1X 2018.

Part of business revenues generated by providing air services in the amount of RSD
2,786,408,528 makes 35% of the total revenues. These revenues are 31% higher than in the
same period of the previous year, while they are by 10% higher than it is predicted in the
Rebalancing Plan |V for the period I-1X 2018.

Wlthm revenues from air services — domestic air carriers in the perod |-IX 2018 the h:ghest

growth is recorded in section of:
-ground handling;
-infrastructure, as weli as
-use of air-bridges.

the same per_lo
period I-1X 2018.

Within revenues from pass
foreign air carriers in relation to {

ailzed in the amount of RSD 5 102 606

Reve@ﬂ%&iwm gth‘e_..%?e?f 909515 are
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In the period I-IX 2018 revenue from lease of business facilities amounts RSD
803,715,777 and it is 5% higher than in the same period o the previous year. The most part of
these revenues refers to lease of business facilities to Dufry ltd.

Financial revenues in the period I-IX 2018 amount RSD 102,170,477 and they are 12%
lower then in the same period of the previous year.

This decrease of financial expenditures in the period I-1X 2018 in comparison to the same
period of the last year partly resulted from decrease of interest rates and partly from the fall of
RSD exchange rate for Euro (1EUR on 30/09/2018 equalled RSD 118.4179, while on
30/09/2017 it was RSD 119.3659).

The pattern of financial revenues for I-1X 2018 is composed of:
» revenues from the interest amount RSD 53.175.029 and they participate with 52%
in the pattern of total financial revenues.
+ revenues from exchange rate differences - realised in the amount of RSD
30,579,995 and participate with 30% in the pattern of total financial revenues;
+ revenues from exchange rate differences - non-realised in the amount of RSD
18,415,454 and participate with 18% in the pattern of total financial revenues.

Other revenues in the period {-1X 2018 in the amount RSD 33,487,488 and they are 75%
higher then in the same period of the previous year.

Major foreign buyers in terms of their participation in revenues from sale in the period i-IX
2018 are:

» Wizz Air RSD 637,445 thousand (8.84%);
» Deuiche Lufthansa RSD 457,931 thousand (6.35%);
« Montenegro Airlines RSD 392,160 thousand (5,44%);

18
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EVENUE PATTERN:

Rebalancing . : Aehiwement
HX 2913
&
Alr sarvices of domestic carriar
6§14000+814004+614300+5614302+514303+614304 Landing 149,614,709 153,389,030 150,648,752, 101 Egl
614010+814014+814310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 44,617,883 46,482,651 39,455,928 88 85
§14030+614034+694330+614332+614333+614334 GH 55,810,750 458,887,437 457,228,535 293 100,
614040+614042+ 6140434814044 infrastructure 86,234,757 88,310,842 254,728,639 285 248
514050 Air-bridges 10,388 9,587 67,201,534 646,926 ?00.956[
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Aireraft abode rovenus 4,103,473 4,462,857 3,875,508 a7 BE_I{
i <Fptal airservicas {[domeastic canier): - L S U A, a1, 8604 - TE, 832 404! -§73,239,986 221 130
Alr servicos of forelgn carrler 4
8160104815011+615012+815013+615014 Landing 564,446,215 589,214,760 602,249,065 107 102,
615020+615021+615622+616023+615024 GH 512,356,920, 533,876,185 578,840,526 113 108
615030+615031+615032+616033+615034 Lighting 56,214,695 60,492,075 60,881,026 108 101
616040+616042+615643+816044 Infrastructure 370,071,234 359,452,528 398,002,774, 105 100]
616060+ 15062 Air-bridges 163,419,015/ 170,441,338 160,852, 195] [ G4
§15000+615001+615602+815003+815004 Alrcratt abode revenus 23,345,734 24,601,855 12,332,947 53 50
T 3K Totai alr mrvius(inmmaﬁonal mrﬂo() : o L] 688 BB B - A, 178, F18,692| <= 1,813,168,642; - . 107 =102
144 - Lo “Total air sdrvices s v 2430,246,773¢ - 2,528, 710,997] 2,786,408, 6281 . 134 ki
Passonger sewlce
6144006+614404 - domastic tarriers - domestic alrtralfic | Passenger service d.oll.c. 872 848 0 O [i;
6141814614182+614183+614180+614192(BRS and
PRM)+874410+634412+6144 13+ 514414 Passanger service d.atfi.at 591,590,248 925,230,523 788,751,548 84| 8|
E15160+615162+816200+618210+615212+8152134616214+
615215+615862+816864+616896-FRM Passenger serv. Inter.carriery 1,552 010,767 1,798,267,813 1,823,143,439 117 102
614420+ 614430+614432+6 14433+ 614434+815230+616232+
;51 5233+815234 Security foo 911,809,295 994,903,436 51,282 466 105 95
ik . } Totzl passanger sanvice : - 3,465,411,182{ .- '3,710.402.62_5{ 03 669,477 A54] 1R8] o 55!
{eibed] - Total air sorvices and passenger sarvice -+ §,585,866,865] - -6,240,113,817}:5:6,386,685,982 A4 502
CCW sarvite
5145004614510 CCW sarvite don.markat 118,923,238 139,060,043 119.832 792 100 g1
615300 +615310 {Joreign} ECW sarvice Intarnat. marke 9,692,905 14.638.]@ 11,280,719 116 77|
v D Total COW sarvicas: : o e L 9,616, 1AS) - 148,698,828] 434,083, 541 01 T 80|
v Tohl wrvlcus relah!d to-alr traffic {1-fo 1V): - - B, 716,273,098] - 8,385,812,445] " - 6,408,679,493] . 143 402
{thar sorvices i
1 |514360+615100+615102 DCS senices 14,512,488 14,370,817 19,321,278 133, 134
§14T104+634112+614135+614116+614170+534173+614180+
2 6141844614391 +5 1587 2+515873+01 5874+ 615875+ 5 15876+ Work order 130,068,134
6153877 +6156891+615892+615895 72 72
614130+614131+815071+615072 VIP lounge 5,107,250; 5,002,499 100 100
614140+614142+615090+815082 CUTE (done. +intl) 144.41?,319% 133,724,183 93 92
6143B0+615080 Lost and found 14,844,588 15,819,837 107 108
6146+615120+615400+615401 Public sensces 118,702, 789] “$15,586,801 97 EH|
++|614820+615170 _.aimng sendces business cl 5 182,615 198.029 0B 120
: _Adwertising space. 80,588,733 £ 35,200,734 69 BE}
Commiercial usage of the Bpron 48,231,362 % 45,815,669 95 95|
614160+E1é153+61416¢5+6!51 0*815112+615%i3+615114 Alrgralt de-cing-ssenices’” 15,072 408] : 53,217,433 80 89,
614860+ 614B51+6514865+6$4856 615680+ LB | 3
" 615385+615887+615838 45_’9§1f535 K :-146 437,176 318 107
12 |Gther non-mentioned sen.ices do'mﬂni% 16,758,085 16,489,400 ¢ 1B, 652 73& 99 101
VE o |Other sorvices (1 10 11 - V708,788,714 T 787,301,182] 7 720,289,442 102 S
Vi _Total §1 ~ Ravenues from salo ot sanncos W*V!) CU6,421,038.813) -7,473,113,698] - 7,206,968,935) L 12] 100
Ravenuesfrom saia of geods P
VI - 80 ~Roveniues from sake ofknmsona +goods e 746,376,348 5, 102,606) 04T A
JIX " 1Total {80+61} REVENUES FRDM SALE MI*VIIE) i +8,431,926,108 -7,219,589.945' e 212 75421 112] =i 400
L 64 &65 Loaae of businass prsmlsos 63,418,620} .- BIZ,FT0,360 803 715 ?7‘? Rl 95]
|
Xt S QPERATING REVENUES X+ T GBFBTVBRIRATES - 2] . T 105,345,804} - B,412,060,00h| - 8,015,787, 318, <. 111 289
XH - L5 B8 = FINANGIAL REVENUES 16,719,014 14,437,948 102,470,471 88 431
1 interest 63,118,484 58,613.917 53,175,029 77 81
2 exchange rate differences - realised 18,547,605 15, 524 031 30,579,995 165} 193
3 exchange rale difiarences - non-realised 23,052,945 18,415,454 63 0]
XHI 67, B9 and 69 OTHER REVEMUES .00 019,087, 148823 012640- | R 1 R .
;
!iw . Total revenues (XKi+XI1+Xill} - - 7,331,164,787] - B,208,710,883[ . 8,161,445,283] 444 T eg
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1l quarter -

In the period VIi-IX 2018 JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport achieved the total revenue in
the amount of RSD 3,352,575,289. Thus achieved total revenue is 15% higher in comparison
to the achieved revenues in the same period of the previous year and 1% higher in relation to
the Rebalancing Plan IV for the period VII-IX 2018.

The pattern of the achieved revenues for VIi-iX 2018 is shown in the table Revenue
pattern by service types.

In the pattern of achieved revenues for the period VII-IX 2018 business revenues have
the greatest participation amounting to RSD 3,291,326,360 which is 98% of the total revenues.
Thus achieved business revenues are 15% higher than in the same period of the previous year
and 1% higher in relation to Rebalancing Plan IV for the period VIi-IX 2018.

Part of business revenues generated by providing air services in the amount of RSD
1,102,181,785 makes 33% of the total revenues. These revenues are higher by 35% in relation
to the same period previous year.

Within revenues from air services — domestic air carriers in the perod Vi-IX 2018 the
highest growth is recorded in section of:

~ground handling;

~infrastructure, as well as

-use of air-bridges.

Revenues from passenger service and security fees are realised in the amount of RSD
1,522,784,733 for the period VII-tX 2018, which makes 46% of totally achieved revenues. Such
revenues from passenger services and security fees increased by 4% compared:{o the same
period of the previous year.

in the income from the passenger service, we have a. revenue gm h of 14% of the
passenger service-foreign airlines compared to the same perzod:_of the previous year.

._cargo-customs
ealized revenues from
k pared ‘to the ame penod of the previous

St jod VII-IX_ 2018  revenues .from
warehouse ieved in the amount of
services in thec go warehouse mcreased b
year. :
In the period Vil- IX 2018
of RSD 275,169,341, Such reve
same period I'ast yeari-- S —

were achxeved in the amount
reased by 26% compared to the

other expend;
ther services i

Revenues from he’

__le of goods are reailz mount of RSD 4, 182 ?52

S5 !facmtles amounts RSD
s.year. The most part of
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Other revenues in the period VI-IX 2018 amount RSD 21,074,814 and they are 2.8 times
higher then in the same period of the previous year.
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REVENUE PATTERN.

chisvement | oPN8N8N0 1] pchin
204717 SV 2018
1 2 3 4 5 3 Fi6A) 8655
Alr sorvices of domastic carrier
G44000+614004+814300+514302+ 814303+ 14304 Landing 61,288,147, £1,072,400 66,820,885 109 108
B614010+614014+514310+61431 2+ 6143134614214 Lighting 17,009,926 18,494,067 16,073,930 94 87
614030+614034+514330+614232+614333+614334 GH 62,635,358 182,655,792 197,368,137 314 108
B14040+614042+514043+ 614044 Infrastruciure 34,788,019 35,158.861 112,045,142 32z 319
614050 Ajr-bridges l¥] 3,847 30,680,918 0O 803,818
614020+614024+61432046143234614324 Aireraft abode ravenue 1,910,817 1,718,787 1,853,828 g7 104
] o jotal alr sorvicas {dermastie sarger): Y e s R S L AF 432 308] " 750, 206,868] - 424,843,850] . 239] - . 142
Air sorvices of foraign carrier
515010+51801 1+618052+615013+615014 Landing 215,110,911 234,582,707 224 552,853 304 96
615020+615021+6150224618023+815024 GH 191,023 550 212,580,701 219,876,182 115, 103
E16030+6 1503 1+61503T+61 BU33+615034 Lighting 20,395,082 24,083.570 23,055,145 113]
§16040+616042+615043+615044 Enfrastructure 141,043,855 159,033,109 149,638,312, 105 EZ);
S15080+615062 Alr-bridges 62,791,268 67,857,435 57,572,364 g2
615000+615001+615002+615003+6 160494 Aircraft ahode ravenue 9,571,178 9,794,600 2.543,279 a7 23
- Fotal air sarvices (ntemational tarrier): S e St 539,986,900 - - T0T, 942,121 BT, 337,938 - 406 B
1+H Gl Total air sarviess I Lot T BT 88,2138 1,007 147 974 4,102.18%,785) 1138 108
Passanger service
514400+614404 - domastic carriers - domesiic alrtraffic | Passenger servics d.cfic. [] 374 Y ] 0
£14181+814182+614180+614130+614192(BRS and
PRMP614410+614412+4614413+614414 Passenger service d.atl.at, 422,506,204 407,580,539 37,221,838, a8 91
B161604615162+615200+ 815210+ 51621 24615243+ 616214+
516215+815662+618864+618836-PRM Passonger sery. intar.carriery 641,162,188 788,664,235 732,860, 152 114 83
61442046144304-81443 261543346 14434+ 615230+ 616232+
615232+616234 Socurify lae 405,554,384 438.283,482 418,712,744 103 96
W] e Total passenger servige oo ooy, 408 228 77T - 1,634,838,699| 0 1,622,784,733] - o048 S 093
[ “ - Total alr services and passenger servige - - S 2,287,000,0901 :- -2,641,686,674| - -2,624,366,618 - 115 i
LCW sarvica
614500+614510 CCW sarvice dom.market 35,561,750 48,045,673 42,224,109 107 B_Gi
618300 +615310 {foreign) CCW service Intarmat rnarkod 3,263,436 5,478.281 3,489,339 107 a4
W 2o Total GOW sarvices St e 42,826,188 - 54 524863~ 45,713 448] - H07] -84
Vv -Tota}semusmlaladtnmr fraffic {l to IV} ) e RS ; : : 2,328,816,176 2,696,211, 821 2.870,679,966] . 418 . - .99
Othar services LT
1 |614360+615300+615102 DCS senices 8,576,710 9,208,501} 192
614110+61411246714115+614116+014170+61417 34614 180+
2 1614184+6143914615872+515873+61 5874+ 615875+ 615876+ Work order 49,045,974
61587 7+615801+615892+615805 97,
3 {614130+614131+618071+615072 VIP lounge 1,415,164 312
4 16141404614 142+615000+-615082 CUTE (dom, +indl) 62,332,046 18
5 1514380+615080 Losi and found A a1B.638 ; 54
8 16145+615120+515400+615401 Publiz sendces . 35:040.228 36,491,679 104 92
w22 | B814820+B15170 [atering senices business ctas! 181,890 84,250, 45 154
8 e i Adwertising space i 16,150,207, §12.752,938 79 70|
] Commertial usage of the apronti: 18,758,921 : 19,174036‘ 102 120
1% B14160+614163+614164+615310+6%5112+615‘¥13+6!5114 Aircraft de.dcing senites 0 ] 0 [1] 0}
614860+ 614861 +614865+614B08+6 14867 +614B60+6 15560+ ’ :
" 615855+ B15887+615888 ‘i4.759.,08__2._. : 82.789,283 561 182
12 |Other non-mentioned senices domﬂnti 7,086,631 6.458,532 a1 118
i Oﬂ-mr survices (f 1o 11} - : N V2T ATO| 28R A% | 275,169,341 L EeE o 106
Vi “Total §1 4 Rnwnues!ram sa{e ol uawn:as(vwn H2,548,488,646] - 2,956,645,244| . 2,945,849,308 116} 100
Rovanuas from sale of guods | ) S E
VI .| .- B0 « Revenues from sale of kerosene 466330 "15658 783 4,182,752 BOTE 27
X - [Total {50+61) REVENUES FROM SALE (VIV} 2548954 Cr 2574 104 027| - 2,960,032,060[ - 116f 89
Kb 68 66 - Lease of buslness premises o .-315,388.4-!4 e '291.590‘117 v 344, 204,300] o 408] 1 1E
R R OPERATING REVENUES (1(#X) @by . 2,864,943,390{ 7. 3,271,694,144]::7'3,291,326,360] -2 §38f oA
o ; T : |

T - FINANGIAL REVENUES ©. YN B T XKLL

EU LD R : : =37, 124, 8161 : 182
1 jaterest 21,694,186 19,537,972 15,207, 346§ . 78]
2 exchange raie diflerences - realised 3,763,312 5,274,677 25.334,150) _—
3 exchange rate difflerences - nonwrealised 12,267,018 i o ~367,1682 " DN
XiH - 87, 68 and 68 OTHER REVENUES - - voaag iy i Aot BEE,BGAE s T AT0, 880 2,074,814 D ATE
X1V - Sov o Totak revenues (XEXHeXNE o0 0 2,810,224,868] 03,304,177,673¢ - 8,362 575,289 . 115[ - 101
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In the period [-IX 2018 total expenditures were achieved in the amount of RSD
4,877,226,686. Thus realised revenues are 18% higher than in the same period of the previous
year, while they are by 1% lower than it is predicted in the Rebalancing Plan 1V for the period I-
IX 2018.

Purchase value of soid goods {(group 50) in the pericd I-IX 2018 amount RSD 4,670,661
and they mostly refer to purchase value of sold heating oil in the referent period.

Costs of material and energy {group 51} in the pericd [-IX 2018 amount RSD
379,000,788 and they are 10% higher then in the same period of 2017. The costs of material
and energy participate in total expenditure with 8% and mostly refer to:

- Electricity consumption costs which are 6% higher than the costs on the same basis for
the period |-IX of 2017,

- costs for the consumed basic material, which are lower by 2% compared to the costs on
the same basis for the period |-I1X -V of 2017,

- costs for spent spare parts for the current maintenance of fixed assets and are higher by
four times compared to the same period of the previous year etc,

Hugest amount within total expenditures refers to the costs of salaries, reimbursements
and other personal expenditures {group 52) amounting for the period I-IX 2018 RSD
2,674,118,654 and they are 19% higher than in the same period of the previous year.

Change of number of employees (taking over of 340 employees from Air Serbia for QU
Ground handling) and employment manner paltern of employees in the Company on the
account of permanently employees affecled on increase of the costs of salaries and
reimbursements. o

The costs of salaries of employees (gross Il - groups 520 and 52
Tesla amount RSD 1,829,053,691, while costs of persons engage
organisations (account 524000} amount RSD 274,791, )
Beograd, Knez, Medijator and Europa). _

Apart from salaries, the group 52 also includes
oceasional jobs, reimbursements for members
reimbursem ‘ ‘(ntracts (servuce contract

2018 amount RSD 50,234,124
he previous year. They mostly
-  ITT support for

“refer to costs of ‘information and p
passenger and baggagg _r_e_gestratao

hich in the period |-IX 2018 amo&nt}:fﬁs{)
ier'than in the same period of the previous year
ncrease of costs of the maintenance-of other-fixed

e costs of maintenance servic
145,225,302 and they are 249
wmostly-because of the-signifi
assets. "
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s the costs of lease in the period |-IX 2018 amount RSD 28,945,806 and they are
3% higher then in the same period of the previous year. They mostly refer to renting
of business facilities of legal persons;

« the costs of advertising amount RSD 75,726,608;

» the cosis of other services mostly refers to costs of watering, sewage, achieved
in the amount of RSD 34,098,333 and they are 1% lower than in the same period of
the previous year.

The costs of amortisation and reserves (group 54) in the period |-IX 2018 amount RSD
865,564,148 and they are 48% higher then in the same period of the previous year, due to
significant increase of costs of amortisation.

The increase in depreciation costs in the period HIX |-V of 2018 was the result of the
activation of a significant number of fixed assets in the second half of 2017 and 2018, and
consequently a significant increase in depreciation costs occurred.

Intangible costs (group 55) in the period I-IX 2018 are disclosed in the amount of RSD
316,017,413 and they are 8% lower then in the same period of the previous year.

The pattern of intangible costs (group 55) consists of:

« the costs of non-productive services are the most significant in the group of
intangible costs and are achieved in the amount of RSD 175,540,268 mostly
referring to costs of other types of assessmenits and cleaning;

the costs of representations (RSD 7,147,585);

the costs of insurance premiums (RSD 34,300,968);

the costs of money transfers ( (RSD 5,045,637);
the costs of membership fees ( (RSD 3,827,047);
the costs of taxes (RSD 66,129,339) and
the other intangible costs (RSD 24,026,559).

« & & &5 & 2

1osed’in the amount of
he previous year.

Financial expenditures {group 56) in the period I-1X:2018 are d!
RSD 53,

075,252 and they are srgmf cantly Iower then.in: the"'same period

stly ;from decrease of

2018 resuite

was RSD 119. 3659) :

The patterh of finar _ penditures for. i_i-.l).('

}.in the amount of RSD
total financial revenues;

: 9,229,240 .and they
ota! financial expenditures. They most!y ‘refer
abilities (EIB - reconstruction of the: Terminal

“revenues from exchange rate. dsz !
33,760,894 and they. partuc:pate with
. expend;tures from.the mteres
participate with 36% in the patterr

to interest from long-term o

o Ruilding).
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e revenues from negative exchange rate differences - non-realised in the
amount of RSD 85,119,

Other expenditures (group 57, 58 and 59) in the period I-IX 2018 are realized in the
amount of 250,549,687 RSD and are by three times higher in relation to the same period last
year, and are mostly related to the costs of transfer of land without compensation (157,422,975
RSD) as part of the Project of parceling / re-placement, land-use change according to the DCP,
where the conversion of the right to use the properly into ownership right was made, and
certain parcels were intended for the road, parily transfer was made to other legal entities

within the airport compiex.
The main suppliers in terms of turnover in the period 1-1X 2018 are:
» Enetel solutions d.o.o. RSD 262,791 thousand,

OZ EUROPA PTZ RSD 178,860 thousand;
+ JP Elektroprivreda Srbije RSD 166,106 thousand and other.
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Rebalameing ih e B ot
otee Planr\i’ H?(: Achievament - s
1 F; 3 4 5 553y | 5

56 - |PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS =% oo/ 44,536,256 039,780,000 1 4,670,681 agf
501 PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOGDS 14,536.256; 39,780.0005 4,670,661 2 12
51077 |COSTS OF MATERIAL AND ENERGY UMIBT008) - 443,0i6,702] T ars 000 a8 0] e
511 [COSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 103,303,093 120,6%4.108] 103,884,684 101 85|
512 [COSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 15.638.332] 11.437,110] 18,565,419 119 162
513 [COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 202,682,329 751,250,000 210,441,479 04 84
514 [COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 21,625,280] 57,577,287 45,774,920 212 80
515 [COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-OFF OF TOULS AND INVENTORY 38,000/ 2,018,197 334,330 260 [
52 - iCOSTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES “3,248,004871] -~ 2471950,864) - 2,674,113,654] - 11e] 1 ees
520 COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (BROSS} 1,273,603, 456 1,454 618,193 1,551,380.199] 12 07|
521 iCDSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 25500 261,525,749 277,693,406) 12 108
522 ICOSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRALTS - GROSS 763,585 27227 202,836, 11 7
524  |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 473,708,320 472,070,151 485,608,224 163 103
525 [COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR OTHER COMTRACTS - GROSS o 0 0 [ 0
{526 [COMPENSATION TO DIRECTOR, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODES 6,588,067 5,513,550 7,124,889 108 109
[s20 " JomER PERSCNAL EXPENDITURES AND CONPENSATIONS 263,864,512 276,589,554 351,048,813 13 127
[s3 - ~]cosTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES . S Cp8% ABG.0BE] .-~ 671,980,232 334,200,173 [ iee) ke
|531 COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERY ICES 46,832,458 45,407, 158! 50,234,124 107 "1
1532 |COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 116,852,269 353,522,082 145,225,302 124 4
[533 |COSTOF LEASE 20,808,007 47,585,967 28,845,806 97 7
(535 |ADVERTISING COSTS 54,860,300 83,0184 75,726,608 138 gt
(539 |COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES M ATT.08 52446614 34,098,333 2 55
(66 - |COSTS OF AMORTISATION AND RESERVES & © - o seaaT2oe2] T eanazon] o cmessed ] Coc1asl v qay
1540 |AMORTISATION COSTS 578,302,042 22,500,000 850,564, 148 149 138
545 [RESERVES FOR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 0 0 o] ] 0
549 _OTHER LONG TERM RESERVES 8,370,000} 7,642,500 5,000,000} 50 &5
5§ .1 ENTANGIBLE COSTS * " 343,62T,664) 1 646,300 063 e Tl e

550 |COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES 219,461,625 524,980,323 175,540,268 |

551 |COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 4,004,835 8,085,986 7,147,595

552 |COSTS OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS 25,223,642 30,575,852

553 |COSYS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 4,021,272 3,962,650

554 |COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 3,802,408, 3,600,574

555 |COSTS OF TRES 60,875,389 58,815,745

550  |OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 26,038,514 7,029,835

| 5o |OPERATING EXPENDITURES 9,818,496, 924} -t.aoa 516,181

BS ' |FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES “' 237324303 0 74,731,842

562 |INTEREST EXPENDAURES 27,002,544 26,719,204

553 |NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIEFERENCES 203,723,745 985.44

564 [EXPENDIURES FOR EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE 5,508,014

I | FINANCIAL EKPEND!TURES : -. Caraday omimsasl s 0rs,

67 " |OTHER EXPENDITURES T i i Coiisaanaam| Do ae sze Te] 185,364,986

570 |[LOSSES FROM EXPENDIURES ANDSALE! OF BIANGBLE INVESTMENT B4 REAL ESTATES A 25716120 4074171 158,029,680 T
571__ |LOSS FROM WRITE.QFF AND SALE OF SIOLOGICAL RESOURGES . X - 72,000] 0 o] 0
514 |DEFICT 2.444] 421416 100344
75 |CONTRACTED RISK PROTECTION NOT PRESENTED AS REV RESERV 58151 7 8
576 |EXPENDITURES FROM DIRECT WRITE.OFF. OF RECENABLES . 1810217 4 4
577 |WRIEOFF B . -
579 [OTHER NON-MENTIONED E)FENDITURES 30,948,343 53| 83,
55| EXPENDETURES FROM PROPERTY IMPAIRMENT .00 RN 811 TSRO
582 |IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY:PLANTAND EQUIPMENT s

583 |IMPAIRMENT OF LONG T FRINVST AND OVHER SECURIIES FOR SALE

585 [IMPAIRMENT.OF RECENABLES OF SHORF-T. FINL INVEST

589 |IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER PROPERTY

5% " | EXPERDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS - 11,308,480

591 |EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS . - ! w):

597 |EXPENDITURES FROM ERROR CORR. FROM. PREV YEARS MATERALLY NS!GN&FKIANT 1,305,150, ; 0l C34.393,5400

I OTHER EXPENDSTURES : L L U LUUB0,2165360 .36, m,m! T 260,549,891]

S TOTAL EXPENDITURES : '4,_m,_uéi,rsd| i gs_az_,svo,mg 5 4,37".*_.325’,’5&51 |
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I quarter

in the period VIi-IX 2018 total expenditures were achieved in the amount of RSD
1,773,203,123. Thus realised revenues are 31% higher than in the same period of the previous
year, while they are by 6% higher than it is predicted in the Rebalancing Plan IV for the period
VII-IX 2018.

Purchase value of sold goods (group 50) in the period VII-IX 2018 amount RSD
4,072,453 and they mostly refer to purchase value of sold heating oit in the referent period.

Costs of material and energy (group 51) in the period VII-IX 2018 amount RSD
119,213,223 and they are 11% higher then in the same period of 2017. The costs of material
and energy participate in total expenditure with 7% and mostly refer to:

Electricity consumption costs which are 12% higher than the costs on the same basis for
the period VH-IX of 2017,

- cost of worn working clothes and footwear, which is 561% higher than the costs for the
same period for the period VII-IX 2017,

- costs for spent fuel for terrestrial vehicles and higher by 19% in relation to the costs on the
same basis for the period VII-IX 2017 and others.

Hugest amount within total expenditures refers to the costs of salaries, reimbursements
and other personal expenditures (group 52) amounting for the period VH-IX 2018 RSD
885,667,495 and they are 20% higher than in the same period of the previous year, while they
are 7% higher than in the Rebalancing Plan IV for the period Vil-1X 2018. Change of number of
employees (taking over of 340 employees from Air Serbia for OU Ground handling) and
employment manner pattern of employees in the Company on the account of permanent!y
employees affected on increase of the costs of salaries and reimbursements. .

The costs of salaries of employees (gross i - groups 520 and 52 Nikoia
Tesla amount RSD 594,918,136, while costs of persons ___‘_g;}g'ag_e‘ _rough youth

Beograd, Knez, Medijator and Europa).

~per_temporary and

Apart from salaries, the group 52 also inclug
i supervisory bodies

riod Vii X 2018 amount RSD
f the prewous year.

VIHIX 2018 amount RSD
jod of the prev:ous vear.
; monthly ITT

3, 768 and they are 13% hlgher-
They ‘mostly refer to-costs of linfo
support for passenger and baggag
o the costs of maintenance s
59,603,688 and they are twice
=Most: of:them--relate-to- the :
assets;

g
gistratlon and other:
s in the period VI-IX 2018 amount RSD
then in the same period of the previous year.
sts-of -services-in-the -maintenance-of -other. fixed
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» the costs of lease in the period ViI-IX 2018 amount RSD 9,498,275 and they are
23% lower then in the same period of the previous year. They mostly refer to renting
of business facilities of legal persons;
the costs of advertising amount RSD 24,038,007;

s the costs of other services mostly refers to costs of watering, sewage, achieved
in the amount of RSD 15,056,089 and they are 5% higher than in the same period
of the previous year.

The costs of amortisation and reserves (group 54} in the period VII-IX 2018 amount
RSD 323,171,246 and they are 50% higher then in the same period of the previous year.

The increase in the depreciation costs in the period VH-I1X 2018 resulted from the activation
of a significant number of fixed assets, consequently a significant increase in depreciation
costs occurred.

intangible costs {group 55) in the period Vil-IX 2018 are achieved in the amount of RSD
125,760,735 and they are 27% higher then in the same period of the previous year.

The pattern of intangible costs consists of:

s the costs of non-productive services are the most significant in the group of
intangible costs and are achieved in the amount of RSD 81,563,042 mostly referring
to costs of other types of other non-productive services and costs of DATA room
services;

the costs of representations (RSD 569,084);

the costs of insurance premiums {(RSD 11,485,136),
the costs of money transfers ( (RSD 1,821,422},

the costs of membership fees ( (RSD 555,000);
the costs of taxes (RSD 22,502,215) and
the other intangibie costs (RSD 7,164,837).

..Financial-expenditures (group 56) in the period:’
of RSD 10,370,134 and they are S|gn|f" cantiy et

e. from fall of RSD exchange
' 2017 it was RSD

expendltures based on expendstures from prew
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XPENDITURE PATTERN X 201812017

‘ -Achlavemont Rﬂ:?:;“gw : Achlwomam
LS s | XM vk zete ) e .
1 2 3 4 5 653 | 754)
50 - *|PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS /0 SUTETANE A 260,000 T U4 BTLABRY CU0TS #
1501 IPURCHASE VALUE OF S0LD GOODS AT 13,260,000 4,072,453) 4,079 #
517 [COSTS OF MATERIAL AND ENERGY =07 CULART0408] T Ae 2 T e s ded ] U
511 [COSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 780412 36,094,369 24502,769] 424 88
512 |COSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 4,264,306] 4,312,370] 5217583 4 12
513 |COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 62,207, 705| #3,750,000] W36 413 84
514 |COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 12,628,976 12,192,429| 9,158.208| 73 48!
515 |COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-DFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY 28 000] 1,006,066 263018 892 26]
62 - |COSTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES 1 oo |00 740,700,00] .~ 823,984,956] ' "886,667,485] - 4z6[ 407
520 |COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (GROSS) 419812008 asagra7 504,535,770, 120 104
521 |COSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 75,146,511 87,175,260 W0372.366) 10 104
522 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS - GROSS 55,606 79,076 0254 o5 7
524 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 157,548,608 157,356,717 a2 w108
COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR DTHER CONTRACTS - GROSS 0 g [ o [
COMPENSATION TO DIRECTOR, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 2,210,756 2,171,183 2336628 6] 108
OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND COMPENSATIONS 85,095 513 02,325,098  116544535] 138 127
.~ 1COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES : COIETGARN - 2ITA06TT] AT AtORIT] fe2] oigg
COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 16,987 467} 15,385,719 19,223,768 3 125
COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 2n,754145] 123,308,154 50,603,688 207 4
COST OF LEASE 12,292,125 12,328,656 9,488,275, 17 77
ADVERTISING COSTS 6,308,505 47,672,804 24038007 378 501
COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 14,284,226 18,607,205 15056088 108 B
- {COSTS OF AMORTISATION AND RESERVES %0 T4, 903,461 T 210,047,5000 33T 246] o 80] L sd
AMORTISATION COSTS 211,903,461 207,500,000/ 8712460 450 153
RESERVES FOR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 0 0 0 [ [}
OTHER LONG TERM RESERVES 3,000,000 2,547,500 5000006 161 19|
" |INTANGIBLE COSTS i anmandse U e st aoe] o s sevasl ol E
CasTs OF mpmmwn SERVICES 61,625,148 176,865,921 815630420 102 4
COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 2,316,652] 3,028,995 S
COSTS OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS 7,519, B45| 10,191,884
COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 1,067,811 1,420,883
COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 2421444 it
COSTS OF TAES 20,657 444
OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 2,822,200}
* [OPERATING EXPENIXTURES 1 74,240,629,298 s C
| FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES -0+ 73,121,50 Sanaroa] o] e
NFEREST EXPENDITURES 8,001,430 3,147,827 3 35
NEGATIVEEXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES o e 62,704,321 7,714,524 2 $1
EXPENDITURES FOR| EFFEC'IS OF CLURRENCY CIAUSE 246,051 - 462,318 90 2932
:FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES L Ry 78,424 804 2.0, wi-- 40,370,104] 44 0 4B
. HOTHER EXPENDITURES . ' iy Lo anaenaiel 0 o6 806 - vk, Tamea] - nee] T aad
£ OSSES FROM EXF'ENDmRES AND SALE Mmsmlwesmemm a}m Esmesm SR 4,358,057 157,492,574 o] #1587
LOSS FROM WRITE-OEF AND SALE oF BKXOGiCAL RESOURGES 2000 0 [} o
DEFICIT . a4 2,449,356 e
CONTRACTED RISK PROTECTION NOT PRESE&IEDAS REV. RESERVE TR 444 7 2
EXPENDITURES FROM umscrwmrs ALES 805 40 5000 4 2
577 |WRAE-OFF - 0 o [
579 |OTHER NONMENTIONED EXPENDIURES . 11,766,381 6,765,551 39 38
58 - |EXPENDITURES FROM PROPERTY IMPAIRMENT. [ il i Sl 452,327 |
552 |IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT o 0 o o}
563 |IMPAIRMENT.OF LONG-T, FININVST AND OTHER SECURITIES FOR SALE [} 4,364,958 167 of
585 |MPAIRMENT OF RECENABLES OF SHORTT, FIN, INVEST . 0| 587,285 93 o}
585+ = [IMPAIRMENT OF GTHER: PROPERTY o T [} o}
59 " - |[EXPENDITURES OF PREVIQUS YEARS - R ek s
501 |EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS ol o gpahiieli.. @
5% _[EXPENDITURES FROM ERROR oom FROM, PREV.YEARS MATERALLY ms;cww 0 219741 4,95 [}
- JomHer mamn‘umss i H876T,508) T sanot0 o amg] ase
' I : ‘x_"TTi*e"*‘_»‘_‘?S Coymaman | e
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A3 SALARIES S s e

In the period I-1X 2018 the total amount of RSD 1,651,360,196 (gross |} was paid for
salaries. It is 22% higher than in the same period 2017 and 7% higher than the planned
figures for the period I-1X 2018.

Achievement |4 Rebalancing Plan | Achilevement
Month Index
IX 2017 IV I-1X 2018 X 2018
1 2 3 4 5{4/2) 6{4/3)
January 141,135,782 161,624,244 155,534,606 139 121
February 136,689,966 161,624,244 170,052,384 124 105
March 156,678,124 161,624,244 165,271,379 105 102
April 141,617,053 161,624,244 176,921,236 125 109
May 140,344,009 161,624,244 172,701,107 123 167
June 137,367,769 161,624,244 166,283,714 121 103
July 137,203,594 161,624,244 166,982,390 122 103
August 144,345,988 161,624,244 174,762,398 121 108
September 138,161,173 161,624,244 162,850,981 118 101

In the period I-1X 2018 salaries of employees are paid off per individua
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In the period i-IX of the current year the average Gross | salary in the Company
amounted RSD 104,464 and it is lower than in the previous year by 5%. in the period I-iX 2018
the average net salary in the Company amounted RSD 74,724 and it is 4% lower than in the

same period last year.

| AVERAGEGROSS I SALA
Month AD ANT

January 117,542 ann.
February 102,386 guH.
March 99,964 nviH.
April 106,880 auH.
May 104,341 aun,
June 101,158 amn.
July 101,736 amH.
August 106,653 am.
September 99,514 auH.
Average 1-1IX 2018 104,464 puH,
Average |-IX 2017 109,540 gyH.

Average number of employees and engaged persons

Month AD ANT
_ January 83,895 auH.
~|February 73,273 auH.
March 71,575 i,
{April 76,423 aunH,
[May 74,643 amH.
June 72,412 puH.
July 72,786 puH.
August 76,257 A,
September 71,249 AWK,
Average |-1X 2018 74,724 puH.
Average I-IX 2017 77,970 pyH.

Pe_riod o

Undef

femploccay Total:

Average |-l 2018

287 2370

Average |-V1 2018

..283 2375

2410
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44 FINANCIAL RESULT 0 v

in the period I-IX 2018 gross profit of the Company was achieved in the amount of RSD

3,274,218,598.

Thus expressed gross profit is 2% higher than gross profit in the same period in 2017 and
by 1% lower than gross profit planned in the Rebalancing Plan IV for 2018,

_ FINANCIAL RESULT

No. Position

Achievement
I-IX 2017

Rebalancing
PlaniV [HX
2018
4

Achievement
X 2018

Index

2

3

5 6(5/3}

7(5/M}

Cperating revenues

7,195,345,624

8,112,260,295

8,015,787,318

111 93

Operating expenditures

3,816,486,924

4,803,916,161

4,573,601,836

120 95

P55 IR0 N N

- |Businessprofit (1-2)-. - . | 3:378.858,700]

3,308,344,134| -

73442185482

q02f 0 104

Financial revenues

116,719,014

74,437 948

102,170,477

88 137

237,324,303

71,731,942

53,075,252

74

4
5 |Financial expendithes
‘6. {Financial profit {4-5}

8a ‘|Financlal loss (54) -

e LNT2,708,008]
S 120,605,280) o

48095225 o)

1,814
gl

7 {Other revenues

19,097,149

23,012,640

33,487,488

175 146

8 }Other expenditures

80 216 536

9 . |Other profit (7-8) -

36,922,788

250,548,597

312 §79

9a” [Other loss (8-7) ..

61 119 387

£13,910,14T) - 247,06

10 _[Total revenves (1+4+7)

733,181,787

8,209,710,383

. 78,151,445,283

11, {Total expenditures (2+5+8) | -

4,134,027,764|.

gl oy

4,912,570;8901 -

-4,877,226,686]

12 |Total gross profit {(10-11) .~

3,197,134,023

73297120903 3,

P vl |

12a {Total grossloss (1110} -~

13 |Period tax expenditure

- 446,244,780]

470,503,304

488,195,932 .- .-

109 104

14 |Deferred period tax expenditure

58/968,250

' 74,840,000(

17 13

15 |Deferred ir'icome tax |

10,008,200

47 . INet proﬁt

16 |Earnings paid’ byemployer

1. 2,692,620,993

©'2,751,996,630] -

2,776,013,465] .

10377 1M

2017 and by 1% hfgher than net proﬁt ptanne
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'éed, in thé amount of RSD
g ~than . ofitiin the.same period
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Wquarter -~ o
In the period VII-IX 2018 gross profit of the Company was achieved in the amount of RSD
1,5679,372,166.

Thus expressed gross profit is 1% higher than gross profit in the same period in 2017 and
by 3% lower than gross profit planned in the Rebalancing Plan IV for 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULT

Achievement Rebalancing

B Achievement
No. Position Vilix 2017 | Fian '2‘:“8\'“‘”( VIX 2018

2 3 4 5 6(5/3) 6(5/4)
Operating revenues 2,864,943,390 3,271,694,144 3,291,326,380 115 101
Operating expenditures 1,240,629,298 1,831,280,373 1,585,304,979 128 g7

| Business profit (1-2) 5L 00 624,314,092 41,640,403,771| 0 4,706,024,382] 2105404

WHzekc

e ral i

Financial revenues 37,724,516 24,812,649 40,174,115 106 162
Financial expendiiures 73,121,801 23 910,647 10,370,134 14 43
-6 {Financial profit {4-5) = ol n i nn il e 902 onz 2.29,803,881) 0] 3,304
“6a |Financialloss (54) " o0 735,307,286] e R

ES

o

7 iOther revenues 7,556,964 7,670,880 21,074,814 279 275
Other expenditures 39,590,949 19,757,696 177,528,010 448 899
i'8a|Otherioss (B-7)

<

32,033,088 | 12,086.716]  156453,197|  488| 1,294

01

A0 |Total revenues (14457) | 2,810.504869] &
Tam| Ao

11 |Total expenditures (2+5+8) :4353,342,048]

304,177.:6731 - - 3,352,575,289] °
A A

42 “iTotal grossproﬁt(w-ﬁ) = 1,556,882,821]7 11)629,219,057
:-:.".!Ziaf'Total_f"ro&s!oss(11-10} BT

é38,262,'?04 103 152

156,834 435
__ T -

5 880.000]

13 |Period taxémendiiur
14 |Deferred period tax expen:
15 {Deferred income tax |

16 |Farnings pald hy emp|oyer
A7 |Netprofit :

1,305,389,825| 1,447,504,623| -+ 1,339,572,336| - 103 93|
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4.5 ECONOMIC BUSINESS INDICATORS FOR THE PERIOD 11X 2018 7

KO. Description of ratio indicators Anp R;;f IN ;Pg;iﬂ R:g:? :gﬁ?
Cashratic
) i 00437 0442 934 285
{current capital / short-tem fiabilties)
fedlestrato oo ot 257
§ LIQUIDITY RATIO {current capital/ short-term liabifties)
Cash ratio
. i : 14
{cash equivalents and cash / short-term fiabilfies) 00eB 42 288 °
Finarcial siabity rafio 002/ 119 124
{fixed assels / capital assels + long-lerm fiabiliies) {040240432) ' ]
Net prfl mrgin 10&2:1%11917 w4 163
(net profit/ profit from sale of goods + profit fzom sale of services ( 00 } ' '
Gross profit margin {gross 1056/
2 Profitability ratio prcht f profit from sl of goads + proft fom sale of services 100 AHH000HOT| 4443 4085
*Gross profit mergin gives information how mush profitis kept once af the cosls 400 ' '
are paid affer realsation of products and services on 2 marke!
Retum onassels (ROA) - R
Net proft / Tofal sssets* 10 410710 e 9
| everage rafion (D4243044231 0
1 |PRODUCTIVITY RATIO (totaf labiities / fived assels) 002
Return of short-erm assefs ratio £ 02
{tota! profit/ working capdal) ’
EBIT
4 B . . . 46214
EBIT {operating proft - aperating expenciures) 21848
{opsrating proft-Gperating expendirss) + amortisefon ISR
6 | SOLVENCYRATIO 916
| e edide aperaling prof 10 A _s
7| EBTORMARSH | i pcentge o ot evruns il T oS B
ASSETS Susimese 493658788230
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According to the Regulation on the provision of ground handiing services at airports
(Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia no. 61/2015-hereinafter the Regulation) Beligrade
Nikola Tesla Airport drew up the Business plan of OU Ground handling within ANT, no. 33-
179/2 dated on 24/06/20186.

According to the Regulation on the provision of ground handling services at airporis,
Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is responsible for accounting records of the business activities of
the airport operator and the activity of providing ground handling services so as to ensure
complete separation of accounts specified activities.

The Regulation defines the types of services that Ground Handling provides to third parties
as follows:

1) Aircraft ground handling on apron;
2) Ground handling of hoid baggage;
3) Supply of aircraft with fuel and libricants;

4} Ground handiing of mail and goods, in part related to the physical handling at arrival,
departure or transfer between the cargo terminal and the aircraft.

Determination of achieved revenues and expenditures in the period |-V 2018 of the QU
Ground handling is in accordance with the Business plan of OU Ground handling ANT no. 33-
179/2 dated 24/06/20186.
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5.1 REVENUES OF:0U GROUND-HANDLING = 0 0 i o s e

QU Ground handling in the period I-I1X 2018 has achieved the total revenue in the amount
of RSD 1,501,158,083, which is 18% of total revenues at the level of the Company.

Total realised business revenues based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in the
period I-IX 2018 amount RSD 1,499,651,625 and participates with 19% in the realised
business revenues of ANT for 2018.

Within operating revenues, the largest share of 71% consists of revenues from air services,
which amounted to RSD 1,059,226,721, share of revenues from other services in the amount
of RSD 217,794,353 and participate with 14%, revenues from CCM services in the amount of
RSD 131,003,511 and make up 9% of operating revenue, and revenues from passenger
services in the amount of RSD 91,537,039 and account for 6% of operating revenue in the
period |-1X 2018,

Financial revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 489,279 for the period X 2018
and they refer to realised exchange rate differences.

Other revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 1,017,159 for the period I-X 2018 and
they mostly refer to revenues from profit from sale of equipment.
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FREVENUE PATTERN.

Achiovament GH

A;ﬁiéiﬁam;h‘l GH|

Air sarvices of demestic carrier
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614000+614004+614300+6 14302+ 614203+614304 Landing il 150,849,752 g [i} 0
614010+614094+614310+ 814312+ 6143 13+614314 Lighting 0 39,455,928 0 1] 0
814030+814034+814330+ 8143324 8143334614324 GH 155,810,750 457.228.535| 457,228,539, 283 100
614040+614042+614043+614044 Infrastrueture ¢ 254,728,639 0 0 0
614050 Airbridges 1,038 67,201,534 7.082,415] 675,876 1
£14020+614024+694320+614323+614324 Aircraft abode revenua [ 3,975,553 0 0 0
- - Talal air services ([domestic camier):: : o T -A66,81%, 788 - 973,239,988) . 464,790,980 298, 48]
Alr servicos of (oreign carrier
615010+615011+816012+616013+615014 Landing 0} 602,249,965 Y 0] Y
615020+61502§+816022+616023+615024 GH 512,356.929{ 578,840,526 578,840,626 L 1§| 108
G15030+616031+615032+615033+615034 Lighting ] 60,881,026/ ] 9 2
615040+ 616042+516043+615044 Infrastructure ] 398,002,774 [ 0 0
B15060+516062 Alr-bridges 16,341,502] 160,852, 105 16,095, 146 98 10
£150004616001+615002+816003+615004 Aircratt abode ravenus o[ 12,332,847 9 0] 0
Totatllrsorviels(lnhmuﬁenal carﬁor) P N b R A8, 82) 1 ,813,168,642] - 604,036, TT2) 0 13 33
~Fotal air services - . T 6R4,670,641] 1 2,758,408, 5381 - 1,069,926,721| .. . 485, - 38
Passengor sarvice
614400+612404 . domastic carriers - domestic airdraffic | Passenger service d.c/l.c. 0: a 0 0 0
514181+614182+614183+814180+614182{BRS and
JPRM}#-S‘IM!D+E14412*G14413+61M14 Passangers service d.atLat, 43,224,786 788,751,548 32,371,819 75 4
615160+615152+815200+615210+615212+815213+516214+
61521 5+615662¢ 615864+ 6155596-PRM Passangar serv. infar.carrisrs 48,708, 839 1,823,143,439 58,165 419 121 3
618420+ 614430+ 6144324614433+ 614434 +616230+815232+
616233+615234 Security foe 0 957,282,456 0 [ 0
oo Tolal passenger service oo 81,933,628 0 3,668,177,45841 0 .91,637,038] .. 100 S
: Tata! air sarvicos and passongor servico .- 776,444,236; ' 6,365,686,082| - 1,460,783, 7680) © - 48] - * - 1B
COW sorvice
614500+6%4510 COW sarvice dom.market 119,523,238 119,832,792 120,598,790 o0 101
615300 +615310 (foreign} CW service internat, marke 9,692,905| 11,260,718 10,484,721 108! 93|
NS Tetal- CCW sarvices : R R T 131,003,544 - 434,083, 541] o) 0D
Tuhlmwimsmlahadﬁoalrmffc(l to V) 2 6,486,678,498% - 1,281,857,2711 4RO
Other sarvices PR R
614360+615100+615102 DCS senices 14,512,498 19,321,278 19,321,278 133 100
LR s G S A R Y R O L R E AT R N
514184+614391+615872+615873+615874+615875+615876+ Work order 118,937,574
615877+615891+615802+615085 B9 88
G14130+614131+615071+615072 VIP lounge ) 5 i { i
614 140+614142+615080+815082 CUTE (dom.+inll} 0] 133.724,183 O [
5143804615080 Last and found 14,844,908 15,819,837 107 104
6146+615120+615400+515401 Public senices o0 115,586,801 O G
12614820+ 615170 Catering senices business clas: 20 498,029 [ [
£14870+615810" Adwertising space 5 0 +35,200,734| ¢ [¢}
614883 ) = Commercial usage of tha:aprong: 1Bl 45815669 O 0
61416€}+614163+614184f615110+6§5112+615113+B15134 Aircraf de-icing senicest ¥ 114,972,405/ 93, 217433 53,217,433 80 100
51486{}4-5148511-&148650-61486&634867 B14868+515880+ R 146;’;‘3? 178 2
615885+615887+615888 - T 0 4]
Olhet notementioned serices dom+inll 7,155,212 16,652,738 i 7,208,044 102 44
: Othnrserviuesﬁwﬂ) 2T A22,678] 720,289,442 00 217,794,363 -7 BO L)
= Yotal §1 - Rwanuasfrom alo or sanﬂcos (VeV} 2 .74, 187,483,067] . 7,206,968,836( 1, 458 551 625 127, 21
Rovanuoes from sale of good: [ N
80~ Revanies from sale of karossna -l-goods 5 "5, 102,808] - (1 25 DR
. i
Total (W51)REVENUES FROM SALE (Vllﬂﬂil] D L 1,212,071,642] T 1 498 661826 - 127 21
64 & @5 - -Loaso -of business premlses oo Of 0 B0, T8, FTT] b iy s
T OPERATING REVENUES (X+X) -~ .- T GOFBI+6IB4+EE - | . 1,77,483,067|. - B,016,767,318! - 1,459,661,625 AR 1
- g6 - FINANCIAL REVEMUES - 243,018 102,170,477 458,278) 114 O
1 intgrest 0 53,175,029 Q 0. b
2 exchange rale differences - realised 430,795 30,579,995 489 279 114 2
3 exchange rale differences - non-realised 223 18,415.454 : [i] Q 3
It "7"BY, BE and 63 DTHER REVENUES - T Z,B64,082] - 33, ABT4B8] 3,007, 169] - & - - ¥
o Total revenues (XI+X1+X10Y - - 1,180,478,127) - - 6,151,445,283 1,604,158,063, 127 ﬁﬁ
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OU Ground handling in the period VHI-IX 2018 has achieved the totai revenue in the
amotint of RSD 569,976,144, which is 17% of total revenues at the level of the Company.

Total realised business revenues based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in the
period Vil-IX 2018 amount RSD 568,775,194 and participates with 17% in the realised
business revenues of ANT for 2018.

Within operating revenues, the largest share of 76% consists of revenues from air services,
which amounted to RSD 426,521,473, share of revenues from other services in the amount of
RSD 58,564,227 and participate with 10%, revenues from CCM services in the amount of RSD
45,713,448 and make up 8% of operating revenue, and revenues from passenger services in
the amount of RSD 39,976,046 and account for 7% of operating revenue in the period VII-IX
2018.

Financial revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 220,974 for the period VII-IX 2018
and they refer {o realised exchange rate differences.

Other revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 979,876 for the period Vil-IX 2018 and
they mostly refer to revenues from profit from sale of equipment.
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P L s Achlovemont GH| 'Achievemont - tAchievemant GH
Ne. Service deseription = LU\iX 2017 | VIMX 2048 - | - viax2ote ] |
i) 2 3 4 5 5
Air services of domestic cammier
£14000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 0 66,620,835 0 0 Y
6140105614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 0 16.073,930 0 Y 0
614030+514034+614330+6143324614323+614234 GH 52,935.389 157,369,137 197,368,127 314 100]
614040+4614042+614043+614044 nfrastructure 0 $12,045, 142, ¢} 0 0
61405¢ Alrbridges a 30,680,518 3,188,084 0 10
£14020+614024+614320+614323+814324 Alrora®t aboda revenus 0 1,853,828 a O [
T ] o Total air services (domestic carrar) T TR LD RN ] A 6 006, 388] - 424,84, BB 1 200,557,221 ) 319 4T,
Air sarvices of forsign carrier
615010+815014+615012+616013+615014 Landing [ 204 552,652 0 [}) [
615020+615021+648022+615023+816024 GH 181,023,550 215,976,182 219,976,182 115 100
615030+815031+6156032+615033+6815034 Lighting [4 23,055,145 i G o
£150404615042+615043+615044 Infrastructurs [ 148,638,312 O 1] B
£15050+B15062 Air-bridges 6,279,127 57,572,364, 5,988,070 85 19,
“_ 615600+615001+516002+615003+615004 Aircraft abode revonus 0 2,543,279 & Ky 2
1} S -Total airuMcas{mmma!ionat camer) o A O30 TA9T, 3028771 677,337,936 226,964,258 o 11533
B > ;- Total alr sorvices - - i R A - JUE o 280,238,078) - 1,102,181,785) 426,521,473 1641 - 39
Passenge: sarvlm
614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domestic air-traffic | Passsnger sarvice d.ofi.c. 4 [4] 0| 9 0
51418 T+614102#614183+614180+814192(BRS and
PRM}¥614410+644412+614413+614414 Passenger service d.atliat 12,151,343 370,221,838 15,348,792 &4 4
§15150+645162+616200+616210¢815212+616213+815214+
615215+616862+615804+616696-PRM Passenger serv. Inter.carriery 20,161,409 732,850,152 24,626,254 122 3
6144204 614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+615232+
616213+616234 Sacurity fag o 418,712,744 0 Y 0
il_ﬂ S Total passenger servica e i e e e L 38, 302, 80) 01,628, TB4,733) 039976, 046] A0 T g
I . Tolal AlF SBTVICES NG PASSONGET BBTVIES . o 1| oo [ e, 60,878 - #,504,866,510] . 466,407,519) .. 166] ... 18]
CCW sarvice
614500+6145%0 CCW sarvice dem.market 34,561,750 42.224.109? 42,409,410 107 169
415200 516310 fareign) CCW service internat_marke 3,263,438] 5,485,339 3,304,048 icl 95}
I ooy Yotel COW servdeRg T s e T dg 281861 46,713,448 10 48 Y13, 448] <7407 100)
VR Toul sawicosrelaudtoalrtrafﬁc(ltol\'} .0 342,366,084] - - -2,670,679,966| -2 512,210,367 oA o)
Othar sarvices
1 1514380+615100+615102 DCS senices §,576.710 A00)
B14110+6141124614115+614116+814170+814173+514 180+
2 1814184+814391+815872+615873+615674+515670 615876+ Witk ordar 43,744,244
615877+615891+615892+G15885 i &4 88
3 [B14?30+B14131+B15071+615072 VIP lounge Lo 1,905,877, U 0
4 [B143a0+614142+615090+615092 CUTE (dom.+intl) 0 57,034,078 0 0,
5 l_BMEB(HS‘(SQ&O Lost and found - 7,255,637 7,524,326 12 $07)
B {B146+615120+515400+81541 Public senices 36,491; 679 0 [1)
7 1614820+615170 {-alefing senices business c%as [ [o;
8 1B14870+6158707 Adwrlising space 0 i
9 1614883 Commercial usage of e apron [1 [
10 5141ED+514153+6141G4+G15%10+51$112*615113»*5%5114 Aircraf de-cing senices [} 0|
" £14850+614B61+614065+6 14866 +614861161480016. ; e
G15605+515867+615688 : Q 0]
12 iOther non-mentioned sem‘ces dom+inu ZOTE074]E0ET 6,459,532 12,330,168 87 35
VI iOther servicss (1 fo.11): - T 50 246,686] - 976,169,341] S 056,664,207] T md] A
VIE - -1 Total 61« anenuosirom sale nfserv:us(V+Vl) . 402,581,730] - 2,945,849,308 -BEB,TIEA04] o4 e
Ravnnues from sa[a of goods b )
VIH - 80 - Revenues from sale ofkarosem +goo<is CAABRLTER D ] =0
X Total (BO+B1) REVB&UES FRDM SALE (VI+VH- - - 2,860,032,060; ° - 568,776,184) 14 | 9
LER 2084 B BB - Lease of business premisas - 343,284, 3007 o D) B
Xi s U OPERATING REVENUES (IX+X) - -0 G081 +82+84465 - C4012,581,730; 3294, 326360 568,775,184 A8t - AT
XiF - S UGB -FINANCIAL REVEMUES - -0 o e Sl e a0,400 Mﬂtﬂs ; 220,974 216 i
1 interest 0 15,207,145 [ R 0
2 exchange rate differences . realised 80,198 25,334,150 220,974 276) i
3 exchange rate diffierencas - noneslised -367,182 gl ] O
XiiE 67, BB and 69 OTHER REVENUES ° Cn A BTAR4] o gTe 8Te) §
XV Tota) rovenues (XIXI+Xiit Ui 3,362,676,288] ... 569,978,144} 1
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5.2, EXPENDITURES OF OU GROUND-HANDLING = oo i e

in the period I-IX 2018 total expenditures of GH were achieved in the amount of RSD
1,342,613,334, which reprasents 28% of realised expenditures of ANT on this bases for the
relevant period of 2018.

Total realised business expenditures based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in
the period I-IX 2018 amount RSD 1,340,949,106 and participates with 28% in the realised
business expenditures of ANT for 2018.

Within operating expenditures there are the following expenditures:
-the highest share of 81% are costs incurred on the basis of costs of salaries, fees and
other personal expenses in the amount of RSD 1,091,785,686;
The change in the number of employees (the takeover of 340 employeas from Air Serbia
for the needs of OU Ground Handling) influenced the increase in the costs of wages and
salaries, by 45% compared to the same period of the previous year.-the costs of material
and energy make 9% of the costs within operating expenditures and they amount RSD
122,194,080,
-the costs of amortisation and reserving amount RSD 75,761,285 and they represent 6% of
operating expenditures of OU GH,
- costs of production services (RSD 27,937,858) and
- intangible costs (RSD 23,270,218).

Financial expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 580,767 for the period X
2018 and they refer to negative exchange rate differences.

Other expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 1,083,461 for the perio
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avnBTRE AT

Achievamant GH 'Mhiewrmnt 1 Achievemant GHi .- o )

e | vt T e INDICES | SHARE

1 2 '3 4 ] 5{5«‘3) 75
50 | PURGHASE VALUE OF SOLD'GOODS 7 7% S 670,681 ag] gl
501 |PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS o] 4,670,661 0 [ [
51117 |COSTS GF MATERIAL AND ENERGY - S U AT ATE] o 078,000,708] L 122,494,080 £ ee] o i
511 |COSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 55,910,231 103,886,641 53,922,746 % 2
512 [COSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 2,732,161 18,565,412 4,990 415 183 2
513 COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 59,325,169 210,481,470 53,077,837 89| 28]
514 [COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 4,868,817 45,774,920 10,201,063 7o 2
[518 JCOSTS OF SMNGLE WRITE-OFF OF TCOLS AND INVENTORY 38,000 334,330 0 o [}
{82 -~ TcOSTS DF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND GTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES CISOMEASY - 2678118,854 - 0ot Teneee] a8l |
[s20  iCOSTS OF SALARES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (GROSS) 400,220.863;  1,561,360,196 509,021,266, 152 39
[s21 " ICOSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 716395300 277603485 109,015,576 152 38|
[s22 " 1cOSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS - GROSS o] 792.9%] o 0 ol
{526 ICOSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 2000 485,800,224 233,148,549 13 i
1525 |COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR OTHER CONTRACIS - GROSS ol ol of o of
COMPENSATION TO DIRECTOR, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 783,620] 7,124,889 503,503] 78] 8
OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND COMPENSATIONS 7068221 39134801 140,005,499 138 48
" HEOSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES L R T Ry R R e Ry 1| Ity
COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 18,405,749 5,234,124 16,704,959 90) E
COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 13,430,615 145,225,302 6,673,869 & 5
COST OF LEASE a 28,945,806 0 ] 0
ADVERTISING COSTS 765,110 75,726,608 ¢ [} 3

COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 5,334,845 34,088,333 4,557,030} 5 13
77|COSTS OF AMORTISATION AND RESERVES 57 B e R T T e || i |
AMORTISATION COSTS 100,573,630 550,564,148 75,761,285 75 3l
RESERVES FOR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION | 0 0] o o
OTHER LONG-TERM RESERVES 118,506| 5,000,000 of 0 [
INTANGIBLE COSTE 10 0 o v T D e D T TUasisgtd] - MeeAn o 2anoel 88 i

COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES 25,868,640} 175,540,268 5,979,761 2 3
COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 02,703 7,147,585] A e
COSTS OF NSURANCE PREMIUMS 7.574,104] 2
COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 357,830 7
COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 644,752 3

COSTS OF TAXES 4,538,676 . 1
OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 2818577 7 = o
OPERATING EXPENDITURES /= -f 0 iy i e L 054,541,889 -+ 4,673,801,836} . 4, 340,009,106 AT

| FIHANGIAL EXPENDITURES : 3 T e T e R
.| INFEREST EXPENDITURES ; i 9 0
"|NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES 560,767 ] 2|
EXPENDITURES FOR EFFEGTSOF CURRENCY GLAUSE o af ¢

158 -.-rmm:mapmwass BABTET]
|57 |OTHER EXPENDITURES - S g and] g
570 [LOSSES FROM EXPENDTURES AND SALE OF Nwmus NVESTMERT B REAL ESTATES AN ol
571 |LOSS FROM WRITE-OFF AND SALE OF amoslc.t\L Resouacas [} 9]
574 IDEFCT o 12|
575 |CONTRAGTED RISK. PROTECTON NOT PRESENTED AS. REV RESE 0 0|
578 |EXPENDITURES FROM DiRECTWRiTE-(}FF OFR 'CENABLES 9 ol
577 |WRITE-OFF [ ]
579 |OTHER NON-MENTIONED wemmes 1t 1
58 EXPENDITURES FROM PROPERTY IMPAIRMENT. 700 Sl
582 [IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY; FLANT AND EQUPMENT 0 ]
583 |IMPAIRMENTOELORGT. FIN INVST AND OTHER SECURITES FOR SALE [} [
585 _|IMPAIRMENT OF RECEMVABLES DF SHORT-T, N, INVEST o o
585 77 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER PROPERTY : : 0 G
5 - |EXPENDITURES.OF PREVIOUS YEARS 170 Tl 308,540, R
501 |EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS ol o o Cglter g
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Y.Q?A.L‘E?.(P.z_u,mwi?%s = emERe] o aBT2eNE L32ERIH]

Business report for the period I-IX 2018

.
pa—y



Wquarter

In the period ViI-1X 2018 total expenditures of GH were achieved in the amount of RSD
435,788,177, which represents 25% of realised expenditures of ANT on this bases for the
relevant period of 2018.

Total realised business expenditures based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in
the period VII-IX 2018 amount RSD 435,750,554 and participates with 27% in the realised
business expenditures of ANT for 2018.

Within operating expenditures there are the following expenditures:
-the highest share of 81% are costs incurred on the basis of costs of salaries, fees and
other personal expenses in the amount of RSD 354,351,988,
The change in the number of employees (the takeover of 340 employees from Air Serbia
for the needs of OU Ground Handling) influenced the increase in the costs of wages and
salaries, by 41% compared to the same period of the previous year,
-the costs of material and energy make 8% of the costs within operating expenditures and
they amount RSD 35,489,823,
-the costs of amortisation and reserving amount RSD 25,125,791 and they represent 8% of
operating expenditures of OU GH,
- costs of production services (RSD 12,887,769) and
- intangible costs (RSD 7,895,183).

Financial expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 82,751 for the period VH-IX
2018 and they refer to negative exchange rate differences.
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E £+ Achlovament : T aenisvemant 3
Acgour SRR Achievamam i
1 gt VIHX 2013
1 2 3 4

50 IPURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD-GOODS . - 7 0 AR pf gl
[s61  IPURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS ¢ 4,072,453 0 [} 0
[847 " lcosTs oF MATERIAL AND ENERGY v 33,858,384 U U119,.243,223] - 36,489,823 108 20
(511 JCOSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 11,639,253 34,502,739 10,859,263 83 2
1512 [GOSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 1,168,397 5,217,583 3,293,609 282 &
(513 |COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 17,455,861 70,073,625 18,718,737 113 28
COSTS OF SPARE PARIS 3,553,870 9,156,208 1,608,123 45 18]

COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND MVENTORY 28,000 263,018 o o ol

7 |COBTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES . .1 | 7. 252.089,306] .~ 886,067.488] - -364,361,888) = 341k -~ ag)
COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS {GROSS) 131,303,840 04,505770)  102.876.877 147 1)

COSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTREBLTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 73,503,349 90,322,366 34,470,808 "7 .

COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONFRACTS - GROSS 0 92,54 [ o o

COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 74,441 495 171,375,242 8t,145.433 09 a
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- |COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES ; i 4G5 12T AN8e7| - szpaT7es] 68 40
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COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 2,148,767] 15,055,089 1,668,838 11|
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5.3, FINANCIAL RESULT.OF OU GROUND HANDLING " "o i e

From the above tables it can be concluded that for the period I-iX 2018 Ground Handling
realized total revenues in the amount of RSD 1,501,158,063, total expendiiures in the amount
of RSD 1,342,613,334 which resulted in gross profit in the amount of RSD 158,544,729.

b

No.

Posifion

Achievement
GH 1-tX
2017

' Achievement

ANT
2018

X

Achievement
GH X
2018

Index

Particip

afion

2

3

4

5 6(5/3)

7{5/4)

Operating revenues

1,177,483,057

8,015,787,318

1,498,651,625 127

19

Operating expenditures

1,054,511,699

4,573,601,836

1,340,949,106 127

29

EIV B N T QUONCR N

- |Business profit (1-2) .o

L 422,974,358]

' 3,442,185,482

T e T02819]

Tl

Financial revenues

431,018

102,170,477

489,279 114

Financial expenditures

53,075,252

jevion| e

+ |Financial profit (4-5): -

5,222,433

880,767 i

[Financial loss (5-4)

4,791,415

1.48,095,225!

©99,487]

-~

Other revenues

2,564,052

33,487,488

1,017,159 40

]

Other expenditures

|Other profit (7-8) 1 o

4,084,522

280,549,587

1,083,461 27

0aT

Otherloss 87).

4,520,870 -

247,062,109

10

| Total revenues {1#4+47) 0

L 74,180,478127

8,151;445,283

©oA4,501,4568,063 1

“|Total expenditures {2+5+8) " -

14,063,818.654]

'4,877,226,686

1,342,613,334]

T A%6l

e

Total gross profit (10-11) © =

12a’

Total'gross loss (1110) 0]

| 116,659,473

13,274,218,598]

=48

Period tax expenditure

17,499,000

14

Deferred period tax expenditure

15

Deferred incorme t&

16

Earnings paid by empl

AT

INet profit 07 L

-'99,160,473|

OU Ground Handling.in the period |-
134,763,020,
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ll quarter:

From the above tables it can be concluded that for the period I-1X 2018 Ground Handling
reglized total revenues in the amount of RSD 569,976,144, total expenditures in the amount of
RSD 435,788,177 which resuited in gross profif in the amount of RSD 134,187,967

_ FINANCIAL RESULT

Achievement Achievement Achievement
No. Position GH  VIMX ANT VIIX 2018 GH  VIMX | Unpeke [Yyewhs
2017 2018

> 3 P 5 6(5/3) | 7(5A4)

Operating revenues 402,581,730  3,291,326,360 568,775,194 141 17
Operatang expendttures 352,777,673 1,585,304 ,879 435,750,554 124 27
“|Business profit (1-2) . 047 40,804,056| . 1,706,021,382 . 133,024,640| . ..267| 8

Financial revenues 80,421 40,174,115 220,974 275 1
5 |Financial expenditures 4,118,899 10,370,134 82,751 2 1

6. |Financial profit (4:5) © - oo T oo a3 gRql . 438,228 ] D

““ga  |Financial loss (54) 4,038,478 o hio b g

£

7 |Cther revenues 1,336,789 21,074,814 979,976 73
Other expenditures 2,233,126 177,528,010 45,128 -2 0
92 |Otherloss (8-7) o nieool i g96338) o 456,483.497) o o ool

403,998,391+ 3.352,575.280) 5’695?6',144 B T R [

40" |Total revenues (1#4+7). = | o FYTE
©359,129,609| *1,773,203,123]: - 435,788,477 421} 25

+11.|Total expenditures (2+5+8) + = | -

12 [Total gross profit (10-41]__ TEaaiee] | aeee]

12a{Total grossioss (11-10).

T

13 |Period tax éxpenditure
14 |Deferred period tax expenditure
15 |Deferred income tax |
16 {Earnings ;)ald by em pioyer )
17 Net profit - -

238,262, 704' 20191522 300 8

1.339,572.936

©38,138,775) '--:fﬁs,ass;m Sipee g

“Ground Handimg in’ the pertod VIEIX 2

he amount of RSD
113 996,444 S
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INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS FOR PROTECTION OF ENVIRONME

Joint Stock Company Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is actively involved in solving the
problems of environmental pollution and raising the environmental awareness of all employees
and other persons ANT has direct and indirect contact with.

Monitoring of land and groundwater at the location of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport

In the procedure of public procurement, a contract was concluded on July 16, 2018 with the
bidder Institute for Qccupational Safety and Health, Novi Sad, up fo 30,000,000.00 RSD
excluding VAT.

By reviewing the obtained results, the following could be stated:

» Sampling and laboratory analysis of soil and groundwater was done in the period July-
August 2018;

»  Soil samples were taken from 73 locations (with more depths of 0.5-5.0m), the number
is not yet final, as some results are still pending;

» In almost 50% of the soil samples (158), the presence of organic pollutants (pollutants)
in concentrations above the maximum limit value (GMV) was observed,

» In only 3 samples at two locations (from depths of 0.5 and 1.0m), the presence of C10-
C40 hydrocarbons in concentrations above the remediation values (RV) was
determined,

> In 322 samples the presence of inorganic pollutants in concentrations above GMV,
most commonly cobalt and cadmium (increased nickel concentrations were not
considered), was observed,

» In all samples of soil concentrations of inorganic poliutants did not exceed remedlat
values; =

» 12 samples of groundwater were taken and analyzed in total;

» In 2 samples of groundwater, the values of lead, copper, chro_ juf

arsenic exceeded RV, while in one sample the copper co
and

f’r'thé ui;;‘rléféction of soil
eys in (ocatsons where

Bearmg
and groundwa

prevent any hand!mg in'work processes that” ca
the environment, which will-harmionize the wo!
handling of dangerous goods and hazarcious’

{ rbcesses W|th the !egls!ano *feguiatmg the
te. ;
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Removal of waste material containing ashestos

Procedures for procurement of replacement of roof coverings and removal of waste material
containing asbestos in accordance with the environmental legisiation in order to improve the
health conditions of use of facilities are in progress.

Cleaning service for oily concrete surfaces

Procurement procedure for removal of deposits of oily material on concrete surfaces is under
way in order fo reduce the negalive impact on the environment in accordance with the

regulations that regulate this area.
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The following text describes all significant occcurrences which happened at the Airport
Nikola Tesla Beilgrade in the period I-1X 2018:

» French company VINCI, on March 22, 2018 signed an Agreement on concession of
Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport for a period of 25 years.

» From 10.03.2018 iranian state airline lran Air started flights on the Belgrade-Tehran
route, with A320 aircraft, twice a week,

» Mahan Air started with flights on March 20, 2018 with A310, and reguiar flights will
start from 04.06.2018, twice a week, on the route Belgrade - Tehran,

» Qeshm Air started on March 18, 2018. with A320, and will continue flights from
31.06.2018 twice a week, on the Belgrade-Tehran route.

« Transavia has increased frequency on the route Belgrade - Amsterdam with flights
6 times a week from 26.02.2018 which practically doubled the number of flights with
B737-800.

e From 01.05.2018 (six months from the entry into force of the Lease Agreement), the
effects of favorable conditions for leasing shall apply to the lessee "Dufry”, MGN 2,
in the amount of EUR 2.50 per each outgoing international passenger,

« 0On15.05. to May 16, 2018 at 00 hours the handover of two parking lots was carried
out, as follows: parking P1 and public parking garage, between JSC Belgrade
Nikola Tesla Airport and JKP Parking Service Belgrade based on which further
management was transferred to JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, which of
business strategic significance. In accordance with the subject amendment dated
16.05.2018 the new price list of parking places and short-term stops am_e “into
force. By taking over parking lot P1 and public parking garage from .

Service Beigrade, new conditions and ways of using park

created, and accordingly a proposa# of the new Pnce_l: t has

_:_f::"ructure of the Republic of Serbia
201?709 Owned.property right

& ) =3739/‘[ KO Surgin,
nsport and Infrastructure of the: Repubilic of
umber 354—00 000441’2017—09 e

Forthe
on March 8, 2018 the M:mstry of Constructlo
Serbia passed the Final Decision on legalizat
The title was reg;stered 1o ANT;
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For the facility Parking lot P 2.1, area 1200 m2, cp 3739/1 KO Surgin, on 05.03.2018, MGS!
RS passed the final decision on legalization (number 354-00-00793 / 2017-09). The title was
registered to ANT;

For the facility Parking lot P4, area 3153 m2, cp 3739/1 KO Suréin, on January 25, 2018, the
Ministry of Construction, Transport and Infrastructure of the Republic of Serbia passed the final
decision on legalization number; 354-00-00023 / 2017-09; registered ownership rights in favor
of ANT,

For the facility Parking lot P8, area 2600 m2, cp 3739/1 KO Suréin, on 05.03.2018, the Ministry
of Construction, Transport and Infrastructure of the Republic of Serbia finally adopted the
Decision on legalization number: 354-00-00734 / 2017-09. The title was registered to ANT,;

For the facility Parking lot P7, area 4460 m2, cp 3739/1 KO Suréin, on January 25, 2018, the
Ministry of Construction, Transport and Infrastructure of the Republic of Serbia finally adopted
the Decision on legalization number: 354-060-00022 / 2017-09; Registered ownership right in
favour of ANT.

For the facility Parking lot P8, with handling area of 4000m2, cp 3739/1 KO Suréin, on
25.01.2018. The Ministry of Construction, Transport and Infrastructure of the Republic of
Serbia passed the Final Decision on legalization number: 354-00-00026 / 2017-09; Registered
ownership right in favour of ANT.

For the facility Parking lot P10, area 3950 m2, cp 3738/1 KO Suréin, on January 25, 2018, the
Ministry of Construction, Transport and Infrastructure of the Republic of Serbia adopted the
final Decision on legalization number: 354-00-00027 / 2017-09; Registered ownership rlght in
favour of ANT. _

For the buﬂdlng of Annex to Terminal 1, with an area of approx1mate!y 24870

finalthe Lega!;satlon d
decision is 146

09. Gross area from 'fhe Eegaiasatlon

Legahsat:on dem_sao_n ,number '354- 00—000,89/2" 18-
decision is 39.60 m2. The title was re_gistered ”NT

For the building:Air-traffic-building---G
ownership rights in favor of ANT was caff

for-de-icing, kp-3739/1-KO-Suréin,-registration of
ed out in RGZ SKN Surgin based on the decision of
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RGZ number 952-02-20-200 / 2017 of 05.06.2018. on the surface of 628 m2. The title was
registered to ANT;

For the building Air Traffic Building - Firefighting garage for equipment, area of 1432.12 m2, kp
3739/1 KO Surdin, in the RGZ SKN Suréin, registration of the ownership right in favor of the
ANT was made based on the decision of RGZ number 952-02-20-200 / 2017 of 06/05/2018.
year, on an area of 1158 m2. The title was registered to ANT;

For the building Air Traffic Building - Auxillary building, area 418 m2, kp 3739/1 KO Surcin, in
the RGZ SKN Suréin, registration of the ownership right in favor of the ANT was carried out
based on the decision of RGZ number 952-02-20-200 / 2017 of 05.06.2018, on the surface of
418 m2. The title was registered to ANT,;

For the object Fire water pool R-264, area 13 m2, kp 3739/1 KO Surdin was registered in RGZ
SKN Suréin registration of property right in favor of ANT based on the decision RGZ number
952-02-20-200 7 2017 of 05.08. 2018, on the surface of 13 m2. The title was registered to ANT,;

For the facility — aircraft handling drivers, area 401.86 m2, kp 3738/1 KO Surcin, in the RGZ
SKN Suréin, registration of ownership rights in favor of the ANT was carried out based on the
decision of RGZ number 952-02-20-200 / 2017 of 05.06.2018. The title was registered to ANT;

For the building - crematorium building, area 30.45 m2, kp 3739/1 KO Surin, the registration of
ownership rights in favor of ANT was carried out in RGZ SKN Suréin based on the decision of
RGZ number 952-02-20-200/ 2017 of 05.06.2018. The title was registered to ANT;

For the construction facility for dogs, measuring 83.43 m2, kp 3739/1 KO Surcin, in the RGZ
SKN Surcin registration of ownershlp rights in favor of the ANT was made based_ on:the

The Government of the Republic of Serbia, on January 31, passed | s
/ 2018 by which it agreed that the immovable property in the: ow ershi
Serbia, as follows: cad. plots No. 3733, 3735/1, 3750/1 .

he Republic of
750/9, 3750/11,
1, 426411, 4264/2,
O Surgin, is entered
: elgrade Nikoia Tesla
gh non-monetary stakes.

Assembly of JSC Belgrade Nik inary 19th session, held on

March 20, 2018 decnded to mcre

Belgrade NiKi -p

3750/6, 3750/7; 3750/9; 3750/11; “3750/13; 37 3995/3, 3996/ “;_‘-3998/3 3999/3
4140/1, 4263/1, 426411, 426412, 4265, 4266/1, 426711, 4267/3, 4268/1, 4268/6; 4269/2
4272/1, 427516, in the list of immovable property number 2348 KO Surdin.

The Government of the Republic of Sei 01.03.2018 made a Conclusion 05 Number:
464-1883:/.2018.by.which-it- agreed-that the.immovable property .owned by the-Republic of
Serbia, facilities "buildings no. 26,  building Public garage-Public parking garage “"and
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7600/12233 ideal paris of the facility "facility no. 41, Parking lot", on cad.plot number 3738/1,
registered in RE list No. 8519, KO Surgin, be entered as contribution in kind of the Republic of
Serhia, to JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, for the purpose of increasing the share capital.

Assembly of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport at the exiraordinary 20th session, held on
£6.06.2018 made a decision to increase the basic capital on the basis of contribution in Kind of
the Republic of Serbia, which consists of the ownership right on the foliowing real estate:

1. The building registered as building no. 26, building Public garage - Public parking
garage, number of storeys: g.f. +3, the building has a permit for use, on the cad.plot no.
37391, registered in RE List No. 6519 CM Surcin.

2. 7600/12233 ideal parts of the building inscribed as facility no. 41 Parking lot, the facility
has an approval for use, on the cadastral plot no. 3739/1, registered in RE list No. 6519
CM Surcin.

After the completion of the capitai increase procedure, ANT became the owner of Public
Parking Garage and Parking facilities.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 26/07/2018 made the Conclusion 05 number:
484-7181 / 2018-1, which agreed that the immovable property is owned by the Republic of
Serbia, as follows: cad.plot no. 3429/1, 3431/1, 3430/1, 4150/8, 4150/16, 4277/6, 4141/,
414211, 4143/1, 427517, 427519, 4272/3, 4272 | 4, 4268/5, 4268/9, 3750/18, 3750/19, 4112/4,
4112/5 and 3756/3 KO Suréin entered as contribution in kind of the Republic of Serbia into the
company JSC Beigrade Nikola Tesla Airport, in order to increase the basic capital of the
company by contribution in kind.

Assembly of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport held an extraordinary 23rd session,:on
14.08.2018. On the same day, it decided to increase the basic capital based:or
contribution in kind of the shareholder - the Republic of Serbia and i iss hares to the
Republic of Serbia in the name of the contribution. '

owner of the
414211, 4143 | 1,
4112/5 and 3756/3

After the completion of the capital increase procedure, the
following plots: 3429/1, 3431/1, 3430/1, 4150/8, 4150/16; :_,2??16 414
427511 427213 427214 4268/5, 4268/9, 8,

KO Suréin

Airport.

The Governm i erbi ’ s nade a Concl'usion 05 Number:
. s:0f a direct negotiation,
bmidmg Iand which-is-cad. plot No: 4111/2 KO, Sur&m‘ total area of" ; registered in the
Real Estate List No. 6657 KO Suréin for the purpese .of resolving property Irelations:in: order to
realize the project of concession for financing, development through construction  and
reconstruction, maintenance and manag of infrastriicture of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla
Airport and.performing-the activities -of: irport-operator,-in-favor-of-JSC -Belgrade- Nikola
Tesla Airport, for a totaf purchase price: 416,000.00 RSD.
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After the conclusion of the contract with the Republic Property Directorate, ANT became the
owner of cad. plot 4111/2 KO Suréin.

By the decision of the Republic Geodetic Authority, Real Estate Cadastre Agency Surcin
number 952-02-20-223-3256/2018 of 06.08.2018, the registration of the ownership right in
favor of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is permitted on the following facilities:

1. Parking lot P 2.1, No. 31 on cadastral plot No.3738/1

2. Parking lot P 8, No. 32 on cadastral plot No.3739/1

3. Techical maintenance department facility with boiler room, , No. 4 on cadastral plot
No.3739/27

4. Part of air traffic building — Part of apron ,B* (upgrade) and taxiway ,L*, No. 1 on

cadastral plot No.3739/28

Other facilities — Facility of a technical base - Fire brigade, No. 20 on cadastral piot No.

3739/33

Road traffic building part - Perimeter road, No.21 on cadastral plot No.3739/33

Parking lot P 9 ahead of barracs, No. 1 on cadastral plot No.3739/36

Parking lot P 4, 6poj 4 on cadastral plot No.3739/37

Road traffic facility - Traffic iane - part of the Suréin road, No. 1 on cadastral plot

N0.3739/38

10. Road traffic building part - Airport Road, No. 1 on cadastral plot N0.3739/45

o

Lo~ o

The Government of the Republic of Serbia, after the implementation of the project of
reparcelling in the cadastre, on 09.08.2018 made a Conclusion no. 464-7663/2018, which
gives consent to delete the right fo use of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport from plots
intended for other users. Also, the Supervisory Board of the Company by decision No. DNO-
316/2018 dated 08.08.2018 agreed to delete the nght to use of JSC Belgrade Ntko!a_" "esla

of 24.08.2018 The Govemment conclusion was :mplemented
Republic of Serbia was registered on the above plots.

nent of deficing fluid tank, a
'ssembly'. On the basis of the

aircraft de-icing and
ground floor contalner fa

negohats'on in favor of ANT, since. it fdrms part
price of 235.600, 00 RSD =

The ANT and the Republlc F‘-‘roperty Direct_ ate concluded. on September 21 2018 centract on
the sale of cad. plot number 3742/11, ce by the notary public, Katarina Pavicevi¢, under
the numbsr OPU 81 0-2018" o d DR NP R etahtli| Teyikevis, MUNE
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Prefabricated containers for employees with space for accommodation_aircraft

handling equipment

Purpose:_The initiative for the implementation of the project was undertaken with the
aim of creating a unique space for the accommodation of employees in operational
services, as well as the formation of handling and parking spaces for vehicles and
space for the disposal of equipment used for aircraft handling purposes.

The total area of the two facilities is about 1,700m2, and the interior is equipped with
modern office furniture, tea kitchens and shower cabins, which enables employees in
the operational services who work continuously 24 hours a day, adequate comfort and
working conditions. The accommodation capacity of the facilities is 230 people.

The realization of this project enabled the liberation and more adequate operational and
commercial exploitation of the space in the terminal facility, which was previously used
for accommodation of employees in operational services.

Status: Works on the construction of prefabricated container facilities for employees
with space for the accommodation of equipment for aircraft handiing were completed on
March 5, 2018.

Arrangement of Terminal 2

Purpose: Nikola Tesla Belgrade Airport is continuously improving its offer to
passengers and other users of airport services, and as a logical continuation of the
arrangement of the Terminal 1 registration hall, which was completed in 2017, the
Terminal 2 registration hall has been upgraded. The works involved emprovement ‘of
the visual identity, space designation and enabling the automation of the registration of
passengers and baggage. A reorganization of the existing commercial space has been
completed and new commercial facilities have been _addec Jand airline
companies counters.

d'on30.05.2018.

ks.on_the. arrangement of the
“The exastmg ‘parking lot will be
rea around 3950m2 and planned
hat around.1850.m2 of parking
approx;matety 2100 m2 of

By }eallzatlon ‘of this-project TAX| veh
of parking lot P10 to.better organize &
currently bemg created in front of th

Status: Execution of works was ci e.te,d.‘on‘_ZB.Augu_st_ 208, e
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Construction of sidewalk

« Purpose: The project is being implemented in order to raise the level of safety of road
users, primarily pedestrians, in the public zone of the airport complex, and in
accordance with the Decision of the City Administration of the City of Belgrade - the
Secretariat for Transport. The construction of the sidewalk on the former regional road
R266 is planned to be carried out in the zone of Nikola Tesla Airport, Belgrade, with a
total length of 950m. The works will include the establishment of a stop for public
transport vehicles, vehicles for the transport of employees, and the formation of
positions for TAX| vehicles on hold.

s Status: Execution of works was compieted on 19 September 2018,

Enforcement of floor construction

s Purpose: The reinforcement of the floor construction is planned to allow the instailation
of a new X-ray device for baggage screening, which is significantly larger than the
existing one. Considering that the existing floor structure of the Terminal 2 facility is not
designed for additional load, a technical documentation wili be prepared which will
provide for load capacity verification and reinforcement of the floor structure and all
other additional [oad-bearing structural elements. As per developed technical
documentation and obtaining of necessary approvals for execution of works from
competent authorities, works are being executied on installation of additional structure
elements and adjustment of the existing ones.

:grbgress and the

works. Connection of the new and existing constructron is:
restoration of the area to |ts ongmal conditlon .

i works on the formation of
of he anrcraft semce assets

Creation of technica
posztsons for charqm

1t ‘service of eiectncaliy powered
sure that: their battenes are

prepared'fdi‘ arranglng and equzpplng a sit
'parkmg vehlctes and electnc eqmpment

« Status: The works were comgjgted on Septem ber 12,2 2018
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Development of technical documentation and execution of works on the
formation of positions for charging of the aircraft service units with the electrical

ener

» Purpose: The increase in the number of service units of electrically powered aircraft
used at the airport has caused the need to ensure that their batteries are supplied in the
appropriate place. For this reason, technical documentation has been prepared for
arranging and equipping a site that would provide suitable conditions for parking
vehicles and electric equipment during the recharge of batteries with two shelters of a
covered site with a total of 11 parking spaces.

s Status: All works are completed on 12 September 2018.

Improving the security control of passport check points

 Purpose: These works include the instaliation of electro-operated sliding doors (10
doors in Terminal 2 and 4 doors in Terminal 1), with appropriate control devices, on the
passages between cabins from which passport control of departing passengers is
carried out. The works were carried out in accordance with the request of the Ministry of
Internal Affairs in order to improve the security control of passenger flows on passport
check points and improve efficiency.

» Status: The works on improving the security control of passport check points were
completed on June 10, 2018.

Instaliation of smoking cabins

. Purpose In order to satssfy the reqwrements of p_a "

equ:pment-_
product_s_

ment :Contraét works on the
Energopro;ekt Industrua from

to them, generate mformatlon g 'er e reports and tndlcators that are’ used in
everyday business and decision-ma
In every organization with a large num
solution that will consolidate the relev

] databases there is a need for an "umbreEia“
a in one place, thus creating a new database from
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which reports and analysis of a comprehensive company profile will be generated and which
will be the basis for management decision-making.

By implementing the reporting, analysis and analytics system, the airport can achieve many
benefits when it comes to better resource planning and possible modification or introduction of
new processes that can lead to cost savings and revenue increases. By monitoring the key
performance indicators (KPIs) provided by the system, the necessary information is provided
for process optimization, planning and decision making based on real and timely information
within individual organizational units and management,

Implementation of the information system for reports, analysis and analytics has been
realised. Putting the system into full-scale work is related to the SAP ERP system
implementation project.

» Value: RSD 29,897,750.00, VAT excluded

+« Supplier: Comirade System Integration doo with subcontractor Prointer IT Solutions

and Services doo, per Contract no. UINV-83/2017 dated 06/10/2017

Service of maintenance and integration of human resources monitering and analysis
system in the business information system

» Purpose: The purpose of the procurement is to maintain the aforementioned system, as well
as integration with the SAP ERP business information system, the implementation of which is
in progress.

Human Resource Monitoring and Analysis System is a portal that, integrated with the
business information system SAP ERP, enables the automation of personnel-related
processes in the enterprise. This primarily relates to the possibility for employees {o use
employees’ services on their own and, through them, have the possibility to create requests
for absences, have insight into the team calendar, input information for promotion, the ability
fo review and update their own profile etc. On the other hand, human resource management

services are enabled processes for managing work performance, talent m g

successor plannlng process,

in.< Common Use Self Service
gl'-of common mfrastructure ie

passanger self check~|n _
“The equipment and software Self Ser

platform which enables passengers to autom:

counters with'this service. ]

1 y checks 1;1 their baggagé nd drop it:at the
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Apart from the previous, this procurement shall provide forming of hybrid counters, i.e,
counters with the option of standard passenger and baggage check-in and the gption of Self
Service Bag Drop depending on current/seasonal needs.

In accordance to an initiative of Air Serbia made in line with its needs, the Airport planned
the subject public procurement and thus continued the process of implementation of seif-
servicing.

Contracted gocds are delivered and system implementation service is completed,

« Value: RSD 898,993,000.00, VAT excluded

s Supplier: Group of tenderers — Roaming Networks doo and Asseco SEE doo, under

Contract No. UJNV-77/2017 dated 06/09/2017

Extension, modification, support and maintenance of the information system AODB,
FMS, IDS, RMS, BILLING

» Purpose: By the procurement Extension, modification, support and maintenance of the
information system AODB (Airport Operational Database), FMS (Flight Management
System), IDS (Information Display System), RMS (Resource Management System), Billing
- hereinafter Information system, is:

s« VIRTUALISATION OF THE INFORMATION SYSTEM: Migration of the Information system
to the virtual platform of the airport was planned as the existing server environment have
been outdated and of insufficient capacity for the information system of critical importance
for the operation of the airport.

« EXTENSION OF THE IDS SYSTEM: By procurement of additional licences for the system
for display of information to users of airport services and employees, number of licences
used with IDS screens and video walls will be increased and thus installation of new
screens and video walls will be enabled.

* MODIFICATION OF THE INFORMATION SYSTEM: Making new and ame! di
existing functionalities of the Information system implies making new {
reports, as well as amendment to the existing programmes an
requirements of business processes, of system users, but also
changes in legal regulations and standards in air traffic.

e SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE: The stated procurement wall

..., Corrective support and mamtenance of the information’ system 0

“theTnext 24 months . :

ato the

maintenance to maintain and zmp :
Moreover expansmn and mod

operation ser\nces better 'nhmg of airp

customer experience.d wded
The virtualization project is in progress, the dead
of signing.th contract. The deadline for the' «deliy
d:splay system is 30 days from the
e Value: EUR 248,535.00 ..
. Supplzer SITA INCBV, per Contra

JINV-68/2018 dated 24/09/2018 2
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Maintenance and procurement of licenses for business information system - SAP ERPC

¢ Purpose: of the project is procurement of maintenance of existing and extraciing
additional licenses in order to ensure business continuity, provide the latest versions of
the software and in order to meet the deadlines of the SAP ERP Implementation Project
and the implementation of the SAP HR portal. In addition to the above-mentioned
subject of procurement, all the software database extensions are necessary for the
acquisition of new licenses. Enterprise Resource Planning system (ERP) represents a
platform of integrated applications which provides integration and optimisation of
operating processes. For the work of this software purchased by ANT in May 2017 and
whose implementation is in progress, it is necessary 1o provide appropriate licenses,
and then pay regular maintenance every year.

The need for additional licenses was announced by purchasing the SAP HR Portal solution

that was procured as a separate project in refation to the SAP ERP solution implementation

project. This project uses the existing licenses that ANT already has, but alsg a number of

licenses specific to this module. The second part of the need emerged after the detailed

SAP ERP project implementation plan was developed, but also due to the increased

workload and the number of employees who will be future users.

SAP ERP business information system licenses were delivered within the agreed time, and

the support and maintenance of licenses (existing and additional) was initiated by signing

the contract, or by signing the handover record.

« Value: RSD 29,918,215.55, VAT excluded

s« Supplier: S&T d.o.0., per Contract no. UJNV-64/2018 dated 16/08/2018

Active network equipment - Part 1 - Active network eguipment

» Purpose: The subject of the contract is procurement of active network equipment of the
computer and communication network of Belgrade leola Tesla Atrport The renewai:of the

. Suppl;er DBS Kan_w
2018. .

erver eéjuip’men:t of the computer

a_-Airport. The aforementioned

5.0f the ‘Airport dre optimized and
he

-'ff*"be more reliable and accessible, for users.
Optimization of. access-to server infrastr
put into operation. . 1 SR A S S S

. Value RSD 8 988 200 00 VAT eXCIuded
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« Supplier: DBS Konsel Securily Service, pursuant to the Contract no, UJNV-9/2018
dated 21/02/2018.

Active network equipment - part 3 - Telecommunication and installation work on the
network for X-ray devices

« Purpose: The subject of the contract is execution of works on X-ray devices networking.
Nikola Tesla Airport owns X-ray devices, which are control and scan baggage and goods of
the users of airport services, For security reasons and security procedures, X-ray devices
must be networked in a single computer-communication system so that they are independent
of other systems. In this way, a separate communication network is formed, which is totaily
independent of other networks. Thanks to a unique X-ray communication network, all
information and data collected from all X-ray devices will be available to the central computer,
which is condrolied and managed by X-ray security service.

The work on X-ray devices networing is completed within agreed deadline and the new network

is put into operation.

e Value: RSD 6,948,400.00, VAT excluded
« Supplier: DBS Konsel Security Service, pursuant to the Coniract no. UJNV-10/2018
dated 21/02/2018.

Information system for protection against complex and targeted threats

» Purpose: The subject of the contract is the procurement of an information system for
protection against complex and targeted threats. It is necessary to protect applications that
are exposed to internet, or external influences, from DOS / DDos attacks, in order to
preserve the functioning of information systems. The envisaged information system must
enable traffic analysis and, based on ftraffic characteristics, have the ability 4 learn:and
recognize malicious use of traffic, as well as to automatically define the rules: eliminating
the threat. DOS / DDos attacks are a significant threat to corpora ' hey make

computmg and information systems maccessm!e by shuttmg do a computer

information,
end users. The

the information system service
lmptementatlon of the

ction ag'ain:'s:'twcomﬁlex and targeted
stem is put into operation.
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Bar code readers and auxiliary equipment for passenger and baggaqge reconciliation
« Purpose: The subject of the contract is procurement of new bar code readers and
auxiliary equipment for baggage reconciliation system. Bar code reader represents a
tool for operators from Ground handiing and it is used for reading bar codes of
baggage, i.e. it is an entrance point of the system for baggage reconciliation.

Considering that the number of passengers have increased since the implementation of the
baggage reconciliation system and the first procurement of bar code readers, the initial setting
of the bar code readers in use has no more capacity to fulfil in full measure the existing needs
and the request of Ground handiing is a quantity of bar code readers that cannot be provided
at the moment. Beside increased number of passengers, a part of the devices which have
heen used for many years, does no longer satisfies high criteria for service availability, thus it is
necessary to procure additional devices.

Procurement of these new devices provides stable operation of the baggage reconciliation
system, which is exceptionally important for airport operations, and it provides significant
improvement of work of operators on the devices of new generation.

« Value: RSD 6.143.020,00, VAT excluded

» Supplier: Alba Tehnoclogije, per contract no. UJNV-6/2018 dated 01/02/2018

Extension of the system for access control and evacuation

» Purpose: Subject of the contract is extension of access control and evacation syste. The
procurement expands the existing access control system, the evacuation system and the
record of working time, in a way that will connect and network existing eguipment,
purchased through the extension of Finger Halls A and C and the first phase of the
extension of the access control system, the evacuation system and the system for
recording work time into a single centralized system.
The second phase of access control should cover all locations that were not covered by the
procurement of the extension of Flnger Halls A and C and the first phase of the upgrade of

phase of the extension of tr
locations were not included
bridges, fi inger’ ha[is and w.

on all the above gates, air
v the system for access control
onditions. and implement access
t is necessary to cover all listed
1§ areas that must be covered in

‘ .- Hand Held
1 at any time on the apr when' ‘entering
gates, security workers will Fave the ability to
ring the area, such as whether he is authonzed to
orized escort; may he bring in the tool; etc:

devices) needed for. employees to be ide
gates or restrictive areas. \When' enter
read all information about the person
access that focation, if he'is the aut]
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In this way, an identification pass (the badge) will be made to which the ANTB should
obtain the CAD approval. This is another important requirement for the system to be fully
operational. HH devices will be connected to the SiPass server database from which they
will have all the data necessary for controlling entry into restrictive areas and checking the
persons moving in the same.

An integral part of this procurement will be the obligation of the system's suppliers io
develop as-built design. OU ITT, OU Logistics and OU Security wilt work on a project for
works that must be approved by the Border Police, so that the works can be carried out
without interruption.

By covering all controlied areas, the system will define the right of access of all employees
in accordance with the permit issued by the Border Police and the elements on the badge
that are defined in accordance with the QU Security requirement. The system will record in
fogs all the readings by areas which will significantly improve the security, as well as the
control of movement and control of the entry / exit of the person in controlled areas.

The evacuation system as part of the access control system will integrate with the fire
protection system, thus enabling these two systems to communicate and forward alarms
about the incidents caused by the activation of the evacuation system, as well as whether
the cause of the incident is fake activation of the module or not. integration of these two
systems will not only increase the efficiency in detecting the resulting causes, but aiso the
safety in the evacuation areas.

The working time-record system implemented during the first phase is also linked to the
presence control system, and this acquisition requires the acquisition of additional licenses
as well as terminals in order to read staff more quickly at locations where the concentration
of employees is large as well as installation to new locations for which the need arose.

The airport as a company that rationalizes costs in all segments, increasing profits through
rational consideration of needs and investing and introducing various information systems
that aim to create opportunities for increasing revenue through advertising and éxchange of
digital content, introduces systems that rationalize costs |dentn‘“ ( i i
ratlonaltzatzon One of the systems is a Smart Buﬂd:ng Managem Svs

access control system into the smart building
.,_all consumers. will_be_ enabled for

mzmmlzmg it, whzch WI!I"dlre
and reduce maintenance cos
Extenszon of the- system fo

Extension and Expansion of Mlcrosoft Llcenses
.».“Extensnon and Extenston of MICI‘GS -

Purpose: The co_ntnact s_ub;ect'*-;s' re_newai xtension cif Microsoft ]
contract expired in February 2018, 3 :

The realization of this acquisitiort has
If we stopped paying the three-year SA;
we bought. Moreover, we wouid havet

ed that Microsoft licenses are reriewed on time.
A would-be-left-with-the last-version. of the software
by all new versions per regular prices, i.e. per model
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where we pay the licence (LLIC model} and maintenance (SA model). In that case, licences are
more expensive as they are paid per LIC/SA model, while in case of regular renewal of the
licence we pay only SA model. ANTB is obliged to monitor the newest of all versions of
operative systems due to new information systems under implementation and due to security
corporative network proposed by Microsoft and in accordance with the Act on Information
Security. For that reason the newest versions are necessary as that is the condition of all
suppliers of the system for implementation of new and upgrade of the existing information
systems. If we do not renew the contract for Microsoft licences we will not be able to implement
the systems planned in this year and if we do not sign a new contract in time the value of the
planned procurement for licence extension will increase by 30%.
Microsoft licenses are not solely refated to licenses for servers and workstations, but also for

databases and other Microsoft platforms:

1. Microfot Exchange Server - E-mail server ANTB

2. SQL Sever - All systems on an ANTB that require a database use SQL database

3. Microsoft Skype for Bussines Server - Communication server

4. Microsoft Office - Word, Excell, Qutiook, etc.

5. Microsoft Share Point - An internal portal in which the electronic office module is

implemented

6. Microsoft Visio - application for drawing diagrams, processes, efc.

7. Microsoft Project-application for planning and tracking projects and creating a curriculum

8. Microsoft Wsus Server - a server for installing security patches on the corporate network

9. Microsoft System Center - server to monitor, control, and report on the status of all servers

and workstations in the ANTB corporate network.
Value: USD 780,473.43, VAT excluded
Supplier: E- Smart Systems, per Contract No. UJNV-11/2018 dated 21/02/2018

Extension and expansion of Microscft licenses (true-up and SA - Software Assura e)k
Part 2 - Extension and expantion of Microsoft LICENSES OF CLOUD P A’

r!uaf operation of all
(DR) is necessary for

with the concession process
and which solution is mplemente
Value USD 295; ?11 40, VAT:

(servers, s’corage and lecences for vi /
solution in accordance with SAP reg ent that the infrastructure mist be' cert;ﬁed for
SAP. The central equipment must } such characteristics and capacities necessary
to meet hardware requirements of SAP ERP solution, considering that for appropriate
operation and upgrade of SAP solution three ‘environments (development,; testing and

62
Business report for the period [-IX 2018



production) with the same characteristics are necessary. For their operation a resilient
and large hardware environment is required.

o Value: RSD 40,847,001.00, VAT excluded

» Supplier:Serbian Serbian Business Systems, under Contract No. UJNV-20/2018 dated
07/03/2018

IT equipment - lot 2 - Data storage system and equipment and backup system for video
surveiflance and inteqration with the existing system

Purpose: The subject of the contract is procurement, which is envisaged to provide system

and equipment for data storage and backup video surveillance and integration with the

existing system. Such a system must include the following equipment:

» Tape library for data storage and backup

» Server for organizing data and installing HSM software with the following technical
characteristics

» The offered HSM software, which must enable the organizing and long storage of a large
number of files, depending on the number of accesses, will be automatically, by the pre-
defined policy, placed on the appropriate media defined by the policies.

The above must be purchased so that within the existing video surveillance system, the video
can be stored for a longer period of time. With available resources, it is currently possible to
store and view videos not older than two months, which meets the prescribed minimum of 30
days. By implementing this solution, the airport predicted that the minimum period of video
recording would be 12 months, which would allow the availability of video for a longer period
of time, ensuring that eventual incident situations can be reviewed and much later after the
event itself, which can be of great importance and confribution to situations when needed.
Value: RSD 17,828,000.00, VAT excluded
Supplier: EWE COMP and NEPO SISTEM, per Contract no. UJNV-23/2018

iIT equipment — Lot 3 - desktop (All in one) computers

New computer and mformatlon ¥
as well as those in use require
comply with : all techmcal!

By proci ifement of these computers we will
make basic precond;trons for unlmpeded ,operam
and services. ‘. e o : ‘

Procurement . of - the™ indicated equm would ensure more efficient, more comfort
operation of ‘higher. quality. With _this procurement : ‘obsolete and deteriorated equipment is
replaced and equ&pment quahty and relzabmty_ ve[ are mamtamed

nformation systems
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Value: RSD 11,398,220.00, VAT exciuded
Supplier: Oblak Tehnologije, per contract no. UJNV-18/2018 dated 06/03/2018

IT equipment - lot 4 - Mobile and tablet devices

« Purpose: Based on the stated needs of all organizational units for the mentioned equipment
and in order to ensure that business processes are performed in an optimal, effective and
appropriate manner, it is necessary to provide the said equipment and provide it to all
empioyees who need the appropriate telephone for daily communication and mobility in work
itself. Mobility implies availability of services such as e-mail, internet and remote access to
airport systems and services, even when employees are out of office space. Efficient and
timely performance of ail tasks requiring access to these systems and services, regardiess of
the current location of employees, requires the use of appropriate smart phones.

By increasing the number of employees, based on the Rules on Mobile Telephony, the
number of mobile phone applications that need to be provided increases. Alsoc, the
aforementioned Rulebook foresees the possibility of replacing a mobile phone after a certain
period of use due to technical and technological obsolescence.
The aforementioned procurement foresees to provide mobile devices and / or tablets for
employees, which will meet the technical requirements of the employees' work requirements.
Value: RSD 6,415,623.00, VAT excluded
Supplier: Informatika AD, per contract no. UJNV-24/2018 dated 09/03/2018

IT equipment - lot 5 - Printers, photocopiers and multifunctional devices

» Purpose: The subject of the contract is procurement for the provision of printers,
photocopiers and muitifunctional devices, which would ensure more efficient,...more
comfortable and quality work of employees.
The purchase of printers muitifunctionai devices and photocopiers i

due to the

Value: RSD 5,840,036.00, VA
Supplier: Malex - City Copy Se

siare! speakers pro;ectcrs televisio
=cont;numg the process of modarmzaﬂon o
previous procurement , as-well as equipping ;
Replacing an audio system in representa ‘wrooms involves repiacmg existing obsoiete
equipment as well as replacing old w: udio installations. Replacing the audio system
involves ‘the ‘replacement of audio components-in-rack cabinets; as-well-as-the-purchase of
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new components that we did not have in the audio system so far. This improves the sound
quality and provides new possibilities for processing and managing sound. This would
contribute to ensuring that the coverage of representative lounges with a higher quality sound
level at ali levels. By replacing worn-out installations and installing newer generation
installations ensures that the sound quality be preserved during fransmission and the
reduction of interference produced by various sources from the environment. Representative
founges are places where important press conferences and presentations are often held, and
for this reason the audio system is an important item that should be maintained at the highest
level of quality.

For representative lounges, it is necessary to replace the video system and to carry out
reptacement of old and worn installations. The purchase includes the replacement of TVs,
video players and other video equipment. Replacing worn-out installations and installing
newer generation installations ensures that image quality is maintained during transmission
and interference produced by various sources from the environment reduced. This
procurement would eliminate possible problems in representative lounges, which are direct
consequence primarily of the deteoration of equipment and installations.

Procurement of new wall and ceiling loudspeakers should replace existing obsolete speakers,
in airport areas which were not included in some of the equipment procurement. Since they
are speakers that have not been replaced for a great number of years, many of them have a
significant deviation from the defined radiation characteristics due to the wear of the parts
involved in the production of sound. Qver time, many speakers have suffered minor or greater
damage. All of the aforementioned causes distortion of sound and, as a consequence, the
listener has the incomprehensibility of the broadcasted content. Replacing the old speakers
would contribute {o ensuring coverage with a higher quality sound of a uniform level, high level
of intelligibility in ali parts that need to be covered with sound.

Value: RSD 3,975,784.00, VAT excluded

Supplier: Oblak Tehnologije, per contract no. UJNV-16/2018 dated 06/03/2018

IT equipment - lot 7 —~ Nofebook computers

Purpose: The subject of the contract is the purchase of: No
create opportunlties for sntroducmg new trends apph a_tlons and soﬁw‘

{there are 3 designated
! chase of portable notebooks,
38 processes as well as their
iltate the traumng, holding of

meetings and other events:
Value RSD 2 a3, 261 00 Ve

omputers and
Ql’_lSlble company should take steps toward
erforming responsible jobs such as schoots
bs-in-a-more-qualitatively-and-improved-manner—

Purpose The subject .of- the contract iS the
electronics. ANTB as a huge and sociall
computer literacy and support to instit
hospitals and-help:them to carry out their:
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Thus the better image of the airport is spread - as a company ready to support and the one that
contributes improvement of work in schools and hospitals and likewise institutions.
Procurement of 10 standard desktop computers with OS is planned for the purpose of donation
to institutions in need of help with provision of information equipment and with the purpose of
improvement of information conditions in these institutions,

Value: RSD 2,967,234.00, VAT excluded

Supplier: Informatika AD, per contract no. UJNV-27/2018 dated 14/03/2018

IT equipment - lot 9 - Donation computers

Purpose: The subject of the contract is purchase of computers for donation. ANTB as a huge
and socially responsible company should {ake steps toward computer literacy and support to
institutes performing responsible jobs such as schools, hospitals and help them to carry out
their jobs in a more qualitatively and improved manner. Thus the better image of the airport is
spread - as a company ready to support and the one that contributes improvement of work in
schoois and hospitals and likewise instifutions.

Procurement of 10 standard desktop computers with OS is planned for the purpose of
donation to institutions in need of help with provision of information equipment and with the
purpose of improvement of information conditions in these institutions.

Value: RSD 2,873,880.00, VAT excluded
Supplier: Informatika AD, per contract no. UJNV-29/2018 dated 14/03/2018

IT equipment - lot 10 - UPS devices

Purpose: The subject of the contract is procurement for the provision of UPS devices haaving
mam task to provide uninterrupled power supply for consumers at the A:rport where the

as replacement of UF
function as they are worn:
Because of steady increase in the
due to lack of power supply, it i
Value: RSD 1,485,000.00, V;
Supplier: Oblak Tehnologi

't computers. By
E ew one, there
ce old devices. Prev:ous; octrenient. has

was a need to purchase new equ;pment to repi
provided a number of thin clients to cove 3in part of existing positions. As the pricelist of
communication services foresees the passibility for third parties to provide an operatlonai fiight
schedulg"with fenting of a thin chent computer, it'is necessary to provide them to-adequately
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respond to the requirements for this service and equipment, and which renting increases the
profit of the airport from non-airport services. Also, based on the stated needs of all
organizational units for the mentioned equipment, in order to ensure that business processes
are performed in an optimal, effective and appropriate manner it is necessary to provide the
specified equipment. Organizational units of airports that have needs for displaying flight
schedules and sefting up thin client computers, in order to organize optimal business
processes, may additionally request the specified equipment. This procurement envisages the
purchase of an additional number of thin clients to cover the remaining existing positions, new
positions that should be equiped as well as provide a number of them for ieasing by third
parties.
Value: RSD 988,830.00, VAT excluded
Supplier: Informatika AD, per contract no. UJNV-28/2018 dated 14/03/2018

Works on extension of the service of DATA video surveillance centre

Purpose: Expansion of the DATA Centre service for IP surveillance includes adding new
racks, pulling out telecommunication installations and power cables, and connecting with the
main system room of the Airport. Existing video surveiliance consists of an IP camera, a data
recording system, and a storage system for recorded material. Given that the purchased
equipment for the IP video surveillance system meets all the technical and technological
standards that the video surveillance system should have, it is necessary to improve and
expand the services of the existing DATA Center for IP video surveiliance. In order for the
correct and uninterrupted operation of the IP video surveillance service to take place, it is
necessary to raise the conditions of the DATA video surveillance center to the highest level. In
this regard, it is necessary to establish a reliable and secure IT infrastructure and the ability to
terminate the service to a minimum. This means that high-level equipment that guarantees
stable operation and full functionality must be provided for the equipment of the IP video
surve:ilance system, with adequate mmrocl:mate conditions and redundancy of cable

power supply, cooling and heat removal system, which will provid
humidity, then internal redundant cabling, storage cabinets
protection.

Value: RSD 2,630,726.00, VAT excluded
Supplier:.Tel

Improvement of telecon
Purpose: Under

g
: hange ‘can provide, “as ‘well"
telecommunication system
the telecommumcatlon syste
employees for providing the service:
service of access. and use of f‘ xed telep
Belgrade.

y to third partees at the leolé"Tesla ‘Airport

ystem-was-necessary due to-the obsolescence of
oftware of the existing system, conditioned by the

The improvement of-the telecommunicati
the server environment and application ¢
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significant advances in the field of digital telecommunications. The new hardware and software
platformn ensured stable operation of the telecommunication system and contact cenire, its
functions were improved and telecommunication system capacity was expanded to the entire
complex of the airport.

+ Value: RSD 9,653,865.00, VAT excluded

« Supplier: Algotech d.c.0, per contract no. UJNV-62/2018 dated 11/07/2018

Training of employees in the Training Centre

Staff who indirectly affects the safety of air traffic must be trained in a Training Centre
authorized by CAD and must have ceriificates of training (Article 187 of the Air Traffic Law
("Official Gazette of RS" nos.73/2010, 57/2011 and 93/2012). in accordance with the stated,
the Employees Training Centre is authorised by DCA for training of employees performing the
following experis’ jobs:
aircraft, passenger and cargo handling on the airpoit;
fire-rescuing;
transport of dangerous goods in air traffic;
safety control of surfaces for aircraft maneuvering, of airport facilities and installations;
Aircraft fuel supply
Training of aircraft staff on air traffic security

S

Under staff performing aircraft, passenger and cargo handling the following staff is
considered:

1. Traffic coordinator (Airport duty manager);

2. (Traffic dispatcher (traffic dispatcher and Flight coordinator);

3. (ramp dispatcher);

4. controller of ground handling operations (aircraft, passenger and cargo handlmg
supervisor, inspector of final check of aircraft de-icing/anti-icing, cargo loadin )
Cargoe Warehouse);

5. aircraft balancer,

6. airport equipment operator (driver and operator of pment, airport

de-icing/anti-

_any | ‘i

_ | persons

| Steward/-ess (level 1) 175 1

"stewardf-ess (level 2) 12 -

Ground handling contraller (catego o, -

Ground handling controlier (catego 19 3
Marshafler{level 1) g
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Airport equipment operator (level 1) 116
Generator operator 27
Foreman of the sorting area 17
Foreman of cargo transshipment 48
Worker on hold baggage, mail and cargo handling at airport 145

Under staff performing fire-rescue operations the following are considered:
1. Commander,

2. Professional fire-rescuer (ire-rescue unit and fire prevention section),
3. support staff (primarily employed on other duties);

4. instructor (practical training instructors).

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2018 -~ 30/09/2018:

ANT | persons
Professional fire-fighter 684 -
Support staff 28 -
Support staff - practice 35 -
Fire-rescuer 44 -

considered:
1. Category 1 staff - a sender or a person undertaking senderﬁs__:hab:

3. Category 3 staff - staﬁ processing dangerous mater:ai'_‘_
Category 4 staff - staff processing cargo and mai

. Category
7. Category 7 staff
materials),

69

Business report for the period I-IX 2018



Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2018 - 30/08/2018.

ANT | ersons
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 7 18 -
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 10 62 12
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. S 122 13
Transport of dangerous goods in air fraffic, cat. 8 37 14
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 5and 8 249 13
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 12/ module 18 75 19

Under staff performing safety control of maneuvering area, aircraft facilities and installations is
considered Maneuvering areas, airport facilities and installations safety controlier.

Under staff performing aircraft fuel supply operations the following are considered:
1. Loader {cistern driver and fuel operator);
2. support operator;
3. storekeeper ( fuel storekeeper).

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2018 — 30/09/2018:

third
persons

Storekeeper 1 -

Loader -

Under staff performing security screening at the airport the following. st ories are
considered:
1. State body staff at the airport;

2.

and airport: supphes
Persons performm i

screenmg oF have access 1o cargo “an
. Persons performing-security controj

supphes and airport supplies by met
14, Supervisor;
15. Head officers:of security-affairs;
16. Instructors;

entified for air transpe
‘mail and materials of alr-camers “in-flight
s other than X-ray screening.
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17. Staff responsible for response to emergency situations.

Training certificate for employees performing X-ray screening is issued for the following
categories:
- Persons performing security check of vehicles;
- Persons performing access control, surveillance and patrols;
- Persons performing X-screening of people;
- Persons performing X-screening of hand baggage and other items that checked
persons have with;
- Persons performing X-screening of hold baggage;
- Persons performing X-screening of cargo and mail;
- Persons performing X-screening of mail and materials of air-carriers, in-flight supplies
and airport supplies;

For other staff who, in line with the National aviation security programme, must be undergone
appropriate security training the training certificate are issued.

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2018 — 30/09/2018:

ANT third
persons
Security awareness training 769 137
Moduie 3 - Basic refreshment training for security check 179 19
Module 4 - X-ray screening of persons 72 18
Module 4 - Additional training QFPS (training for operation on X-ray 12 )

screener for screening of persons)

Modute 5 - X-ray screening of cabbing baggage and items
carried on board

Module 5 - additional training CONVS, CONVSE, CONV7

Module 6 - X-screening of hold baggage

& Module 7 - X-screening of cargo and mail

'Addltlonai trammg

in-flight

screenmg

Module 17 - Specrai traimng of superws

nagers

Mog_y;}jla‘_—__ .‘_‘_§_R§mal training of secu

Module 20 - Tréating persons of,;g_ng_cceptab!e behaviour
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Apart from the listed trainings prescribed by the national regulations the Employee training
centre also performs a great number of internal trainings prescribed by internal training
programmes (in line with international /CAO and /ATA standards) according to employment
needs of the airport and requests of air-carriers. Furthermore, it is necessary to notice that
these trainings are not organised in any other existing training centre in our country, while their
rendering through foreign training centres is above all very expensive and their implementation
is arguable (our trainings are real working conditions and position-driven). Internal trainings
which are performed within the Employee Training Centre in AD Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade;

v Foreman of cargo transshipment

¥v" Foreman of the sorting area

v Transport worker - cargo transshipment into aircraft / baggage sorting / transshipment

in CCW.

Beside the listed trainings, all persons performing jobs within SRA (employees and persons
engaged in ANT, as well as third persons) must be undergone the training on Aviation security:
1. Basics of air traffic safety;
2. Independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 1;
3. Independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 2,

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2018 - 30/09/2018:

ANT Third
persons

Basics of air traffic safety; 266 16

independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 1

Independent operation of vehiclefequipment in SRA 2

in the field of
rgo trainings.

In accordance with the Law on Air Traffic, employees at the:
monitoring and suppression of the presence of birds and oth

per $6hs in the ' péféb& 01!0‘1/2 ‘ 0/09}‘20'% 8:
: ! ANT Third
IR s N B P o persons
Worker on suppression of ‘the presence ‘of birds. and other 9
animals at the airport f )
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Number of inspections/audits in the period 01/01/2018 — 30/09/2018;

Foreign .
CAD CAD Companies
inspections 6 1 15

The Centre for professional development also organizes professional visits of the pupils of the
Aviation Academy and students of the Facuity of transport and traffic engineering.

Number of visits in the peried 01/01/2018 — 30/09/2018:;

Faculty of
. transport
Aviation Academy and traffic
engineering
Visits 3 -

Interior equipment

in the public procurement procedure, a framework agreement was concluded on January 29,
2018 with the bidder EUROSALON FABRIKA DOO BEOGRAD for lot 2 - Desks and office
cabinets up to 2,000,000.00 RSD without VAT.

Annual maintenance of facilities at the airport complex is planned - equipping of working and
public spaces, replacement of worn out furniture in order to improve the working conditions of
empioyees and provide services to users at ANTBE.

Equipment and tools for maintenance of park surfaces on the complex of ANT-Toois for
maintenance of park surfaces

in the public procurement procedure, on May 30, 2018 the contr,
tenderer "Afpmastar doo" inthe amount of 86,216.32 RSD VAT

implementat msystematic d;smfect;on "

lsmsection and ges controi

de Nikola Tesla Al ‘:p_ rovider of service ,EKO
conciuded on 31/ 5/2018 for the total amount of
ase order is. conciuded for a. penod 0{ one year or unti

The Purchaser of service is
SISTEM CO DOO". The purchas
RSD 298,000.00 VAT excluded
the consumption of funds.

Consultancy services of chemical adviser.in the:
for reqnstratmn‘ in the chemicals reg;ster

pargat;on ﬁbf-"s'%mnortinq-documents

000.00 VAT

" The purchase order was conciuded on E)GIO : : 80,C
of one year or until the consumption.of

exc!uded Purchase order is. concluded for a p
funds. :
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Sampling of drinking water, wastewater, laboratory testing of microbiologicai and
physical and chemical properties

The service provider is the "institute for Public Health of Serbia”, Dr Milan Jovanovi¢ Batut.
The work order was concluded on 16/03/2018 for an approximate amount of RSD 400,000.00
excluding VAT. It is concluded for a period of one year or up to the expenditure of the above
mentioned funds.

Consumables for cleaning, paper products, chemical agents for cleaning of terminal and
bags

Lot 3 - mats and tracks, framework agreement, value of 450,000.00 RSD without VAT, with
company ARS NOVA d.c.o.

Consumables for cleaning, paper products, chemical agents for cleaning of terminal and
bags

Lot 1 - chemical agents for cleaning of aircraft, sanitary premises and terminals, value of
1,300,000.00 RSD excluding VAT, with company MASTER CLEAN EXPRESS d.o.o.

Consumables for cleaning, paper products, chemical agents for cleaning of terminal and
bags

Lot 2 - jumbo towels and jumbeo toilet paper, value 4,000,000.00 RSD excluding VAT, with
company Meta Product d.o.o.

Consumables for cleaning, paper products, chemical agents for cieanlnq of term inal-and
bags e

Folding towels and foldable toilet paper, value 4,350,000.0&_1;,_R_:Sf‘_':
company Meta Product d.o.o.

g VAT, with

2018 Contracts for ot 1 -
the amount of 5,498,302.12
video surveillance system in
chu LEGROUP DOO BEQGRAD.
The deadiine: for dehvery ods in t L rom the date of dehvery of the written
order by the Purcha " S ;

The use of this , ' he - serv:ces that are at ANT
dealing: With the control and management of '
solution provides control of access rights” to
INDIGOVISION Control Center ‘application,
protects the |T environment from unauthori

ht_:'; level of the
over data. and

s each activity .of u:
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Centrai equipment for the public address system

in the period 01.01.2018. - 01.04.2018. works on the replacement of central equipment on the
public address system have been completed. The confract is concluded with the bidder
SMART BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES DOO, the total realized value is 23.732.744,40 dinars.
The procurement was carried out by OJ ITT and the monitoring of the execution of the contract
and the maintenance of the system is within the competence of CJ Logistics.

The work involved replacing all central units of the system, replacing all the equipment that was
installed in 2005 on ANTB and which could no longer respond to user requests. Siemens -
Novigo equipment is installed, which makes the entire system centralized and control of the
system from the central location is enabled. The system has the ability to integrate with all
other technical protection systems and is currently connected to the fire alarm system.

Water dispensers

In the public procurement procedure, a contract was concluded on April 20, 2018 with the
bidder LA FANTANA DOO BELGRADE for the amount up to 1,800,000.00 RSD without VAT,
Delivery of goods will take place successively according to needs on an annual basis.

Works on disassembly and instailation of textile and vyni! floor coverings with delivery
of materials

In the procedure of public procurement, a contract was concluded on February 12, 2018 with
the hidder INFORMA DQO BEOGRAD for the amount up to 3,000,000.00 RSD without VAT,
Realization is planned annually for the needs of arranging and maintaining public, lounge,
public and office space at ANTB.

Purchase car park equipment

in the public procurement procedure, a contract with the bidder JKP-PARKING-SERVIS was
conciuded for an amount up to 13,789,780.95 RSD without .V,

kind of the Republic
, The 'takeover of the

1;-1 P1.2, P2 and the Parking
igngﬁcant increase in ANTB

1g-of the parkmg
roject will resuit i

Servis, which wdl enable smoo
Garage. Reahzatlon of the comp
revenue.

Office supplies

In the. procedure of publ:c procurement frame
weére awarded 16 the amoint up to'4;000,000.00 din (
amount up to 3,400,000 RSD.without VAT, to the bidder MEHANOPR!NT DOO

For lot 4 - Toners, a framework agreemen arded for.an amount of up to 7, 650 000 00
RSD excluding VAT to the group of bidde hose‘leader is IVADO DOO BEOGRAD-ZEMUN.

F’hotocopler paper
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Coffee and beverage for the kilchenetites on ANT

In the procedure of public procurement, framework agreement is awarded for lot 2- coffee
and beverages for requirements of kitchenettes a the complex of ANT. The purchaser amount
is 1,900,000.00 RSD excluding VAT, with company TWVM 99 D...0,

Framework Agreement for Lot 1- espresso coffee for requirements of kitchenettes a the
complex of ANT, value 400,000.00 RSD excluding VAT. Agreement is at the stage of signing,
with company ARCADIA TEAM d.o.o.

Coffee machine servicing

in the procedure of public procurement, the Purchase Order for the aforementioned
procurement is awarded in the vajue of 280,000.00 RSD excluding VAT. The contract is in the
phase of signing with the company Tax free d.o.0.

Ceiling tiles wash service in Terminal 2

In the procedure of public procurement, the confract was awarded to the bidder BFS SERVICE
DOO BEQOGRAD in the amount of 1.962.900,00 dinars excluding VAT. The deadline for
execution is 60 days from the date of entry into the business.

The service will include the disassembly of metal ceilings (60x60 cm) at Terminal 2, their
washing and assembly, which will improve the aesthetic and visual effect on ANTB.

Works on upholstery and window blinds

in the procedure of public procurement, contracts were awarded to the bidder
GROUP DOQ BELGRADE for lot 1 - Change of soft furniture coatings
without VAT and lot 2 — Upholstery of worn out seats in vehicle
800,000.00 RSD without VAT.

Upholstery works at Nikola Tesla Airport are planned for the
facmttes on an annuai ba3|s and will be performe

Maintenancé

; : \ .the tenderer
' 29,910,382.00 RSD ing VAT, The
uipment is 45 days from the order date. This
adding another repeater to the UHF band, and
nd-VHF-radio stations are purchased:-In this-way,

Diring the pubhc procurement
TELEGROUP DOO.BEOGRAD in the amo
deadline for the delivery and installataon ofth
acquisition extends the digital radio netw
a sufficient number-of UHF; VHF-and-Aijr
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aircraft handling service of Air Serbia separates itself into a special channel which enables
quicker and direct communication between the services.

Maintenance of passenger and van programs

In the public procurement procedure for Lot 1 - Maintenance of FIAT passenger and van
program within the warranty period confract was awarded to tenderer AUTO KUCA KOLE in
value of 1,500,000.00 RSD excluding VAT, and for Lot 3 - Maintenance of passenger and van
program FIAT, RENAULT, PEUGEOT ~ 1,750,000.00 RSD excluding VAT.

The realization of the procurement will be carried out with the aim of reguiar and ongoing
maintenance of the fleet on the ANTB.

For Lot 2 - Maintenance of passenger and van program SKODA, OPEL, VOLKSWAGEN -
1,750,000.00 RSD and Lot 4 - Maintenance of passenger-cargo program TOYQOTA,
MITSUBISH! —~ 1,000,000.00 RSD procedure was repeated and publishing of the same is in
progress.

Special towing vehicle {estimated value RSD 7.700.000.00)

in the procedure of public procurement, the contract was awarded to the tenderer INOTO
MOTORS DOO BEOGRAD in the amount of 6,150,000.00 RSD excluding VAT. Realization
implies delivery of the vehicle.

Successful completion of the professional examination of all workers, which means that we
fulfill the requirement of the republican fire protection law on the training of members of the
unit,

Fire safety nozzles were delivered to the OU Rescue & Fire Fighting, after which a
functional test was carried out, familiarization of all employees with technical charactenstscs of
the same and they were assigned to fire trucks. : -

Regular servicing of fire extinguishers and hydrants continued
schedule. Also, regular checking of the flap-resistant to the fi ire.

according to the plan and foreseen schedule.
The Fire Protection Plan is being updated to mak
2017:an due to works. carrled out in. Terminal:

it between Terminals
: curity chek point "D"
completion of =

Contracts were siqneid‘

water-sprlnkler w:thf a
Zemun and “Dunex"”

“Mamtenance of fire protectlon system" L' ind fire protection
cutains”, with'the" supplier "ELSAT" d.0.0:fro
* A contract for the service of- insulating respi
being performed by the authorized service
« A contract for "Ftreflghtlng apphances
follows:  worwmsn:

> Lot 1. Rescue equment complete with winch and pull-out system

equspment has been sig ‘servicing is
Drager" Tehnika Beograd

rotective equnpment" was szgned for Lot 6, as
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Lot 3 Firefighting suits;

Lot 4; Fire boots;

Lot 5: Fire appliances, hoses and fittings,;

Lot 7: Dangerous goods suits;

Lot 8: Battery powered hydraulic rescue tools.

VVYVVY

Battery powered hydraulic rescue tools and firefighting suits are delivered. Delivered
equipment from Lots 1,45 and 7.

In the period from 15-16 January 2018, a high-level Japanese delegation headed by the
Prime Minister of Japan was in an official visit to the Republic of Serbia at the invitation of
President Aleksandar Vucic and the Government of the Republic of Serbia. In addition to the
official state delegation, there was also a large business delegation. The delegation was
welcomed with the highest state honors at the Nikola Tesla Airport Belgrade. The delegation
arrived in Belgrade with two state Boeing 747 aircraft.

in the period from 9-10 May 2018, to the official visit to the Republic of Serbia at the
invitation of President Aleksandar Vucic and the Government of the Republic of Serbia was
came the President of Cyprus with a high state delegation, which was greeted with the highest
state honors at JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport. The delegation arrived in Belgrade by the
state aircraft Boing 738 BBJ2.

In the period from 16-21 May 2018, EUROLEAGUE BASKETBALL FINAL FOUR 2018 was
held in Belgrade, which included basketball clubs Fenerbahce, CSK Moscow, Zalgiris and Real
Madrid. In the mentioned period JSC Beigrade Nikola Tesla Airport accepted 79 flights with
passengers who arrived to attend the event. Of the total number: 13 flights were made on wide-
board A330~200f300 aircraft of Turkrsh Atrhnes and Aeroﬂot and only on 21.05. 2018 there

Sports of Spain and many dustingwshed guests from the sports worl‘
and dispatch at JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport has passe

At JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesia Airport from 21. 05 20 £
processes. . documentation in.accordance  wi
OHSAS™ 1800‘ L |
carried out with
Audit Plan.

On 10.06:20_ he organization of the Belgrade
) local, due to the inability to use

arried out, as s follows: 21.02 2018 by Tunisair;
Supervnsxon by au‘ carraers resulted in no

In the ﬁrst half of 2018 Safety Audlts we
05/22/2018 by Etthad Alrways (Safety ER
objections ’
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Machines and special devices and vehicles for maintenance of manoeuvring areas
» Purpose: The purpose of this project is to improve the existing technology in the area of

maintenance of maneuvering surfaces and tfechnological eguipment, through the
procurement of dedicated and special devices, machinery and equipment to support the
maintenance of maneuvering surfaces under regular conditions as well as maintenance
of equipment in the technotogical handling processes.

Status: Procurement realised Lot 1 — Special dedicated vehicle for cleaning of paved and non-

paved surfaces the contract was conciuded on 18/08/2017 with companies "GRADATIN" d.o.0,

with the head office in Novi Sad, for the amount of RSD 36.615.947 30 VAT excluded. Vehicle

delivered under invoice No. 218140 dated 05.04.2018 in the amount of 43,168,420.22

including VAT.

Construction of a fence around perimeter, Phase 4

+ Purpose: Continued works on change of the existing fence alongside the whole
perimeter of the Airport for the purpose of increase of security level and adjustment of
the characteristics of the fence with new regulations. With this, fourth phase changing of
the old fence alongside the whole perimeter of the Airport Nikola Tesla was finished.

» Status: Works on replacement of fence completed on 10.02.2018.

Flags and mast — Delivery of mast with installation

» Purpose: Purchasing and installing a mast with appropriate flags at the aerodrome
compiex provides exceptional visual communication representing the identity of the
country and its associated company.

Considering that JSC ANTB is practically the "Gate of Serbia" and represents th
direct contact of incoming passengers with the country to which they.com
necessary to present the identity of the country and the company.J
way.
Considering the planned height of the 25 meter mast wi
potentially turn into one of the recognizable symbols.of
the side of the E-75 highway as one of the entry p
Belgrade One of the main reasons for setting: '

”ssibie

e respect of the flag as
t dimensions in visible

« Status: Public procurem
JNMV___,NO,.BH%B.,.Contr‘a

technical documentation and the
s at the airport. complex Nikola
. Technical documentation is
reparations for take over

f"mast arein progress e e
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7.1. DESCRIPTION OF ALL SIGNIFICANT OCCURENCES AFTER THE PERIOD - 1-1X 2018

The following text describes all significant occurrences which happened at the Airport
Nikola Tesla Belgrade after the period I-1X 2018:

« Russian airlines Red Wings will launch regular flights on the Belgrade-Moscow
route, sfarting from 02.06.2018, three times a week with the A-320.

« We have sent a request and announcement of the Syrian airline Cham Wings o
operate flights in the summer of 2018, starting from 01.06.2018, three times a
week, on the Belgrade-Damascus line, with A-320 aircraft. The CAD approval
process is in progress.

* Russtan airline Aeroflot is infroducing the third flight from the winter schedule
2017/2018;

» Opening of the Pamaro catering facility on July 26, 2018 on upper floor of
Terminal 1, across the gate AB,

* Opening of the retail store Main Shop Terminal 1, on upper floor of Terminal 1
03.09.2018;

« Opening of the retail facility LMS C, upper floor of Terminal 2 16.09.2018.

Preparation of the study

« Purpose: For cadastral parcels at the Nikola Tesla Airport Complex, Belgrade, which
obtained the status of ownership by the Conclusions of the Government of the Republic of
Serbia, it is necessary to merge several cadastral parcels in accordance with Article 68 of the
Law on planning and construction. In order to implement this change in the Real Estate
Cadastre, it is necessary to develop a survey of geodetic works of the merger of the land plot of
the same owner. Also, followmg the process of Zeroing and registration of all maneuvering

separation of the maneuvering surfaces and the p}atform into the wh
Estate Cadastre to implement this change, it is necessary to create.a

units. In the end, having in mind that after the reglstratmn proce,
the existing registered facility of the air traffic buildin rder
the space ~anci the. records and the area. ln
perform the'
Department.

* Status: A pubhc procurem
08.10.2018 a contract was sagne

Blinds services

Opening of. te nt:was held on 05.07.2018. A
report orithe professional evaluation of tend_e '
The procuremerit is carried out for’ the purpos
all facilities and assets .on-the’ "ANT compl
venetian blinds and rolo curtains. The fram

3,000, 000 OO RSD exciudsng VAT with c

oing and interventiol
eplacement and repair o
agreement will be signed for the amount of
y ANKABO doo.
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interior equipment

In the public procurement procedure, a decision was made to award framework agreement was
on 03.07.2018 for:
¥ Lot 1 —Work chairs and club program to company KTITOR d.¢.0. in the amount of RSD
4,000,000.00 RSD excluding VAT.
» Lot 2 - Custom furniture ZOMONT d.0.0 for the amount of 3,000,000.00 RSD excluding
VAT.
Annual maintenance of facilities at the airport complex is planned - equipping of working and
public areas, replacement of worn and worn out furniture in order to improve the working
conditions of employees and provision of services to users at ANTB.

Service of maintenance of horticuliure machines

in the public procurement procedure, on 14.06.2018 a contract was concluded with
tenderer ,Alpinastar d.o.0.” for the amount of 446 420.60 RSD excluding VAT. Purchase order
is condiuded for a period of one year or until consumption of funds, whichever comes first.

Horticulture indoor and outdoor

This procurement is devided into two lots;
» Lot 1 — Horticulture outdoor. Tender opening session was carried out on 04/07/2018.
Company that met all required conditions was ,Biodekor doo”. Contact conclusion is in
progress.
» Lot 2 -~ Horliculture indoor. Tender opening session was carried out on 04/07/2018.
Making of Report on expert evaluation of tenders is in progress.
Maintenance of wells with accompanying electro_and hydraulic_equipmegn the
operation of the irrigation system -

ith tenderer.

In the public procurement procedure, on 08.07.2018 a contr
ed for the period

LHidrogeocentar d.o.0.” in the amount of 99,960.00. Purchase
untli 15.08. 2018 or until consumption of funds.

oadmg N disposmg of mlxed waste e

endei‘s was m 'd_e for thls public procurement.

A report on the prof
00 00 Signing of the Public

Estimated value of fhe "pubif
Procurement Contract is underw.

Container wheels

the ‘amount of RSD 35,000.00 VAT
ear or until consumption of

‘was concluded on 25/08/2
order is conciuded for the p

The purchaser ‘
excludmg Pu

Maintenancé of Qarking‘,egdiphééhtﬁ

sion on awardmg the Contract wath company
iblic-Procurement-Contract in the-amount-of - RSD

For this public procurement, the
CROMRO*was"signed. The signing-of
2,000,000.00 is in progress. .
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Non-refundabie magnetic cards for charging and parking control system

The contract with the company NEVKOS d.0.0. was concluded for this public procurement in
the total amount of RSD 1,236,250.00 excluding VAT,

Lab analyses of sample fuel

Concluded contract on 30.07.2018 with NTC NIS NAFTAGAS DOO NOVI SAD of total
value of up to RSD 1,000,000.00.

Loading and disposing of mixed waste

Contract closed 24.07.2018. with VLADOC BAUMASCHINEN doo with a total value of up to
RSD 1.000.000,00.

Spare parts for water system TORO

Concluded contract on 24.07.2018 with CVETNIK doo a total value of up to RSD
777,830.00.

Consumables for cleaning, paper products, chemical agents for cleaning of terminal and
bags per lots

» Lot 1 - Disinfectants and refreshers for toilets: The contract was concluded on August
29, 2018 with HYGIENE SERVICE 2AM doo in the total value of RSD 3,050,000.QQ

‘;f

in the tota! value of RSD 1 900 000. OO

> Lot 3 - Disinfectants and disinfectants based on chlo i
with B2M doo total value of RSD 650,000.00;

“__;_-__:E;_Lot 4{{; Dry hand dlsmfectant _Contract

_ iditional training.
before they got authorised to

:February 2018 and

"f'or the staff of the. Security, Guart
' irport N:koia Tesia Belgrade, nam _y_‘for the

orgamsed by the Emp!oyee tralmng centre of
trainings:

access. control survelllance and patrols;

> .'.I'.ralnlng for persons perform :
ctthevehicles

w2 A8ININg for persons who |
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OU X-ray screening continued performing trainings for X-ray screeners as follows:
> The training for persons screening hold baggage, 5 candidates, in June stated their

initial training 2018;

» Training for persons screening passengers, non-travelers and things carried, 15
candidates in May and June 2018 — training completed.
In May 2018 a periodic training {refresher training) was carried out for supervisors.

In the period from June to September 2018, training were conducted for persons
performing access control, monitoring and patrols, as well as for persons who are inspecting
vehicles, for 14 persons.

Also, in the period July, August and Seplember, new employees were admitted to the
OU X-ray security screening (55 employees). Initial trainings was also held successively. in
July, a certification was carried out for 15 operators for security screening of passengers, non-
travelers and things they are carrying, and in September the certification process for another
45 employees in OU X-ray security screening was initiated.

Under car security Camera

A system of cameras for lower part of vehicle represents an additional method for under
car security check of vehicle entering restricted area, i.e. in critical parts of the security-restricted
area of the Airport. This system significantly enhances quality and comprehensiveness of under
car check of vehicle in comparison to the check performed using under car security mirror. The
system of cameras records lower part of a vehicle on entrance, no matter is it passenger vehicle,
truck, bus or any other type of the vehicle. A permanent record file is created and it is linked to the
licence plate number of the vehicle which is subject to check. The obtained record file is analysed
by the operator with purpose to discover a prohibited item or its parts which can later be
assembled into a prohibited item and used to undermine civil aviation secunty endanger
personnel or the propery of the Airport or other entities which provide aviation:
record fite of the lower part of a certain vehicle is then used on each enti
to determine whether there were any changes and discover prohibl

The goods were delivere

Veterinary nfep_a_r__a_tibns
Veterinary préparatiohs'fd
Contract (P

RSD:without VAT-on. March 68,2018
The goods were dehvered on 26]03/201 8

amounting to 190,827.80

v screening, the following are initiated:
n of explosives (for transfer baggage for flights o

As regards procurements that relate to O
> - X-ray device with automatic dete
USA) -
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» Scanner equipment for screening of persons (for gates A2-3, A4-5 and A4aA4b)
» Sampies coliectors, explosives trace detectors;
» Maintenance of X-ray units;

¥ Maintenance of ETD devices

Regarding delivered equipment, in March 2018, 60 screen boards were delivered under the
UJNM 133/2017 contract. Screens are positioned on all gates as protection of the operator
from passenger influence. The Civil Aviation Directorate is notified that the measure has been
implemented.

A tender for the procurement of a mobile X-ray vehicle was completed (delivery expected in the
third quarter of 2018).

On 02.07.2018 in an official visit to the Republic of Serbia, came the Prime
Minister of Norway and the President of Ukraine in their state aircraft: Falcon 2000 and A319.
Participants were welcomed at the JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport at the highest level.

During July 2018, Safety Audit was conducted, as follows: 2-3 July 2018, year by
SWISS (SMS, QM, ERP), which resulted in a single remark; 07/10/2018. by Vueling (SMS,
QM, ERP) and July 11, 2018. year by Swift Air (SMS) that resulted in no objection.

From 05.07.2018 the lranian company Mahan Air has changed the type of aircraft it
flies fo Belgrade and switched to a wide-range A343, which has a version with a capacity of
290 passengers, twice a week. Further, from 05.08.2018 it introduces additional two flights,
aiso with the same type of aircraft, resuiting in a weekly frequency of four flighis.

On 26.07. 2018 the President of Esrael with a high state de{'egation was in the..official

was welcomed with the highest state honors at the Nikola Tesla Alrp The Israeli
President came in private Cessna 525, and left with the regular lin '

elgrade, the
' to a technical failure main:landing
bility of mdependent movement. The airport
to safely remove the alrcraft from the’ runway

an‘plane of Egypt Air: Company ianded' Whtc
gear, was stopped at the runway wsthout the
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From 14-16 September 2018, the Vice-President of India with a high state delegation
come to an official visit to the Republic of Serbia at the invitation of President Aleksandar
Vucic. The delegation was welcomed with the highest state honors at the Nikola Tesla Airport
Belgrade. The delegation arrived by Air india Boeing 747.

On the last day of August, the delivery and installation of security screening scanner
equipment (scanner panels) in gates A2-3, A4-5 and Ad4aA4b were performed.

A vehicle to be used for X-ray traction is delivered, the vehicle is used by the OU
Security Guards and X-ray security screening service is used for the purposes mentioned
above,

In August, a contract was signed for sample collectors for explosive trace detectors,
and in the same month, all 50,000 pieces were delivered.

The Contract for maintenance of explosive trace detectors was signed in September.

Procedures were carried out for:

> Measurement of the ambient equivalent dose, development of the radiation safety and
security project (the most favorable bidder is selected and the signature of the contract
is expected in early October);

¥ Training in the field of protection against ionizing radiation (at the end of September the
work on the tender documentation staried);

» Maintenance of X-ray devices (at the beginning of September the work on the tender
documentation started, there is a waiting list of spare parts from the service technician).

in October, delivery of Chinese X-rays from the donation is expected. (X-rays wuth computer
tomography in standard 3, for checked-in baggage).

In September, the procedure for procurement of STEB bags was restar ase of up to
500,000 R3SD).

Procurement of towed Qassenger stalrs 4 gcs

aircraft handtin

¢ Value: RSD 12

. Suppher EUROPLAST
33/2018 dated. 21!03/201 _

¢ Status: The towe assenger stalrs W
They will be i in operat; ‘ half of Juiy 2018.

15/06/2018.

During the month of April, the relocation of employee technlcai ground handling to a

new. prefabr cated fac;i;ty of 900 sguare meter'

ln ou Passenger ground: hancﬁmg empi
baggage hand!mg on the followmg system
manual check-in of passengers and ba

ndergo tram:ng for work on passeriger.and
rt, MACS, Troya, Sabre SITA, as well as for
Trainings are organised for the employees that
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were transferred from ASGA 1o the end of optimisation of processes and in order to achieve
uninterrupted activities of operational services.
During March, the first flights of the airfine lran Air, Mahan Air and Qeshm Air were made to
Tehran, Iran. Develoment of work procedures, familiarizing emplioyees with the same,
supervision by direct superiors are some of the additional activities that preceded the
successful realization of the flights in question.

Start of operations of RWZ Red Wings Airlines to DME, Russia, A320

The first flight of RWZ Red Wings Airlines from our airport is successfully realized on
26.06.2018, flight number WZ538 to DME, Moscow Domodedovo. |t is planned {o fly three
times a week. Additional staff training, supervision by direct managers are some of the
additional activities that preceded the successful realisation of the flights in question.

During May and June, in OU Passenger ground handling employees undergo training for
work on passenger and baggage handling on the following systems: iPort, Sabre Alitalia
particija, Sabre Air Serbia particija, Altea Qatar particija, as well as for manuel registration of
passengers and baggage. Trainings were organized in order to oplimize processes and for
undisturbed functioning of operational services.

Beginning of flights of Easy Jet to Berlin and Basel
Flights are realized seven times a week. During the regular visits of the Regional
Representative, satisfaction in the mode of service was expressed.

During_the months of July and August, the flights of Mahan Air and Qesh Air were
carried out T

The activities that preceded the start of the unhindered handling servit
trainings for the staff for passengers and baggage check-in from
realization of these flights, a communication system with the Hz
established with which JSC Airport Nikola Tesla has a
handling services for the carriers they represent
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In the first half of the year, preparations were made for the start of investments and works
are underway to open new facilities of the Lessee "Dufry” d.o.o., ie expansion of the existing
main shop for Duty Free with the concept "walk-through” which would significantly influence the
expected increase in turnover and calculation of lease fee based on percentages according to
contractual terms. in the upcoming period, the completion of planned works is expected and
the opening of one a catering facility in the A fingers hall and two sales facilities in the A and C
finger halls.

According to the unofficial announcement, visas are being introduced for lranian citizens, and it
is therefore expected that there will be a significant drop in the number of passengers on flights
from Iranian companies, with a potential reduction in the number of flights.

Israeli israir Israir is canceling flights during the winter schedule 2018/2019. years.The garage
and parking lot at the Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport were taken over,

Internal risks

s Fulfilled projected airport capacities in terms of number of passengers, commercial offer
with rising demand and parking positions;

» Deterioration of the part of the existing infrastructure (part of maneuvering areas, part of
capacities of the Terminal building, part of primary heating network, primary branches of
the part of the water and sewage sysiem are older than 40 years, fire-rescue faciiity).

External risks

« Limitation of development in accordance to the existing obsolete Plan
the new plan;

» Pacryha koHkypeHumja og cTpanse meflyHapoasux aepog
Kao ¥ KOHKYpeHLIWja Ha NoKanHoOM HUBOY,

Inadequate connectedness with city centre and Wit

enger | number mcreasmg and
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Service maintenance and integration of human resources monitoring and analysis systems
in the business information system are partly or completely related {o the implementation of the
SAP ERP system, and the success of this project and deadlines is something that affects the
realization and the success of these projects.

In the period I-ll 2018 there was a risk of spreading of terrorist attacks from 2017, more
and more often aiming airports. That indicated necessity of increased vigilance and control at
Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade. In the public area, where security checks are not carried ouf,
great importance is attached to video surveillance and frequent security patrols.

The measures from 2017 on flights to Moscow by the Russian air carrier continues to be
implemented (supervision of the provision of passengers and their luggage, in view of the
announced possibilities of threats to Russian airborne vessels) as weil as the measures
applicable to flights to the United States.

With regard to the OU Fire-fighting service, a procedure for selection of a service for
breathing apparatus is in progress. Contract is not signed and we are not in position to
implement servicing and inspection. At the moment none of brathing apparatuses has
certificate on inspection and accuracy which directly affects safety and security of fire and
rescue unit members.

The service of the breathing apparatus was performed and the devices were inspected and
tested by the authorized servicer of "Drager” breathing apparatus.

As for flights to the United States, TSA representative was in attendance at the end of
June, as additional control measures (hand luggage) were introduced in respect of powders.
The visit was not of an inspection nature, but rather a familiarization with our work and
application of flight measures for the United States as well as the handling of goods and. man! to
New York. A representative of TSA had no objections.

When it comes fo OU R&F, a certain number of firefighters a

the firefi ghter rescuer was
not bee fully-implemented.

The reSuIt of the analysis is shown in the' table
in the OU GH and the number of emp[yees bein
flight schedule for 20‘! 8.

hort of for the mplementatlo of'the summer
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Analysis Summer 2018 — OU GH

Organizational Current number of
Unit number of emplyees
{sector) employees | being short of
PGH 442 58
TGH 518 75
CGH 106 3
Total 1063 139

Table of the number of emplyees being short of

As a supplement to the table above, we list the number of employees required by
arganizational units of the lower rank (services):

» PGH: a) passenger handling: 25 employees,
b) sorting area: 33 employees,
» TGH: a) aircraft handling and cargo handling: 47 employees
b) maintenance of the cleanliness of aircraft and official premises: 28 employees,
» CGH: a) cargo loading worker 3, driver 3, transport worker 2. From the available
number of employees 2 SEO and 2 cargo loading workers are tramed
through Youth Organization and temporary and occasional job contrac
be changed and there is a need to frain one more cargo.loac
compensate for the short number of workers per above struciy

would be engaged
ment.and seasonal

s necessary risk management

on Qompanﬁ operations, primarily on financial
.rate.changes risks (currency. risk), risk of
hanges.

During an:aly_sis..of:-the market and its im
instruments, the Company considers._exc
interest rate changes and risk of servi
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a) Currency risk {foreign exchange risk)

Considering balance and sources of resources of the Company on 30/09/2018 and
primarily cash and cash equivalents, receivables from buyers, liabilities per long-term loans
and similar we could say that the Company is not imposed to foreign exchange risks.

By detailed analysis of currency structure of the assets and liabilities on 30/02/2018, we
can ascertain that the financial assets are contracted with currency clause and that they are
higher than currency financial liabilities. Financial liabilities contracted in foreign currency are
generally of long-term nature. Based on the above facts it results that Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade does not operate with high currency risk.

b} Risk of interest rate change

Risk of interest rate change is not significant risk for the Company. Most of the financial
instruments categories contracted with interest are defined with fixed interest rate.

SZCREDiT RISK P e T R e I R e e

The company estimates that beside market risks to which financial instruments can be
imposed it is also necessary to monitor credit risks. The company has receivables from
domestic and foreign buyers so there is credit risk. To reduce this risk, the Company regularly
monitors the realisation of the collection, analyses the value of the collection achieved within
the contracted period, payment delays and cutstanding receivables.

9.3. LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOWRISK 7o h o i

over 2.6, which indicates
within matunty of its own sour

The average tlme of coll
same period of 2017). it

s collecting matured receivables,
he balance of receivables and daily
by the indicator of the customer
47 days (35 days in the
rrent obligations within

ny settles

sameg’ 'p”:I'II(.)d of 2017) We ‘emphasize that theil E
; ratio is 5.8.

the agreed deadl:nes and that the. supphers tu
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0. MAJOR ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIE!

JSC Airport Nikola Tesla does not have any associated persons in terms of the Comipany
Law (Official Gazeite of RS nos. 36/2011, 99/2011, 83/2014 and 5/2015, article 62 and
accordingi; there are no business operations related to associated persons.

JSC Airport Nikola Tesla does not have any branches within the Company.

Belgrade, October 2018

Chief Executiv Director of 5;) ce

~ /?'éuici’)&

Director General
Sasa Viaisavljevic, BS
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JSC BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT
EXECUTIVE BOARD

Director General

President of the Executive Board

11180 Beorpag 59, Cpbuja T: +381 11 209 4802 E: kabuner.abur@ber.aepo
CUTA: BEMOWXX ¢ +381 11 2286187 www.Ber.aepo
STATEMENT

Hereby we state that, according to our best knowledge, the Quarterly report for the third
quarter 2018, and for the period I-IX 2018, is drafted in line with appropriate international
standards of financial reporting and that it shows true and impartial data on property,
obligations, financial position and operating, profits and losses, cash flows and changes on
the capital of the Company.

774

Nﬂr General

?nance Djrector
AT (;5‘
‘;Z‘ ,L Dotirila ‘Pejovié

-3,

Head of Accountancy

Potbon 6

L3

Zorka Latinovié

0





